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Chairman’s Statement
FE R

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of China
Chengtong Development Group Limited (“Company”) and its subsidiaries
("Group”), | hereby present to all shareholders the annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (“Year”).

In 2021, in the face of the ongoing impact of COVID-19 around the
world and the complicated and volatile external environment, the Group
continued to maintain a steady development trend that made progress and
improvement. WWe maintained to pose a zero confirmed case in terms of
epidemic prevention and control throughout the Year and achieved new
breakthroughs in both production and operation.

During the Year, the Group continued to pull resources together to
expand its core leasing business in all aspects, leading to a new historic
height in the operational efficiency and became an important source of
profit contribution. During the Year, the Group recorded a turnover of
approximately HK$1,173 million (2020: approximately HK$932 million),
representing an increase of approximately 26% as compared with that
of last year. Profit before income tax recorded during the Year amounted
to approximately HK$170 million (2020: approximately HK$158 million),
representing a growth of approximately 7.6% as compared with that of
last year. The main reason for the year-on-year increase in turnover was
that the sales revenue from leasing business has significantly increased,
with a segment turnover of approximately HK$315 million, representing
an upsurge of approximately 115% as compared with that of last year.
The increase in profit before tax was mainly due to the sharp increase
in profit contribution from the leasing business with segment results of
approximately HK$197 million.

Currently, the Group is principally engaged in leasing, bulk commodity
trade, property development and investment, and marine recreation
services and hotel. For leasing, the Group continued to pull resources
together to expand its core leasing business in all aspects. The scale of
leasing business and its assets greatly enlarged. We completed a total
of 37 projects throughout the Year, and the finance lease receivables
and loans receivable for the Year amounted to approximately HK$5.87
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 183%.
Segment results amounted to approximately HK$197 million, representing
a year-on-year increase of approximately 62%. Total assets amounted
to approximately HK$8.17 billion, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 1 time. The registered capital of Chengtong Financial
Leasing Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
increased from US$40 million to RMB2 billion, and the scale of core capital
has reached a new level. The Group successfully issued two phases of
asset-backed securities (“ABS") with a total amount of approximately
RMB3 billion. State-owned enterprise assets and green assets accounted
for more than 70% of the underlying assets of the second phase of
ABS, which obtained the “Stated-owned Enterprise Green Assets”
certification from the Shanghai Stock Exchange and set a new record
of average coupon rate of 3.6%. At the same time, the Group actively
explored bank financing and obtained bank approval for credit facilities
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of approximately RMB2 billion, which better assured the capital supply
for business investment. The Group promoted reform and development
in an orderly manner, continued to formulate and improve its strategic
development blueprint, optimised its internal control system, and fortified
the bottom line of risk prevention and control. As for bulk commodity
trade, Chengtong World Trade Limited, our joint venture trading company,
strove to expand overseas markets to carry out cross-border and
international trade business in an orderly manner and achieved steady
growth in both sales revenue and profits. For property development and
investment, the Group speeded up the construction of the section 3 in
Phase Ill of the Zhucheng project. At the same time, the Group expanded
the sales channels, made every effort to promote the sales of properties
in its inventory while it intensified the withdrawal from the business. In
respect of marine recreation services and hotel, the business segment
recorded loss for the Year under the continuous impact of the COVID-19
and the challenging tourism market environment. Nevertheless, there was
improvement when compared with last year. As a follow-up, the Group
will actively promote the restructuring of the business of marine recreation
services and hotel.

Looking ahead, the Group will continuously strengthen its strategic
guidance and further increase the effort in the divestment and exit from
non-core and non-advantageous businesses. The Group will leverage the
resource advantages of its controlling shareholder, focus on leasing as its
principal business and responsibilities, and give full play to the function of
serving the real economy. In the meantime, the Group will steadily expand
cross-border leasing projects under the premise of stringent risk control.

At last, |, on behalf of the Board, would like to express my sincere
gratitude to all shareholders, business partners and communities for their
continuous support and care to the Group. | would also like to thank all the
management and employees of the Group for their hard work during the
Year.

Zhang Bin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 4 March 2022
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group achieved a stable progressing performance for the
year ended 31 December 2021, even as the COVID-19 pandemic
was clouded throughout the year and severely disrupted normal
economic activity around the world. The results demonstrated the
resilience of our core business and our ability to adapt quickly to the
challenging operating environment and to provide quality services
to our customers in the People’'s Republic of China (“PRC") and
international markets.

Overall Performance

Underpinned by the growth of our leasing business, the Group's
consolidated turnover for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately HK$1,172.68 million, representing an increase of
approximately 26% as compared to last year. The Group's segment
revenue was analysed as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group continued to expand its leasing business in 2021 and
clocked up the leasing revenue to approximately 27% of the total
turnover. Notwithstanding the persisting impact of the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic on international shipping and transportation,
bulk commodity trade business remained stable. The revenue
from bulk commodity trade increased by approximately 11% and
contributed to approximately 64% of the total turnover. Revenue
from other business segments accounted for approximately 9% of
the total turnover.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group realised a
consolidated profit before income tax of approximately HK$169.81
million, representing an increase of approximately 7% from
approximately HK$158.08 million last year. The increase was mainly
due to the surge in consolidated gross profit by approximately
HK$86.09 million or 46% year-on-year to approximately HK$272.31
million (2020: approximately HK$186.22 million) brought by the
increase in leasing revenue of approximately 115% in 2021.
The increase in consolidated gross profit was however partially
offset by: (i) the fact that no gain on disposal of subsidiaries was
reported during the year (2020: approximately HK$50.23 million);
(i) a decrease in net exchange gain by approximately HK$29.53
million to approximately HK$9.93 million due to the reduced size of
Renminbi (“RMB")-denominated assets in Hong Kong and relatively
stable RMB exchange rate in 2021 (2020: net exchange gain of
approximately HK$39.46 million); (iii) a decrease in interest income
from deposits and other financial assets which was accounted
for under other income by approximately HK$8.24 million; and
(iv) the recording of a fair value loss on investment properties of
approximately HK$1.66 million (2020: approximately HK$11.13
million). Excluding the effect of non-recurring items (i) and (ii) above,
the consolidated profit before income tax for the year has increased
by approximately HK$91.50 million or 134% from that for last year.

The Board has resolved to recommend the payment of a final
dividend of HK0.54 cent per ordinary share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2021 to the shareholders whose names appear
on the register of members of the Company on Friday, 8 July 2022,
subject to the approval of the shareholders on the payment of final
dividend at the forthcoming annual general meeting ("AGM") of the
Company. The final dividend is expected to be paid on Friday, 29
July 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
TEHREWAS W

Il. BUSINESS REVIEW

A.

(1)

Z. ¥¥EOE

Segmental Performance A, DERR
The Group operated and derived its revenue from four REBKENIED EERILHHE
business segments, including leasing, bulk commodity trade, Bl B HE RFEAnE
property development and investment, marine recreation 5 MEERERENRE Lk
services and hotel. The details of segment revenue and results RFSFVBEIE - pfERE REEFE
were analysed as follows: DHWT :
Leasing (1 #HE&E
2021 2020 Increase
—E-—F —E-TF 0
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest income FEUA 193,065 99,928 93%
Consultancy service fee BARBER 86,648 41,736 108%
Rental income GEE U ON 34,980 4,606 659%
Segment revenue SRR 314,693 146,270 115%
Cost of revenue s P A (81,437) (2,000) 3,971%
Gross profit EF 233,256 144,270 62%
Gross profit margin EFE 74.12% 98.63%
Segment results DEREE 197,270 121,642 62%

During the year, the Group's wholly-owned subsidiary,
Chengtong Financial Leasing Company Limited
(“Chengtong Leasing”), accelerated to expand the
scale of business and developed new business in line
with the national policies and directions, in particular, to
nourish green leasing business, and completed a number
of new leasing projects in relation to clean energy,
photovoltaic power generation, new energy vehicles
and new infrastructure such as internet data centres.
In addition, Chengtong Leasing continued to synergise
cooperation with other state-owned enterprises and
concluded new leasing arrangements. During the year,
Chengtong Leasing completed 37 finance lease and
sales and leaseback projects and 24 consultancy service
projects, achieving an increase in project number of over
100% on a year-on-year basis, which in turn resulted in
increase in both interest income and consultancy service
fee of approximately 93% and 108% respectively from
last year. Rental income from operating lease also
surged by more than 6 times as compared with last year
as more new operating lease contracts were signed in
2021 and 12 months’ (i.e. full year) operation results
(2020: 3 months) were recorded.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The segmental cost of revenue increased by
approximately HK$79.44 million or 40 times from last
year to approximately HK$81.44 million. The main reason
for such increase was that, in order to cope with the
rapid expansion and development of its leasing business,
the Group, through Chengtong Leasing, issued two
phases of ABS on the Shanghai Stock Exchange in May
and November 2021 respectively with a total issue size
of RMB2,970 million (equivalent to HK$3,564 million).
Please refer to note 30 to the financial statements of this
annual report for more details. The ABS were classified
into priority and subordinated tranches according to
their risks, earnings and duration. The coupon rates
of the priority tranches ranged from 3.4% to 4.3%
per annum and the expected maturity dates ranged
from March 2022 to January 2026. At the same time,
Chengtong Leasing also increased bank borrowings in
the PRC by pledging its finance lease receivables and
loans receivable (collectively “Leasing Receivables”)
during the year. Consequently, the direct finance cost of
leasing business increased significantly and amounted
to approximately HK$58.10 million in 2021 (2020: nil).
The other cost of revenue components mainly included
insurance expenses and depreciation of operating lease
assets.

The administrative expenses such as manpower costs
and traveling costs related to leasing business increased
during the year as a result of the increase in number of
staff and business activities.

The segment results in leasing business for the year
were therefore elevated by approximately HK$75.63
million or 62% to approximately HK$197.27 million
(2020: approximately HK$121.64 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the net Leasing Receivables
of the Group amounted to approximately HK$5,865.11
million, which has significantly increased by
approximately 183% from that of approximately
HK$2,072.70 million as at 31 December 2020, and
represented approximately 72% of the total assets
as at 31 December 2021 (as at 31 December 2020:
approximately 53%).
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The Group’s Leasing Receivables as at 31 December
2021 were classified into 5 categories according to
customers’ repayment abilities, up-to-date repayment
history, profitability and carrying values of underlying
leasing projects, relevant security and enforcement
measures against customers, with Category | being
the lowest risk and Category V being the highest risk.
Specific expected credit loss (“ECL") provision was
provided for each category.

Management Discussion and Analysis
TEHREWAS W

31 December 2021

rEB-_T-_—F+=-A=+
—BmRERKFERER
FREERED BFEED
8% - AT EBEE AT

MEEEEME - STHEFHEEK
HEcasTEES AR
F-HAREKER  MERLE
ATeRR - REHERHRE
TEHEEBE(EHEEE
BEE -

31 December 2020

Gross Provision Net Gross Provision Net
Leasing for Leasing Leasing for Leasing
Category £ Receivables ECL Receivables Receivables ECL  Receivables
ZEC-F ZToTE
+=A t2A
=+-HZ =+-A2
BEEK BEEE BEEK REEK BEEE REEK
HELE gt REFE FRLE EiRdk FEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BT BT BT
I Performing . % 5,805,648 2,31 5,803,277 2,051,505 931 2,050,574
Il Special Mention I @i S S S S = =
Il Sub-standard . R& 72,442 10,613 61,829 22,129 - 22,129
IV, Doubtful v, g = = = - - -
V. Loss V. EBX = = s = = =
Total @t 5,878,090 12,984 5865106 2,073,634 931 2,072,703

The Group had more than 60 active leasing customers
which were from different business sectors including
mainly energy saving and environmental protection,
new infrastructure, high-end equipment manufacturing,
and public utilities. Our customers were mainly state-
owned enterprises and non-performing exposures were
comparatively low. The Group has adopted stringent risk
management policies to monitor Leasing Receivables
throughout their business cycle, so as to ensure that
the Group has robust and prudent standards for credit
risk taking, management and monitoring for all Leasing
Receivables.
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(2)

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Bulk Commodity Trade 2 AFEBEZREZ

Increase/
2021 2020 (decrease)
—E-—F —EC-EF #hn, Crd)

HK$000 HK$'000

BT T BT T
International B 755,431 440,667 71%
Domestic FEA - 237,224 (100%)
Segment revenue DRl 755,431 677,891 1%
Cost of revenue & DN (749,124) (670,559) 12%
Gross profit EH 6,307 7,331 (14%)

Gross profit margin EFE 0.83% 1.08%
Segment results PaEES 3,623 2,066 75%

During the year, the Group carried out its bulk
commodity trade business solely through its
51%-owned joint venture company, Chengtong World
Trade Limited (“World Trade"). Since 2020, the Group
gradually withdrew from domestic trade as planned
and focused on international trade of steel, chemicals
and other commodity products with tightened trade
risk management to strictly select upstream suppliers
and downstream customers. World Trade did not carry
out any domestic trade in 2021 while the revenue
from international trade has increased significantly by
approximately 71% to approximately HK$755.43 million
for the year. The total segment revenue increased by
approximately HK$77.54 million or 11% from that of last
year.
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Though international transportation was severely
disrupted in 2021, by leveraging on its shareholders’
support, World Trade managed to expand its
international bulk commodity trade business by
strengthening its trading operation using upgraded
enterprise resource planning (ERP) system, obtaining
more trade finance facilities from banks and maintaining
experienced personnel to develop procurement and
sales network, especially in the Middle East and
Southeast Asia. As a result, the trading of steel products
and petroleum-related products grew during the year and
the turnover from international bulk commodity trade
increased by approximately HK$314.76 million or 71%
to approximately HK$755.43 million. The composition
of international bulk commodity trade was summarised

Management Discussion and Analysis
TEHREWAS W

BEERBHERN T -_—F%
FEETE BEREAOX
B thEBFEAARRSE
BRMHEE (ERP) R AR E
BHEE {HRTESESH
SRMEHEE  UHRBEHREE
MABUEERBRIHEER
BEERAPREEMEM
) #HmAREEKRES
BHER - At - NEEMM
EmkAaRBEERARS
BEEAEE  MEBEAREMS
B EEBENMABEIE
1,476 BT 71 % B 4B TS
56438 - R ARERE

below: SHBAB T

Increase/
2021 2020 (decrease)
—E-—& —E T #hn, ()

HK$’000 HK$000

BEFT BT T
Steel EiEv 520,901 285,793 82%
Chemicals {E TEM 225,278 127,034 77%
Coal/others B, EAtb 9,252 27,840 (67%)
Total BEr 755,431 440,667 71%

The overall gross profit margin in 2021 descended by
approximately 0.25% when compared with that of last
year (with both international and domestic trade), which
resulted in a slight drop of gross profit by approximately
HK$1.02 million. The overall segment results increased
by approximately HK$1.56 million year-on-year to
approximately HK$3.62 million (2020: approximately
HK$2.07 million) which was benefited from the
streamlined operation and reduced transportation and
storage expenses of domestic trade.

%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

THEARES N

Property Development and Investment PEBRERRE

Increase/
2021 2020 (decrease)
—E- —EoBE #hn, ()

HK$’000 HK$000

BT T BT T
Property sales MEIHE 78,410 89,709 (13%)
Rental income He WA 1,765 992 78%
Segment revenue ol 80,175 90,701 (12%)
Cost of revenue U 25 Ak A (53,515) (58,954) (9%)
Gross profit EF 26,660 31,748 (16%)

Gross profit margin EFE 33.25% 35.00%
Segment results R 21,181 25,769 (18%)

The Group's revenue from property development and
investment in 2021 were derived from (i) the sales
and rental income of the CCT-Champs-Elysees project
located in Zhucheng City of Shandong Province of
the PRC and (ii) the rental income of office premises
in Beijing and Haikou City in the PRC. The segment
revenue decreased by approximately 12% year-on-year
as affected by the negative sentiment in the property
market as well as the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic.
Segment results decreased by approximately 18% year-
on-year to approximately HK$21.18 million.

(i) Property Development

In 2021, the property market in the PRC was
weak due to the wave of market volatility caused
by certain property developers’ liquidity crises.
The sales revenue of the CCT-Champs-Elysees
project was approximately HK$78.41 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 13%
from approximately HK$89.71 million last year,
and the average unit selling price per square metre
of the residential area of the project declined by
approximately 9% to approximately RMB5,395
(2020: approximately RMB5,908). The segment
gross profit dropped by approximately 19% to
approximately HK$24.90 million for the year from
approximately HK$30.76 million last year.

AEBR-_ZTE-_—FHYWE
8 R &% B W as o Bl 2k B (i) fz
RAEBLREFERTZHE
EWEEB I ZHERES K
A RV AFBEIE R G R
MZRAMERSKA - BB
HMEMS A HISHERSFENT
TBIARBFE  HBEREE
ERADE2% - DPREBIRE
A H18% EHERE2,1188
=

M  YEZEER

RZZEZ—F BARAE
TEHEERBESRE
Ho| % —EEMIEE
2 TEEHMEWMED
B o HBEB R
ERHEEWRAD RSB
7841BTL  REFEHYN
BEGIT1IETRL Y
13% * MBEEEEEHE
MEFHKREEFHE
BTRBEHINEHARE
5,395 (2 - F -
HAREES,9085T) ° A&
FEIEEMNBLEFE
#78H3,0768 7T T REA
19% E 48 H2,4908
on
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(i)

The CCT-Champs-Elysees project is wholly owned
by the Group which is located in a county level
city at the northern side of Eastern Section of No.
1 Mizhou West Road, Zhucheng City, Shandong
Province, the PRC (Lot No. 01213003). The project
has a total site area of approximately 146,006
square metres and was developed in three
phases. As at 31 December 2021, the completed
and unsold area of the project included residential
area of approximately 25,171 square metres (as at
31 December 2020: approximately 36,214 square
metres) and commercial spaces of approximately
1,410 square metres (as at 31 December 2020:
approximately 1,410 square metres). The Group
will continue the development and marketing of
the CCT-Champs-Elysees project as planned and
target to complete the entire project in 2024.

Property Investment

During the year, the rental income from the
property investment of the Group was generated
from the leasing of the commercial properties of
the CCT-Champs-Elysees project and certain office
premises of the Group. The leasable area of the
CCT-Champs-Elysees project was approximately
7,362 square metres as at 31 December 2021 (as
at 31 December 2020: approximately 7,565 square
metres). The reduction was due to the sale of a
commercial unit with an area of 203 square metres
during the year (which gave rise to a sales revenue
of approximately HK$0.36 million). As affected
by the COVID-19 pandemic, as at 31 December
2021, the total leased area of the properties was
approximately 3,331 square metres, representing
a decrease of approximately 35% as compared
to approximately 5,122 square metres as at 31
December 2020.

%
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EHREWES N

The decrease in rental income from the
CCT-Champs-Elysees project was however
compensated by the increase of rental income
from the Group's office premises. During the year,
the Group leased out some of the area of the
Beijing office (approximately 231 square metres)
and the Group's Hainan Building (approximately
1,339 square metres) in Haikou City, Hainan
Province, the PRC. The leased portion of the
Beijing office was reclassified as investment
property accordingly.

The rental income in 2021 therefore
increased year-on-year by approximately
78% to approximately HK$1.77 million (2020:
approximately HK$0.99 million).

During the year under review, interests and other
income of the property development and investment
business decreased year-on-year by approximately 16%
to approximately HK$1.03 million (2020: approximately
HK$1.22 million) and selling and administrative expenses
were approximately HK$6.87 million in aggregate
(2020: approximately HK$7.0 million), representing
a year-on-year decrease of approximately 5%. The
segment results were approximately HK$21.18 million,

R BB EB EIEE
& WA B R A
ERAmERSRAN
EIMATEYE - RAF
B ASEEHARY
R EEBE(H231F
7K R A B A B
EEEEOMAE™mA
= (491,339F 75 2K) - 4t
?%%Jﬁm & 585
EMHETDBEERE

YE
At =T - —FWHE
T WARFIRINAI78%

EHEEITIET(ZE
ZEF o HBEIE
JC) °

REBEFR  MEERMEE
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DHI16% EHEEE103E T(=
Efji %’Jﬁ.%i%%mz%ﬁ)
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representing a decrease of approximately 18% from BITRAD#I18% o
approximately HK$25.77 million of last year.
Marine Recreation Services and Hotel (4) HLIKERBEAGE
Increase/
2021 2020 (decrease)
- —E-TE #hn, Gl
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Marine recreation services /& _F iR #2 iR 7% 13,772 10,205 35%
Hotel operation B JE #ET 6,599 5,140 28%
Travelling agency business — JR1T4E %75 2,009 1,481 36%
Segment revenue o fEl 22,380 16,826 33%
Cost of revenue W 2 A AR (16,297) (13,959) 17%
Gross profit EF 6,083 2,867 112%
Gross profit margin EFE
— marine recreation -G LR IR
services 10% (3%)
- hotel operation Ve 56% 50%
- travelling agency - IRTT#H 2
business 47% 43%
Segment results DRREEA (22,717) (45,927) (51%)

—
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TEHREWAS W

The Group operated its marine recreation services and
hotel business in Hainan Province, the PRC, which was
mainly consisted of: (i) marine recreation services; (ii)
hotel operation; and (iii) travelling agency business, and
the performance in 2021 was listed below:

(1) Marine Recreation Services

After suffering a setback brought by the COVID-19
pandemic and extreme weather condition in 2020,
the marine recreation services business regained
momentum in 2021 alongside the relaxation of
domestic travelling restriction in the PRC. The
number of visitors to Hainan Province increased
in a controlled manner and the turnover from
marine recreation services increased by about
35% and approximated to HK$13.77 million (2020:
approximately HK$10.21 million).

The marine recreation services business recorded
a loss before tax of approximately HK$14.41
million in 2021 (2020: loss of approximately
HK$37.59 million), representing a reduction in
loss by approximately HK$23.18 million year-
on-year, which was a result of the net effect of
the following: (i) increase of gross profit from
operation by approximately HK$1.74 million in
2021; (ii) no gain from disposal of property, plant
and equipment was recorded in other income in
2021 (2020: approximately HK$3.35 million); (iii) no
further impairment provision was required for the
Jialong submersible equipment for marine tourism
after evaluation by an independent professional
valuer (2020: approximately HK$19.01 million);
and (iv) no repair and maintenance expenses was
recorded in 2021 (2020: approximately HK$3.20
million).
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(i)

(ifi)

Management Discussion and Analysis

Hotel Operation

The hotel operation had a steady business growth
and its sales revenue amounted to approximately
HK$6.60 million (2020: approximately HK$5.14
million) and represented an increase of
approximately 28% over last year, which was
mainly due to the increase in visitors to Hainan
Province in 2021. The total direct administrative
and selling expenses of the business increased
by approximately 13% to HK$12.46 million (2020:
approximately HK$10.99 million). The loss before
tax amounted to HK$8.45 million and was similar
to that for 2020 of approximately HK$8.36 million.

Travelling Agency Business

During the year under review, the travelling agency
business recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$2.01 million (2020: approximately HK$1.48
million), representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 36%. The profit before tax
amounted to approximately HK$0.14 million (2020:
approximately HK$0.03 million) which showed
improvement from last year.

The combined segment results in 2021 recorded a
loss of approximately HK$22.72 million (2020: loss of
approximately HK$45.93 million), which was reduced by
approximately 51% from last year.

THEBARES N

(i) JBIEER

BIEEBRIFBEBEES
R HEEERADNAE
BB TL(ZEE
F B ES48TT)
BEFEEMNA28% -
TERR T Z—F8E
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BHEEZETRAHEEE
RRBEEMNHI13%E
B 2468 T (ZF =
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¥egARE L BT F
EH) B 8368 LML AR

4+
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Other Income B. HiWA
2021 2020 (Decrease)
— —TFF O )
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T
Interest income FEWA 15,431 23,129 (33%)
Net exchange gain PE 5 W 2 F 58 9,927 39,463 (75%)
Gain on disposal of property,  HEWE  BENM
plant and equipment F sz W = 3,351 (100%)
Others EAh 3,730 4,095 (9%)
Total #Et 29,088 70,038 (58%)
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In 2021, the Group's other income mainly comprised of
interest income from deposits, other financial assets and
loans to related parties of approximately HK$15.43 million
(2020: approximately HK$23.13 million), and net exchange
gain of approximately HK$9.93 million (2020: approximately
HK$39.46 million). The total other income recorded in 2021
was approximately HK$29.09 million, and represented a drop
of approximately 58% when compared with approximately
HK$70.04 million of last year.

The interest income and net exchange gain shrank
approximately 33% and 75% respectively for the year which
were mainly attributed to: (i) the reduction of interest earning
deposits as the Group was actively expanding the leasing
business using internal funds and reduced the bank deposit
amount; and (i) the decrease in onshore RMB-denominated
assets during the year and the fact that RMB's exchange rate
remained relatively stable against Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD")
in 2021, resulted in a decrease in net exchange gain recorded
during the year.

Management Discussion and Analysis
TEHREWAS W

RZE-—F AEEHEMBKA
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Selling and Administrative Expenses C. HERTHEHR
Increase/
2021 2020 (decrease)
—E=—F —TTHF #hn,/ Ch4)

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T
Selling expenses HEER 15,943 23,534 (32%)
Administrative expenses THEA 107,622 105,532 2%

During the year under review, selling expenses decreased by
approximately 32% to approximately HK$15.94 million (2020:
approximately HK$23.53 million), which was mainly due to the
total cutback of transportation and storage costs for domestic
bulk commodity trade from HK$2.78 million in 2020 to nil in
2021 and a reduction of about HK$3.20 million in maintenance
cost of certain facilities employed in marine recreation services
business in 2021.

%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On the other hand, the administrative expenses increased
slightly by approximately HK$2.09 million or 2% year-on-year
to approximately HK$107.62 million (2020: approximately
HK$105.53 million), which was mainly due to the fact that
no further impairment provision was required in respect of
the Jialong submersible equipment for marine recreation
services in 2021 (2020: approximately HK$19.01 million).
This saving was nevertheless offset by: (i) an increase in ECL
provision for leasing business of approximately HK$11.01
million; (ii) an increase in travelling and office expenses of
approximately HK$5.00 million by Chengtong Leasing as a
result of its business expansion; and (iii) an increase of legal
and professional expenses of approximately HK$1.44 million
in association with the expansion of the leasing business
activities.

THEARES N
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Finance Costs D. ®ERAE
Increase/
2021 2020 (decrease)
—m—_ e =5 #on, Gl
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Total interest expenses AN 67,004 11,743 471%
Less: Interest expenses B B RS A
transferred to FBEMAX n/a
cost of revenue (58,103) - TEMA
Less: Interest expenses B BAMER B RZ
capitalised (2,540) (3,531) (28%)
Net finance costs BB FRAR 6,361 8,212 (23%)

In 2021, the finance costs were principally consisted of interest
on ABS of approximately HK$41.72 million (2020: nil), interest
on bank borrowings of approximately HK$23.92 million (2020:
approximately HK$10.21 million), interest expenses on loans
from related parties of approximately HK$1.11 million (2020:
approximately HK$1.10 million). Total finance costs amounted
to approximately HK$67.00 million (2020: approximately
HK$11.74 million), representing a significant year-on-year
increase of approximately 471%. Having transferred the
finance costs of approximately HK$58.10 million to the cost
of revenue and capitalised the finance costs of approximately
HK$2.54 million (2020: approximately HK$3.53 million) for the
CCT-Champs-Elysees project, the net finance costs in 2021
were approximately HK$6.36 million (2020: approximately
HK$8.21 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of
approximately 23%.
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)

OUTLOOK

Looking back at 2021, from the international perspective, the
COVID-19 rebounded and continued to spread around the world,
triggering a series of crises including supply chain crisis, energy
crisis and inflation crisis. The global economy gradually recovered
from rock bottom, the overall pattern, however, showed the
characteristics of uneven and asynchronous recovery. From the
domestic perspective, the PRC led the global economic recovery
with effective epidemic prevention mechanism and the advantages
of a complete industry chain, and continued to maintain stable and
positive resilience. The PRC's gross national product for the year
showed a year-on-year increase of 8.1%, with an average growth
rate of 5.1% in the past two years, ranking top among the major
economies in the world. However, amidst the recent outbreak of
new COVID-19 variant (Omicron) which dealt a blow to the global
economy, the PRC was facing the pressure of shrinking demand,
supply shocks and weakening forecasts all at the same time.

Looking ahead, in the face of the continuous global spread of
the COVID-19, harsh and volatile domestic and international
environment, as well as uncertainties in the global economic growth,
the PRC will adhere to coordinating the domestic and international
situation and also the prevention and control of the pandemic
and the socio-economic development, continuously promoting
the comprehensive in-depth reform, striving to achieve a healthy
development trend of “stable outset, steady improvement, quarterly
recovery” for the domestic economy, accelerating the construction
of a new development pattern that facilitates the domestic
circulation and builds a domestic and international dual circulation
system, with a view to striving to achieve high-level opening up and
high-quality development.

The Group will closely monitor the complicated and volatile
environment and situations that present us with both opportunities
and challenges, focus on our principal business of leasing, deepen
reform, seize opportunities and innovate, thereby creating greater
value to its shareholders.
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V.

Management Discussion and Analysis

As for leasing business, the Group will actively respond to new
changes in industry policies and patterns in accordance with the
new external regulatory requirements. It will uphold the established
business objectives and business positioning, focus on deepening
the business development in four major areas, namely energy saving
and environmental protection, transportation and logistics, internet
data centre and new energy, and unleash industry characteristics
in the market segments. The Group will focus on the strategy of
servicing the Group and will strengthen cooperation with other state-
owned enterprises. At the same time, the Group will steadily expand
the cross-border leasing business and gradually open up domestic
and overseas financing channels. For bulk commodity trade, the
Group will continue to prudently carry out business under stringent
risk control. For property development, the Group's overall strategy
is to gradually withdraw from the business, and to accelerate the
construction and sales of the CCT-Champs-Elysees project at
Zhucheng city. For the marine recreation services and hotel, on one
hand, the Group will increase marketing effort to actively respond to
the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic, and on the other hand, it will
actively explore and promote subsequent assets restructuring.

China Chengtong Holdings Group Company Limited (“CCHG"),
being the controlling shareholder of the Group and a company
operated on state-owned capital, has been rapidly expanding its
development scale, strength and market influential power in recent
years, and it will play a greater role in the optimisation and structural
adjustment of the landscape of the state-owned economy sector.
The Group, being the only listed company’s platform of CCHG
outside the PRC, and Chengtong Leasing, being a subsidiary of
the Group and the only subsidiary of CCHG engaging in leasing
business, will fully leverage the resources brought by CCHG and
will further reinforce its strategic guidance and devote resources to
focus on the rapid development of its core leasing business, so as to
create greater value for shareholders. The Board is confident about
the future development of the Group.

ASSET STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

The COVID-19 pandemic had a relatively small impact on the
Group's asset quality and capital liquidity and the Group continued
to maintain a sound financial position. As at 31 December 2021,
the equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$3,134.60 million and represented an increase of
approximately 5% from approximately HK$2,979.64 million recorded
as at 31 December 2020.
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The total assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2021
showed significant increment from last year:

i

F+A=+—RH KEE#E

BERABE L ERARENE -

2021 2020 Increase
= —TEF - pil

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T
Non-current assets EMENE E 4,367,594 1,884,041 132%
Current assets MBNEE 3,800,212 2,022,706 88%
Total assets B E 8,167,806 3,906,747 109%
Current liabilities mEEE (3,238,608) (871,603) 272%
Non-current liabilities EREEE (1,787,496) (49,875) 3,484%
Total liabilities FEN=Ry (5,026,104) (921,478) 445%
Total net assets BEEFE 3,141,702 2,985,269 5%

As at 31 December 2021, the total assets of the Group amounted
to approximately HK$8,167.81 million, of which about 47% were
current portion, representing an upsurge of approximately 109% as
compared to the total assets of approximately HK$3,906.75 million
as at 31 December 2020. This was largely because of the growth in
Leasing Receivables recorded under current and non-current assets
from the expansion of the scale of the Group's leasing business.

At the same time, the total liabilities of the Group increased to
approximately HK$5,026.10 million as at 31 December 2021 from
approximately HK$921.48 million as at 31 December 2020 as the
Group obtained more external financing in 2021, including issuance
of ABS on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and increasing bank
borrowings in the PRC, so as to support the growth of the leasing
business. The current and non-current portions of total liabilities
were approximately 64% and 36% respectively.

The current ratio (calculated as total current assets divided by total
current liabilities) as at 31 December 2021 was approximately 1.17
times (2020: approximately 2.32 times), showing that the liquidity of
the Group remained at a healthy level.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and deposits
(including pledged bank deposits, and bank balances and cash) of
approximately HK$1,384.67 million, which consisted of primarily
the un-utilised balance from the proceeds of the ABS and were
denominated in RMB. Other cash and deposits were denominated
in HKD and the United States dollars (“USD"). The cash and
deposits accounted for approximately 17% and 44% of the total
assets and the net assets respectively, and represented an increase
of approximately 60% as compared to approximately HK$865.17
million as at 31 December 2020.

2021 Annual Report FERE

R-_ZTE-_—F+_A=+—H8 A£E
BEENBBESIES, 7818 T EF 4
A% BRBE D  BRZZE=ZTF+=A
T+ BHREENBEIMETEISE T
SI24109% c WHFEARAEERE
E¥BRERRMSES RS AIERDEEE
TH T E R ANFTER -

B AREEAR - - —FREEZH
HRE (BIER EEBERGHETEESX
BELHRENAREOBRITER AT
FEERER  BAER_T_TF+=
B=+—HM#BKE2 1488 T ME
T —F+ - A=1+—BNHBE0E
26108 - RABREPRERIERBHS
B LI Bl 4 564 % K236 % ©

R-ZE-——F+_A=Z+—HAZRHLE
(Bt E A AR EERERURDE
BRENBINIG(ZEZZTF : £2.32
&) BRAEENRSDENAEFINER
IKFE o

R-ZBE-—F+-A=+—0  A£EHF
BB REFER(BIECEMEBITERANE
THFRIRD)4BE13(88,4678 T =
ZRRUAREHENEEIFESME
RIER R E A - MRS RTFIUAE
MrETIERTDE - BEREFERDH
MBEEBERBEEFENIT%R44% 8
RZE_ZEF+_A=+—HHHNEES

- —

16,5178 LI INAI60%



VL.

Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2021, the bank borrowings of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$1,441.78 million (2020:
approximately HK$338.42 million), represented a rise of more than
4 times from last year. The Group increased both the short-term and
medium-term bank borrowings in the PRC in order to finance the
development of leasing business. As at 31 December 2021, about
HK$981.46 million or 68% of the Group's total bank borrowings
were denominated in RMB with repayment due dates ranging from
2022 to 2026. The remaining balance of approximately HK$460.32
million of bank loans were denominated in HKD with the maturity

THEARES N
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dates falling due in March and June 2022. The effective annual BX HEBEA-T-__F=ZAK~A"
interest rates of the bank borrowings ranged from approximately RITEREBRENENTH1.99%EH
1.99% to approximately 4.90%. 4.90% °
FINANCIAL LEVERAGE RATIOS . BBERLER
2021 2020
—E--F —TETF
Times Times
Z &
Total debts/Total equity BIETS R 1.41 0.12
Total debts/Total assets BIETS, BEE 0.54 0.09
Total debts/EBITDA #1575, EBITDA 20 2
Interest coverage MEEE 28 20
As the Group focused on developing and expanding the leasing HRAEEFIHRLEREAEER &
business, the leverage of the Group increased significantly during FEAEEMNERLERBLEA - RZF
the year. The debt to equity ratio (calculated as dividing total Z—F+ZA=+—H AaEHERLEEX
interest-bearing loans by total equity) and debt to asset ratio (HAEARA RS EEREHER U LAER)
(calculated as dividing total interest-bearing loans by total assets) ReEREELXR(HFAEFAAHEE
were approximately 1.41 times and 0.54 times respectively as at 31 FARTER B EE) D RAA1.4115 %054
December 2021. For the year under review, the interest coverage BFe-REBEFAN FIEBEBEELEXR(EFE
ratio (calculated as dividing consolidated profit before income tax FRBEEBRIEH KB E KA G 7F'J
and finance costs (EBIT) by finance costs) was approximately 28 EBIT MR ARRE B AN) 4 A281E - SR =
times, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 40% TFE+=A= ‘|’ A 815 E’Jﬁ’ﬂOFHzi
as compared to the ratio of approximately 20 times recorded as at i‘E%’MO% c BEBBRLE LA ZFHL
31 December 2020. Notwithstanding the increase in the leverage, ERMAKEDNERKNEEER LI
the ratios indicate that the Group still has a strong ability to repay BRKABES ©
borrowings and finance costs.
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS N BARERE

The Group had no significant investment exceeding 5% of the total
asset value of the Group as at 31 December 2021.

Looking ahead, the Group will remain focused on leasing business as
the main direction of its business development and will be prudent
when investing in other financial assets to maximise shareholders’
value.
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VIl. TREASURY POLICIES

VIII.

IX.

24\
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The business activities and operation of the Group were mainly
carried out in Mainland China and Hong Kong, with transactions
denominated in RMB, HKD and the USD, which exposed the Group
to foreign currency risks. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had
bank borrowings denominated in HKD and RMB with a total of
approximately HK$1,441.78 million which were based on floating
interest rates, thereby exposing the Group to interest rate risks. The
Group will, where appropriate, use interest rate and foreign currency
swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts for risk management
and hedging purposes, with a view to managing the Group's
exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate fluctuations. It is
the Group’s policy not to enter into derivative financing transactions
for speculative purposes. It is also the Group's policy not to invest in
financial products with significant underlying leverage or derivative
exposure, including hedge funds or similar instruments.

INTEREST RATE RISKS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank borrowings, which
comprised RMB-denominated bank borrowings of approximately
HK$981.46 million and the HKD-denominated bank borrowings of
approximately HK$460.32 million, were based on floating interest
rates. The floating interest rates were relatively stable with Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") in Hong Kong and loan
prime rates ("LPR") in the PRC fluctuated within a narrow range
throughout 2021.

Most of the Group's Leasing Receivables were carried at floating
interest rates with reference to the prevailing LPR and effectively
hedged against the interest rate risks arising from bank borrowings
in the PRC.

Having said that, the Group will continue to closely monitor the
risks arising from interest rate fluctuation and apply appropriate
hedging strategies against the interest rate risks caused by the debt
instruments which are based on floating interest rates.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

During the year under review, the Group's businesses were
principally conducted in RMB, while most of the Group’s assets
and liabilities were denominated in HKD and RMB. Any fluctuation
in the exchange rate of HKD against RMB may have an impact on
the Group's results. As at 31 December 2021, the net assets of
the Group's business in the PRC were approximately RMB2,740.75
million. According to the Hong Kong Accounting Standards, such
amount of net assets denominated in RMB will be converted
into HKD at the exchange rate applicable as at the end of the
reporting period. The Group's foreign exchange reserve increased
approximately by HK$63.17 million during the year. The Group
currently does not have any hedging measures against foreign
exchange risks. However, the Group will continue to closely monitor
the possible risks arising from currency fluctuations.
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PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had pledged bank deposits
amounted to approximately HK$4.41 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 21% from approximately HK$5.56
million as at 31 December 2020. The pledged bank deposits mainly
included approximately HK$4.28 million (as at 31 December 2020:
approximately HK$4.17 million) of security money for banking
facilities granted to mortgagors of the CCT-Champs-Elysees project.

As at 31 December 2021, the Leasing Receivables of the Group with
an aggregate carrying value of approximately HK$3,907.63 million (as
at 31 December 2020: approximately HK$199.99 million) and trade
receivables under operating lease business with carrying amount of
approximately HK$2.15 million (as at 31 December 2020: nil) were
charged as security for the Group’'s ABS and bank borrowings with
carrying amounts of approximately HK$2,932.61 million (as at 31
December 2020: nil) and HK$981.46 million respectively (as at 31
December 2020: approximately HK$178.42 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's capital commitments
consisted of purchase of property, plant and equipment, which will
be funded by its internal resources. Please refer to notes 41 and
42 to the financial statements in this annual report for details of the
Group's contingent liabilities and capital commitments.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group does not have any
future plans for other material investments or capital assets in the
coming year.

EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

No significant event has occurred after the end of the year under
review.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

EFREREEREE

DIRECTORS
Mr. Zhang Bin

Mr. Zhang, aged 53, is an executive Director and Chairman of the Board
of the Company. He is also a director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr.
Zhang joined the Group in July 2010. He was appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 30 January 2014 and served as the Acting
Chairman of the Board with effect from 1 December 2018 until he was
appointed as Chairman of the Board on 26 June 2019. Mr. Zhang also
served as the Managing Director of the Company from 15 June 2017 to
22 October 2019. Mr. Zhang holds an EMBA degree from China Europe
International Business School and a doctorate degree from Peking
University. He also undertook postdoctoral research in Rutgers University
and North Carolina State University in the United States. Mr. Zhang has
rich experience in corporate management. Mr. Zhang is currently the
chairman of China Chengtong Hong Kong Company Limited (“CCHK"),
which has an interest in the shares of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (“SFO") and is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CCHG, the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

Mr. Yang Tianzhou

Mr. Yang, aged 49, is an executive Director and Managing Director of the
Company. He is also a director of several subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Yang joined the Group in October 2019. Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor’s
degree in Economics and a master’s degree in Business Administration
from Peking University. In September 2009, he was accredited as a
chartered financial analyst by CFA Institute. Mr. Yang worked in various
departments and affiliated institutions of the State Administration of
Foreign Exchange (“SAFE") of the PRC. He worked as the deputy director
of the Business Supervision Division of SAFE and the Strategic Research
Division of the Reserve Management Department of SAFE, as the vice-
representative of the Representative Office of the People’s Bank of China
in America and the chief dealer of the New York Trading Office of SAFE,
and as the director of the General Affairs Division of the SAFE Investment
Centre successively. Mr. Yang also served as the deputy mayor of Dezhou
City, Shandong Province, the PRC and worked as the vice-president of the
Hunan Branch of the Export-Import Bank of China. From July 2017 to May
2019, he worked as the general manager of Polaris Bay Group Company
Limited, whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Since
September 2019, Mr. Yang has been working as the deputy general
manager of CCHK, which has an interest in the shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

Professor Chang Qing

Professor Chang, aged 64, is an independent non-executive Director.
Professor Chang joined the Group in January 2013. Professor Chang
studied Economics at Jilin University and obtained a master’s degree in
Economics from Jilin University in 1985 and a PhD degree from Chinese
Academy of Social Sciences. He has over 30 years of experience in
economic and financial field. He is currently the chairman of Jinpeng
International Futures Co., Ltd., a professor of College of Economics and
Management of China Agricultural University, supervisor of Futures and
Financial Derivatives Association of China Agricultural University and a
member of the expert committee of China Securities Journal. Professor
Chang is now acting as an independent non-executive director of Kangda
International Environmental Company Limited and Honghua Group Limited
(both companies’ shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). He also previously
served as independent directors of Tibet Summit Resources Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Tibet Summit Industry Co. Ltd) and TBEA Co., Ltd. (both
companies’ shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange) as well
as Yuan Long Ping High-Tech Agriculture Co., Ltd. and Rongfeng Holding
Group Co., Ltd. (both companies’ shares are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange). Professor Chang was a council member of the Shanghai
Futures Exchange and the vice president of the expert committee of China
Futures Association.

Mr. Lee Man Chun, Tony

Mr. Lee, aged 68, is an independent non-executive Director. Mr. Lee
joined the Group in November 2013. Mr. Lee obtained a master’'s degree
in Business Administration from Chu Hai College of Higher Education
in 1981. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He has over 40 years of experience in accounting, capital
markets, corporate management, finance and banking. Previously, he
worked for and held senior positions in Standard Chartered Bank (Hong
Kong) Limited and Sanwa International Finance Ltd. Mr. Lee was an
executive director of Shenwan Hongyuan (H.K.) Limited (formerly known
as Shenyin Wanguo (H.K.) Limited) (the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange) from June 2000 to June 2017, and
served as its chief executive officer during the period from July 2000 to
March 2012.
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Professor He Jia

Professor He, aged 67, is an independent non-executive Director.
Professor He joined the Group in September 2015. He holds a PhD degree
in Finance from the Wharton School of University of Pennsylvania, the
United States. Currently, he is the Dean of Shanghai North Bund Finance
Institute, a member of FIJI T & B4 BIRKEAMNEEE (unofficial English
translation being Finance Development Decision-making Consultation
Committee of Shenzhen), the Cheung Kong Visiting Chair Professor
of the Ministry of Education, Chair Professor of Shandong University,
University Professor of Zhejiang University, a jointly-appointed professor
at the Tsinghua University and an executive director and academic
member of the China Society for Finance and Banking. Professor He is
currently an independent non-executive director of Bank of Tianjin Co.,
Ltd. and Wealthking Investments Limited (formerly known as OP Financial
Limited) (the shares of both companies are listed on the Stock Exchange)
and an independent director of Norinco International Cooperation Ltd.
and Xinlong Holding (Group) Co., Ltd. (the shares of both companies
are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). He previously served as
an independent non-executive director of Shanghai Junshi Biosciences
Co., Ltd. and CITIC Securities Company Limited (the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange), an independent
director of Tibet Huayu Mining Co., Ltd., Tsinghua Tongfang Co., Ltd. (the
shares of both companies are listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange),
Shenzhen Xinguodu Technology Co., Ltd. (currently known as Xgd Inc.)
(the shares of which are listed on ChiNext of Shenzhen Stock Exchange),
Shenzhen Soling Industrial Co., Ltd. (a company listed on Small and
Medium Enterprises Board of Shenzhen Stock Exchange) and China
Investment Securities Co., Ltd. Professor He was a financial consultant
for the Chengdu and Quanzhou municipal governments. He was also the
leading professor of the Faculty of Financial Mathematics and Engineering
at the South University of Science and Technology of China, a professor
of the Department of Finance and a director of the MBA program in
Finance at the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He was also an editor
of China Financial Economics Review, and served as a member of the
editorial boards of a number of journals, including China Accounting and
Finance Review and Research in Banking and Finance. Professor He was
a commissioner of the Planning and Development Committee of China
Securities Regulatory Commission from June 2001 to August 2002, and a
director of integrated research institute of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
from June 2001 to October 2002.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Poon Tsz Kin

Mr. Poon, aged 56, is the company secretary and financial controller of
the Company. He joined the Group in May 2019. He holds a professional
diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He
is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Poon previously worked for an international
audit firm and a number of public companies in Hong Kong, Singapore and
Canada respectively. He has more than 20 years’ experience in auditing,
accounting and finance, internal control and corporate management.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report of the
Group for the Year.

The Group considers good corporate governance is vital to the healthy and
sustainable development of the Group and the Group strives to uphold
high standards of corporate governance continuously.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with all the
code provisions of the then prevailing Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) for the Year, save as
disclosed below:

Under the code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors
and other non-executive directors should attend general meetings. Due
to other business commitment, Professor He Jia, an independent non-
executive Director, was unable to attend the AGM of the Company held
on 25 June 2021.

The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices to
ensure those continue to comply with the CG Code, and acknowledges
the important role of the Board in providing effective leadership and
direction to the Group's business and ensuring operational transparency
and accountability.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
during the Year are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board provides leadership for the Company in the interests of the
shareholders, approves policies, strategies and plans, and oversees their
implementation to sustain the healthy growth of the Company.

The Board is responsible for all major matters of the Group, and the
approval and monitoring of all material changes in policies, including risk
management strategies, dividend policy, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the company secretary of the Company, with
a view to ensure that the Board's procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. In general, each Director can seek independent
professional advices in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s
expenses, upon making request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are delegated to the Managing Director, executive Directors and senior
management. Approval from the Board has to be obtained prior to entering
into any significant transactions.
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Composition

The composition of the Board encompasses the necessary balance of
skills and experiences desirable for effective leadership of the Group and
reflects the independence in decision-making of the Board.

During the Year and as at the date of this report, the Board comprised the
following Directors:

Executive Directors

ZHANG Bin (Chairman of the Board)

YANG Tianzhou (Managing Director)

WANG Tianlin (resigned with effect from 3 December 2021)
LI Shufang (resigned with effect from 9 September 2021)

Independent Non-executive Directors

CHANG Qing
LEE Man Chun, Tony
HE Jia

The list of Directors (by category) is disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company and on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Listing Rules.

During the Year, the Company has at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors representing not less than one-third of the
Board, with at least one independent non-executive director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
the existing independent non-executive Directors of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of business
and financial expertise and relevant experience to the Board and provide
independent opinions for decision-making of the Board. Through active
participation in Board meetings, taking the lead in issues involving
potential conflicts of interest and serving on committees of the Board, all
independent non-executive Directors make positive contributions to the
orderly management and effective operation of the Company.
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Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors

The Board has established the nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) and adopted formal, considered and transparent procedures
for the appointment and succession planning of Directors. Appropriate
candidates for directorship as properly selected by the Nomination
Committee will be proposed to the Board for approval.

The Board and the Nomination Committee as a whole are responsible for
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating the relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment and succession planning of Directors and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors. The Board reviews
its own structure, size and composition regularly to ensure that it has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the requirements
of the business of the Group.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company, one-third
of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation every year and any
new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the
Board shall hold office only until the next following AGM of the Company
and shall then be eligible for re-election at such meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the Directors standing for
re-election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company. Detailed information
of the Directors standing for re-election will be set out in the circular of
the Company in relation to the forthcoming AGM to be despatched to the
shareholders.

All independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a fixed term
expiring on 30 June 2022.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy and the Company
continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to
maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and recognises
and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board.

The Company believes that diversity of the Board can be achieved through
consideration of a number of factors when deciding on appointments
of Directors, including but not limited to gender, age, race, cultural and
educational background, length of service, skills, professional experience,
regional and industrial experience, and any other factors that the Board
deems appropriate from time to time. For the purpose of implementing
Board diversity, the Company will also take into account factors based on
its own business model and specific needs from time to time.
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The composition, experience and balance of skills in the Board are
regularly reviewed and assessed to ensure that the Board retains core
members who have an understanding of the Group spanning across a
long period of time alongside with new Director(s) to be appointed from
time to time who bring(s) fresh perspectives and diverse experiences to
the Board. The Nomination Committee has the primary responsibility for
identifying suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board
and, in carrying out such responsibility, will give adequate consideration
to the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee believes that
the current composition of the Board is based on the history and actual
conditions of the Company and demonstrates a thorough consideration of
the factors for achieving board diversity.

The Board shall review the implementation and effectiveness of the Board
Diversity Policy on an annual basis to ensure its continuous effectiveness.
The Nomination Committee will also assess the merits and contribution
brought by the Directors to the Board against the objective criteria,
with due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board that would
complement the Company's corporate strategy.

Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at approximately
quarterly intervals for reviewing the Group’s financial and operating
performance, discussing and approving annual and interim results and

considering and approving the overall strategies of the Company.

During the Year, fifteen Board meetings were held, including four regular
Board meetings.
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The individual attendance record of each Director in respect of the Board
meetings held during the Year is set out below:

Name of Directors

ERELSRSE

BREFERNAEERNBRTTZESES
HEREHINNT

& 2 (&R

Number of Attendance/
Number of Board
Meetings Held

e
=g BTEREEINRE
ZHANG Bin 15/15
®OE
YANG Tianzhou 15/15
15 B
CHANG Qing 14/15
B F
LEE Man Chun, Tony 15/15
82
HE Jia 14/15
(EEES
WANG Tianlin (note) 12/14

R#&(Htat)

LI Shufang (note)
FEF R (MY EE)

11/11

Note: Mr. Wang Tianlin and Mr. Li Shufang resigned as the executive Directors with
effect from 3 December 2021 and 9 September 2021 respectively. During their
tenure in the Year, 14 and 11 Board meetings were held respectively.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Meeting schedules and agenda of each Board meeting are normally made
available to the Directors in advance. Notices of regular Board meetings
are served to all Directors at least 14 days before the meetings. For other
Board and committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors in a timely manner before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors apprised of the latest
development and financial position of the Company and to enable them to
make informed decisions. The Board and each Director also have separate
and independent access to the senior management whenever necessary.
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The company secretary of the Company assists the Chairman of the Board
to prepare the agenda for the Board meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and procedures are followed in each meeting. Draft
agenda is sent to all Directors in advance to allow Directors to include
any matter they would like to discuss in the meeting. Draft minutes
are circulated to all Directors for review and amendment as soon as
practicable after the meeting is held. All Board members will be given a
copy of the finalised minutes approved by Directors who attended the
meeting.

Should a Director have any conflict of interest in any proposed
transactions, the Director concerned will abstain from voting on related
resolutions. Directors without any conflict of interest will be present at the
Board meetings to vote and resolve on such issues.

Chairman and Managing Director

During the Year, the positions of Chairman of the Board and Managing
Director were held by Mr. Zhang Bin and Mr. Yang Tianzhou respectively.
Their respective responsibilities are clearly defined and set out in writing
to ensure a balance of power and authority.

As the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Zhang Bin provides leadership to
the Board and is responsible for ensuring that relevant duties and
responsibilities are fully and appropriately executed by the Directors in
accordance with good corporate governance practice. With the support of
the senior management, the Chairman of the Board is also responsible for
ensuring that each of the Directors can timely receive adequate, complete
and reliable information and appropriate briefing on issues to be discussed
at Board meetings.

Mr. Yang Tianzhou, the Managing Director, is responsible for leading
the management to implement policies, strategies as well as all goals
and plans adopted and approved by the Board, and is in charge of the
Company’s day-to-day operations.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the executive
committee (“Executive Committee”), audit committee (“Audit
Committee"”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration Committee”)
and Nomination Committee, each overseeing and being responsible for
affairs in different aspects of the Company. All Board committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties and, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises all executive Directors. The
Executive Committee is responsible for the daily business operations and
management of the Company, the execution of decisions and strategies
of the Board within the scope of authorisation granted by the Board. The
Executive Committee regularly reports to the Board regarding the Group's
business operations and seeks its advice and approval on matters involving
material decision-making.

As at the date of this report, the Executive Committee comprised Mr.
Zhang Bin (chairman of the Executive Committee), and Mr. Yang Tianzhou.
Mr. Wang Tianlin and Mr. Li Shufang were members of the Executive
Committee during the Year until their resignation as executive Directors
with effect from 3 December 2021 and 9 September 2021 respectively.

Audit Committee

During the Year and as at the date of this report, the Audit Committee
comprised three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lee
Man Chun, Tony (chairman of the Audit Committee), Professor Chang
Qing and Professor He Jia. Mr. Lee Man Chun, Tony is an independent
non-executive Director who possesses the appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management expertise. None of the
members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s
existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(a)  to review the financial statements and reports of the Company
and consider any significant or unusual items raised by the internal
auditor or external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b)  to review the relationship with the external auditor by reference
to the work performed by the auditor, its fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor; and

(c)  toreview the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, internal control system and risk management
system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee has held three meetings during the Year to review
the audit plan, financial results and reports, capital management system,
the risk management and internal control system, the effectiveness of
the internal audit function of the Company and the re-appointment of the
external auditor.

During the Year, there were no material uncertainties or events or
conditions that might cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern.
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There was no disagreement between the Audit Committee and the
Board in respect of matters about selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of an external auditor.

During the Year, the Company’s annual results for the year ended 31
December 2020 and the interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2021 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

During the Year and as at the date of this report, the Remuneration
Committee comprised two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Professor He Jia (chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. Lee
Man Chun, Tony and an executive Director, namely Mr. Zhang Bin.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure
of the Company as well as on the remuneration packages of individual
Directors and the senior management. The human resources department
of the Group is responsible for the collection and administration of the
human resources data and making recommendations to the Remuneration
Committee for consideration. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any
of his associates will participate in deciding on his own remuneration.
The remuneration of the Directors and the senior management of the
Company is determined by reference to the performance of the individual
and the Company, their role and position (if any) in the group members of
CCHG, the ultimate holding company of the Company, as well as market
conditions.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year to
review the remuneration policy and structure of the Company and the
remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior management. At
the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed the performance
of Directors, reviewed their service contracts, considered their role and
position (if any) in the group members of CCHG, salaries and/or director’s
fees paid by comparable companies and general employment conditions
before making recommendations to the Board regarding the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

During the Year and as at the date of this report, the Nomination
Committee comprised two independent non-executive Directors, namely
Professor Chang Qing (chairman of the Nomination Committee) and Mr.
Lee Man Chun, Tony, and an executive Director, namely Mr. Zhang Bin.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for nominating candidates for
directorship appointment and succession, reviewing the composition and
structure of the Board from time to time and making recommendations to
the Board in order to ensure the balance of expertise, skills and experience
among the members of the Board.
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According to the Nomination Policy adopted by the Company,
appointments of Board members will be made on a merit basis and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria. The selection
criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate include:

o the candidate’s academic background and qualifications (including
professional qualifications, skills and knowledge which are relevant
to the Company's business and corporate strategy);

o the candidate’s relevant experience in the industry;
o the candidate’s character and integrity;

o the candidate’s willingness and capacity to devote adequate time in
discharge of a director’s duties;

° whether the candidate can contribute to the Board a diversity
of perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, race,
cultural and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service;

o (where the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent
non-executive Director) whether the candidate is in compliance with
the criteria of independence under the Listing Rules; and

o any other factors as may be determined by the Board from time to
time.

In terms of nomination procedures, any Board member may nominate or
invite a candidate for appointment as a Director to be considered by the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will then evaluate
the personal profile of the candidate based on the selection criteria set
out above, undertake due diligence in respect of such candidate and
make recommendation for the Board’s consideration and approval. For
nomination of independent non-executive Director, the Nomination
Committee will also assess the candidate’s independence in accordance
with the CG Code and the Listing Rules. For re-appointment of retiring
Directors, the Nomination Committee will review the candidate’s overall
contribution and performance (including the candidate’s attendance at
Board committee meetings, Board meetings and general meetings,
his/her level of participation and performance in the Board), and make
recommendations to the Board and shareholders for re-election at general
meetings.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee held one meeting to review
the Nomination Policy and the terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee as well as the matters relating to re-election of retiring
Directors.
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Board Committee Meetings
Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance
The individual attendance record of each Director in respect of the

meetings of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee held during the Year is set out below:

ExZEeEE
EBNEREZHELY

BETAUNAFEANRTZERZES  FM
ZBEgH AR L FELEREHSI 0

Number of Attendance/

Number of Board Committee Meetings Held

BRY BTESZEEERLE

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Name of Directors Committee Committee Committee
EEnE BEREEE FMEEE REZEEE
ZHANG Bin Not applicable 1M 1
®OE NiEA
CHANG Qing 3/3 Not applicable il
B A TiEA
LEE Man Chun, Tony 3/3 11 11
FE2
HE Jia 3/3 1Al Not applicable
(CINES N3 A

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions (“Code of Conduct”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code"”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made of all
the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they had complied
with the requirements of the Code of Conduct and the Model Code during
the Year. No incident of non-compliance of the Code of Conduct or the
Model Code by the Directors was noted by the Board during the Year.

The Company has also set out written guidelines on terms no less
exacting than the Model Code for securities transactions by the employees
who are likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information of the
Company due to their responsibilities and duties.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has not established a corporate governance committee.
Instead, the full Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing the Company's
policies and practices on corporate governance, reviewing and monitoring
the training and continuous professional development of the Directors and
senior management, reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors etc. The Board is
also responsible for reviewing and has during the Year reviewed the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this corporate
governance report.

Every Board member has full access to the advice and services of the
company secretary of the Company with a view to ensuring that the Board
procedures, and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. They
are also entitled to have full access to Board papers and related materials
so that they are able to make an informed decision and to discharge their
duties and responsibilities.

SUPPORT AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials regarding
the duties and responsibilities of being a director, the relevant laws
and regulations applicable to directors, duty of disclosure of interest
and business of the Group and the Directors have been updated by the
Company on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. There
is a procedure agreed by the Board to ensure that the Directors, upon
reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.
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According to the training records provided by the Directors to the
Company, each of the Directors has participated in continuous professional
development during the Year by attending seminars/in-house briefing/
reading materials on the following topics to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills:

Name of Directors

REEEAARFRTZEIRE  SEFCR
AEENBEBHEEB T B BEXE, NI
B HEMNETA2ERBEEETR AT
EYVEE e 8 T2

Topics covered in training

EEpR FrRE 2358l =/
(Note)
(Htst)

ZHANG Bin a, b

&R

YANG Tianzhou a, b

15 HM

CHANG Qing a, b

B 8

LEE Man Chun, Tony a b cd

TEx

HE Jia a, b

] =

WANG Tianlin (res/gned with effect from 3 December 2021) a, b

REZFE-—F+-A=HEFT)

LI Shufang (res/gned with effect from 9 September 2021) a, b

RENE—FE=—FAHANAEFHT)

Notes: HtaE -

(a) Regulatory matters and disclosure compliance for listed companies, Listing Rules  (a) ITHRRMEEEERERAH - ETRRRME

and financial reporting W&

(b) Environmental, social and governance matters (b) RE - HERERER

(c) Directors’ roles, issues and considerations (c) EEMAGE  BZENER

{d)  Miscellaneous topics covering economic development trend, mergers and ~ (d)  JEELEFRERBE - 61 - ROAREZOTFEE

acquisitions, anti-money laundering etc.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility to prepare the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Group, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine as necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 65 to 69 of the annual report of the Company
for the Year.

The remuneration of the external auditor of the Company in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the Year amounted to
approximately HK$1,250,000 and HK$360,000 respectively. An analysis of
the remuneration of the external auditor of the Company is set out below:

ERELSRSE

WREERAMBBRERE - EFER/THAEED
RERKEEN  BEARELCEAMNEEW
ERYERAFECERSTER BKIEEH
EREAREBRRAFLLE  HPEEMERD
BRAR-

B R R BSNS L BLED E 70 EL B B 75 3R K BR
BEFFNBRERARRARANFREZFERES
65E698 Z B X HEN S ©

RRRERIMNEZ BN AT EIRHEZRE
MIEBZRE  MEZAME BN BEE
1,250,0007T & 75 #360,0007T ° AN A A IMNEZE
e rEsmT -

Amount of Fee

EA
(HK$'000)
B For)
Audit services BEZRBE 1,250
Non-audit services: IEBIZRT
- Review of interim results - PHAZAEER 180
- Services in relation to the major transaction of finance lease  — RN EHELH T EL
arrangement 2 2 AR 180
Total HEr 1,610
RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL [ Be B B e R SR EE 4
The organisation structure of the Company has defined lines of AAFRIMAEMEEEHEABETIZD  BRER

responsibilities and appropriate responsibilities and authority were
delegated to senior management. The Board is responsible for the
establishment and reviewing the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control system. The Company has also established a risk
management department, of which one of the executive Directors serves
as the manager-in-charge, to be responsible for the internal audit function
and to assist the Board to review the risk management and internal control
system of the Group on an ongoing basis. However, such system aims at
limiting the risks of the Group to an acceptable level but not at eliminating
all risks. Hence, such system can only provide reasonable assurance
that there will not be any material error and fraud in financial information
and record, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.
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8RBT R B KRBT E KR - A AR
NERZEREEDM  HEP-RBATEFRE
FRFIREA  AERNIERDERBHESS
FERNARENRREERAMEERS - A
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The Board has established effective and operational procedures to identify,
assess and manage major risks faced by the Group. Such procedures
will be updated from time to time to reflect the changes in rules and
regulations, and serve as a guideline for updating the risk management
and internal control system in a timely manner. The Board considers that
as at the date of this report, the risk management and internal control
system is adequate and effective in safeguarding the assets of the Group
and protecting the interests of shareholders, customers and employees of
the Group.

The Executive Committee is responsible for implementing the procedures
approved by the Board to identify, assess and manage major risks faced by
the Group. Such procedures include the design, operation and supervision
of suitable risk management and internal control system to mitigate and
control risks. Major procedures established for reviewing the suitability
and compliance of the risk management and internal control system are as
follows:

o the Board is responsible for the supervision of all business activities
of the Group and the implementation of strategic plans and policy.
The Executive Committee is responsible for the effective daily
operation of the Group and for ensuring that the Group operates in
accordance with the objectives, strategy and budget of the Group;

o the Audit Committee periodically reviews the work of the risk
management department, external auditor, regulatory bodies and the
Executive Committee in respect of the risk management and internal
control system, and assesses the feasibility and effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control system; and

o the risk management department also formulates the annual
internal audit plan and procedures, conducts periodic independent
reviews on the operations of individual divisions and subsidiaries to
identify any irregularities and risks, develops action plans and makes
recommendations to address the identified risks, and reports to the
Audit Committee on any key findings and progress of the internal
audit process. The Audit Committee, in turn, reports to the Board on
any material issues and makes recommendations to the Board.

In strict compliance with the requirements of Code Provision C.2.1
of the CG Code, the Board conducts a comprehensive review of the
risk management and internal control system on an annual basis. The
review includes an assessment of the prevailing internal control and
risk management practices of the Group and covers various aspects
including financial control, operational control, compliance control and risk
management.
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During the Year, the Board has reviewed the review report of the risk
management department in respect of the Group's resources, staff
qualifications and experience in accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions as well as training courses and budgets, and had
conducted a comprehensive review of the risk management and internal
control system of the Company covering the period from 1 January 2021
to 31 December 2021. Compared with 2020, there has been no significant
or major change in the nature and extent of the risks faced by the Group
as well as the ability of the Company to cope with the changes in business
environment. Though COVID-19 brings new challenges to the Group, the
Board considered that the internal control and risk management system
of the Company is adequate and effective and the Company has complied
with the code provisions on internal control and risk management of the
CG Code.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has formulated policies on information disclosure and
regularly reminded Directors and employees to properly comply with
relevant policies on inside information. At the same time, the Company
will notify the Directors, senior management and employees the latest
guidance announced by the regulatory body on such information disclosure
from time to time to keep all of them abreast of the latest requirements.

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Group has taken reasonable
measures to:

restrict the access of confidential information by a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis;

ii. prohibit the management and all employees from unauthorised use
of confidential or inside information; and

iii. disclose inside information as soon as reasonably practicable in
accordance with the prevailing requirements under the SFO and the
Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, the company secretary of the Company is Mr. Poon
Tsz Kin, who is a full-time employee of the Company and has day-to-day
knowledge of the Company’s affairs. In delivering his service as company
secretary of the Company, Mr. Poon has direct contact with the Chairman
of the Board, the Managing Director and other senior management of
the Company to ensure that information is communicated seamlessly
among the Directors and that Board policy, procedures and all applicable
laws, rules and regulations are complied with. He is also responsible for
facilitating professional development training of the Directors.

Mr. Poon has confirmed that during the Year, he had taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all the resolutions of general meetings are
conducted by way of poll.

Poll results will be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company on the day of the relevant general meeting.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for communication
between the shareholders and the Board. The Chairman of the Board as
well as the chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee or in their absence, other
members of the Board or the respective committees, and where
applicable, the independent Board committee, are available to answer
questions at the general meetings.

During the Year, the Company held one general meeting (being the AGM

on 25 June 2021). The attendance records of the Directors in respect of
the general meeting held during the Year are as follows:

Name of Directors

EEMR

REERRE

RIBEETRA - FIEBRRARGHIRB R ATE
ToHETT ©

i

R EREERMBRASRITER
X R AN R A o

fog

=

e

BN

RARRRRGARREEETS 2ERHET —E
BENTR BEFRXE EREESIE
MEESFRRREREZEEGEFEHIGHERRA
g NRERE  ABHEEENENEZEESR
(RMERMBUEFEZEG AN EERRAE
FRRERR o

RAFER  RAARHEXBIT—ARERE (A
RZEZ—FRNAZTHABRTHREREEX
g) BEREMRAFERTZBRRREZHE
REERINT

Number of Attendance/
Number of General
Meeting Held
HERE
BITRRARERE

ZHANG Bin
Egp

YANG Tianzhou
SEM

CHANG Qing

= =4
/B

LEE Man Chun, Tony
82
HE Jia
(ERES

WANG Tianlin (resigned with effect from 3 December 2021)
FARRE=-ZFE=—F+=-HA=HEFHT)

LI Shufang (resigned with effect from 9 September 2021)
W= F=—FNA=HEFT)

A

171

1A

171

0

11

A

The Company will continue to enhance communications and relationships
with its shareholders and investors to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with timely.

Currently, investors can access the Company's information through

the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company’s websites at
www.irasia.com/listco/hk/chengtong and http://www.hk217.com.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

(1

(2)

Procedures for Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary
General Meeting (“EGM”)

In accordance with sections 566 to 568 of the Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“Companies Ordinance”),
shareholder(s) of the Company representing at least 5% of the total
voting rights of all the shareholders having a right to vote at general
meetings of the Company may require the Directors to convene an
EGM. The written requisition must state the general nature of the
business to be dealt with at the EGM and must be signed by the
shareholder(s) concerned and deposited at the principal office of the
Company for the attention of the company secretary in hard copy
form or sent to the Company in electronic form. The requisition may
consist of several documents in like form, each signed by one or
more of the shareholders concerned.

If the Directors do not, within 21 days after the date on which the
written requisition is received by the Company, proceed duly to
convene an EGM on a date not more than 28 days after the date of
the notice convening the EGM, the shareholder(s) who requested
the meeting, or any of them representing more than one-half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene an
EGM, provided that the EGM so convened shall not be held after
the expiration of 3 months from the date on which the written
requisition is received by the Company.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which general meetings are
to be convened by the Directors.

Shareholders’ Enquiries

Shareholders’ enquiries about their shareholdings can be
directed to the Company’'s share registrar and transfer office,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, by post
to the address at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong or visit
https://www.computershare.com/hk/en/online_feedback. Other
shareholders’ enquiries can be directed to the Company Secretarial
Department of the Company or the company secretary of the
Company by post to the principal office of the Company at Suite
6406, 64/F., Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong or
by e-mail to public@hk217.com.
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(3) Procedures for Putting Forward Resolutions at the AGM

Shareholders are requested to follow sections 615 and 616 of the
Companies Ordinance for putting forward a resolution at the AGM.

The requirements and procedures are set out below:

(i) Pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance,
shareholders may request the Company to give notice of
a resolution that is intended to be moved at the AGM. The
shareholders making such request must represent at least
2.5% of the total voting rights of all shareholders having a right
to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the request
relates, or at least 50 shareholders having a right to vote on
the resolution at the AGM to which the request relates. Such
requests (a) may be sent to the Company in hard copy form
(by depositing at the principal office of the Company for the
attention of the company secretary) or in electronic form by
email; (b) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given; (c) must be signed by the shareholders concerned; and
(d) must be received by the Company not later than 6 weeks
before the AGM to which the requests relate, or if later, the

time at which notice is given of that AGM.

(i) Pursuant to section 616 of the Companies Ordinance,
the Company which is required under section 615 of the
Companies Ordinance to give notice of a resolution must
send a copy of it at the Company’'s own expense to each
shareholder entitled to receive notice of the AGM in the same
manner as the notice of the AGM and at the same time as, or
as soon as reasonably practicable after, it gives notice of the

AGM.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has not amended its constitutional documents during the

Year.
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The Directors present the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the Year.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The principal business of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 70 of this annual report.

In order to enhance transparency of the Company and facilitate the
shareholders of the Company and investors to make informed investment
decisions relating to the Company, the Board adopted a dividend policy on
25 February 2019 (“Dividend Policy”).

According to the Dividend Policy, when determining whether to declare
any dividend and the amount of dividend to be declared, the Company
shall consider a number of factors, including but not limited to:

the Group's actual and expected financial results;

o the general economic conditions and other internal or external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial
performance and position of the Company;

o the Company’s business operation strategy, including expected
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and
future expansion plans;

o the Company'’s liquidity position;
o retained earnings and distributable profit reserves of the Company;

o the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends imposed by
the Company's lenders and other institutions; and

° any other factors that the Board considers to be applicable from time
to time.

The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend distribution
proportion or distribution ratio. The declaration, payment and amount of
dividends will be subject to the Board’'s discretion. The Board will review
the Dividend Policy on a regular basis.
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After considering the Dividend Policy, the Directors have resolved
to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK0.54 cent per
ordinary share of the Company in respect of the Year (2020: HK0.9 cent
per ordinary share) subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company. The total amount of final dividend is
expected to be approximately HK$32.21 million and to be paid on Friday,
29 July 2022. Further details of the final dividend are set out in the sub-
section headed "RESULTS AND DIVIDEND" in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment and
investment properties for the Year are set out in notes 15 and 16 to the
financial statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 33 to the
financial statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the Year.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group for the Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 74 to 75
of this annual report.

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company for the Year are
set out in note 35 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had approximately
HK$172,378,000 distributable reserves as calculated under sections 291,

297 and 299 of the Companies Ordinance (as at 31 December 2020:
HK$178,591,000).

DONATIONS

The Group's donation for charitable purpose during the Year was
approximately HK$274,000 (2020: HK$239,000).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Year, the Group is principally engaged in leasing, bulk
commodity trade, property development and investment, and marine
recreation services and hotel.

A fair review of the business of the Group during the Year, an analysis of
the Group's performance using financial key performance indicators, and
an indication of likely future developments of the Group's business are
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 6 to 25 of this annual report. These discussions form part of this
directors’ report. There are no important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the Year.

In addition, description of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by
the Group, the Group’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
discussions on the Group’s environmental policies and performance, and
the Group's relationships with its key stakeholders are also provided in the
following sub-sections of this directors’ report.

Major Risks and Uncertainties

The results and business operations of the Group may be affected by
various factors. The major risks and uncertainties are summarised as
follows:

A Leasing

As the Group continues to grow its leasing business, the Group
may expand into new industries for new projects and customers.
However, there may be uncertainties about the development of
the Group’s leasing business due to COVID-19, external economic
environment, and changes to relevant laws and industry regulatory
policies in the PRC. Besides, there is a rising credit risk in terms of
the Group's leased asset portfolio due to the active development
of the Group's leasing business, which may affect the Group's
profitability. In the future, the Group will continue to explore
opportunities to work with state-owned enterprises and optimise the
risk level of its leased asset portfolio so as to maintain the overall
business risk under control.

I/ Bulk Commodity Trade

Bulk commodity trading prices are affected by international and
domestic markets. Once there is drastic volatility in prices, the
profitability of the Group may be affected. In the future, the Group
will increase its effort in securing upstream and downstream
partners for bulk commodity trade and improve business and
management models to reduce risks. COVID-19 has negative
impacts on bulk commodity trade in respect of supply chain
disruptions and increase in transportation cost but the overall
business risk is manageable.
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V.

Property Development and Investment

"CCT-Champs-Elysees” is the remaining property development
project held by the Group during the Year. “CCT-Champs-Elysees”
is located in Zhucheng City, Shandong Province, the PRC and
possesses a good brand image with stable sales. As the Group is
phasing out from its existing property development project, the
overall risks associated with the business are not significant.

Marine Recreation Services and Hotel

The operation of the marine recreation services and hotel business
is subject to the environmental protection policies, weather
conditions and public hygiene condition. Adverse weather conditions
may affect the number of business days and the profitability of
tourism activities. As the COVID-19 epidemic has become under
control during the Year, the number of tourists grew steadily.
Though operation remains a challenge, the Group will optimise the
tourism projects and related facilities from time to time according
to the actual market conditions and intensify its marketing efforts
to maintain the market competitiveness of its marine recreation
services and hotel business.

Economy

During the Year, the world continued to be struck by subsequent
waves of COVID-19 variants, leading to closures and lockdowns in
many advanced economies. The everchanging and radical shifts in
the business environment and disruption of global supply chains,
as well as the worldwide climbing interest and inflation rates will
adversely impact on the global economy. The businesses of the
Group are concentrated in the PRC. Though the PRC loan interest
rates remained relatively stable during the Year and only had a slight
impact on the Group's loan interest expenses, assets and liabilities
denominated in RMB held by the Group in Hong Kong are exposed
to foreign currency exchange risk. The fluctuation of exchange rate
and the adjustment of loan interest rate in the future may have an
impact on the performance of the Group. Although foreign currency
and interest rate have not posed significant risks to the Group, and
the Group does not currently have any hedging measures against
such exchange and interest rate risks, the Group will continue to
closely monitor the risks which may arise from such currency and
interest rate fluctuation.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group constantly monitored the operation of its principal businesses
in the PRC and elsewhere to ensure compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations.

I Leasing

During the Year and up to the date of this directors’ report, the
Group has been in compliance in all material respects with the laws
and regulations in the PRC that have a significant impact on its
finance leasing business, including the Civil Code of the People's
Republic of China (Order No.45 of the President of the People’s
Republic of China) ({(fF2E A RHEMEI A ) (R 2E A RHELME EfF
£ 25455%)) (“PRC Civil Code"), the Contract Law of the People’s
Republic of China (Order No. 15 of the President of the People's
Republic of China) ((REARKMBEA RZE)(REARKMEEFES
2 15%%)) ("PRC Contract Law"), the Interpretations of the Supreme
People’'s Court on Issues relating to the Application of Laws in the
Trial of Disputes over Finance Lease (Court Interpretation 2020 No.
17) KERARZGRERBEERERESRUDRGTER EERER
fR¥E) 0AFE2020 17%7)), and judicial interpretations, other regulations,
local regulations and regulatory documents issued or promulgated
according to or in relation to these laws and regulations. These laws
and regulations aim to protect the legitimate rights and interests of
the contractual parties, maintain social and economic order, guide
the business activities of the finance leasing industry, promote the
economic development of the finance leasing services, and guide
the judicial authorities on hearing the contractual disputes in respect
of finance leasing.

/A Bulk Commodity Trade

During the Year, the bulk commodity trade business of the Group
mainly comprised international trading of chemical products, steel
and coal with enterprises in Hong Kong, the PRC and oversea
countries including but not limited to Singapore and South Korea.
There were no particular licence, permit or approval requirements
for the operation of the Group's international bulk commodity
trade business in these jurisdictions and there were no regulatory
restrictions, such as quota restrictions and/or import and export
licensing restrictions, on the trading activities of the Group in these
jurisdictions. During the Year and up to the date of this directors’
report, the Group has been in compliance in all material respects
with the laws and regulations in the PRC, Hong Kong, Singapore
and other countries, as well as the relevant national and industrial
standards of quality of chemical products, steel and coal that have a
significant impact on its bulk commodity trade business.
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V.

Property Development and Investment

During the Year and up to the date of this directors’ report, the
Group has been in compliance in all material respects with the laws
and regulations in the PRC that have a significant impact on its
property development and investment businesses, including the Law
on the Administration of Urban Real Estate of the People’s Republic
of China (Order No. 32 of the President of the People's Republic of
China) KRZEARKEMBIH T EMEEIRE)(FEARANMBEERES
2325%)), the Law on Land Administration of the People’'s Republic
of China (Order No. 32 of the President of the People's Republic of
China) (KRZEARKME +HEEE) (PEARKMBEFFLE3I2
%)), the Law on Urban and Rural Planning of the People’s Republic
of China (Order No. 29 of the President of the People's Republic of
China) (P ZEARAFMBEMBRENE) (FEARKMBEEE<E29
%)), the Administrative Regulations on Development and Operation
of Urban Real Estate (Order No. 710 of the State Council of the
People’s Republic of China) ({371 5 Hh 2 7 25 48 & B IR &) (P &
ARZEFBE B < 27105%)), and judicial interpretations, other
regulations, local regulations and regulatory documents issued or
promulgated according to or in relation to these laws and regulations.
These laws and regulations aim to strengthen the management of
urban real estate, maintain the order of real estate market, protect
the legitimate rights and interests of the parties interested in the real
estate, and regulate the infrastructure and housing construction on
the state-owned land within the urban planning area as well as the
transfer of real estate development projects or the sale or leasing of
commercial flats conducted by real estate development enterprises.

Marine Recreation Services and Hotel

The Group is also engaged in marine recreation services and hotel
business in Hainan Province, the PRC. During the Year and up to
the date of this directors’ report, the Group has been in compliance
in all material respects with the laws and regulations in the PRC
that have a significant impact on its marine recreation services and
hotel business, including the Tourism Law of the People’s Republic
of China (Order No. 16 of the President of the People's Republic of
China) ({2 A R MBI IREE) (AR LB X F S E16%5%)),
the Law on Maritime Traffic Safety of the People’'s Republic of China
(Order No. 57 of the President of the People's Republic of China)
(REAREFEE ERXBLE2E) (FEARKEMEEFSEL7HR)),
the Administrative Measures for Public Security in the Hotel Industry
(Order No. 588 of the State Council of the People’'s Republic of
China) ((REEFIRL EEWE) (P EARAMBIE B < 5588
5%)), and judicial interpretations, other regulations, local regulations
and regulatory documents issued or promulgated according to or in
relation to these laws and regulations. These laws and regulations
aim to protect the legitimate rights and interests of the tourists and
the operators of the travelling activities, maintain the order of the
tourism market, and specify the rules governing operators of the
hotel industry, vessels, seamen and operators that sail, berth and
operate in coastal area of the PRC, and the relevant supervision and
management system and the standards of punishment.
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The Group has established various management systems to ensure the
compliance with laws and regulations applicable to the Group's businesses
and operations through measures such as internal control and staff
training. As at 31 December 2021 and the date of this directors’ report, no
material breach of laws and regulations that has a material impact on the
Group's business and operation during the Year was noted by the Group.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is fully aware of the impact of environmental factors on its long-
term development and therefore has actively formulated various corporate
development strategies related to energy conservation and environmental
protection. During the Year, the Group established a working group to
prioritise and monitor significant matters relating to environmental, social
and governance ("ESG") issues and to develop, formulate and implement
environmental management policies and measures, such as water and
electricity conservation, wastewater treatment and reduction of air
pollutants and waste emissions corresponding to different business areas,
so as to minimise the negative impact on the environment during the
business operation and commit to implementing sustainable development.

In order to reduce the negative impact of the supply chain on the
environment, the Group will give priority to purchasing environmentally-
friendly materials. In addition, we have incorporated environmental
protection requirements into contract clauses, and requested our
contractors and suppliers to strictly comply with the relevant requirements
of environmental protection when performing their contractual obligations
so as to promote the sharing of responsibility for sustainable development
in the supply chain. In the future, the Group will continue to improve
its environmental policies to enhance the Group's performance in
environmental protection.

Further details of the Group's environmental policies and performance,
together with the relevant key performance indicators, will be set out
in the ESG report of the Company to be published in due course in
compliance with the provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules.

Key Relationship with Customers and Suppliers

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good relationship
with customers and provide them with quality products and services.
The Group enhances the relationship through continuous interaction with
customers to gain insight on the changing market demand so that the
Group can respond proactively. The Group actively listens to the views
of its customers and has established various communication channels to
strengthen its communication with customers to collect their opinions,
while establishing a system in place to protect customers’ privacy.
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During the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the five
largest customers represented approximately 556% of the Group's total
turnover and they were from the bulk commodity trade business. Sales
to largest customer accounted for approximately 31% of the Group's
total turnover. One of the five largest customers commenced trading
with the Group since the year 2020 and the remaining four commenced
trading with the Group during the Year. The Directors consider that there
is no significant risk associated with reliance on major customers given
the size and the high fragmentation of the bulk commodity trade market.
During the Year, 0-30 days’ credit period was granted to customers of
bulk commodity trade business (2020: 0-90 days). As at 31 December
2021, trade receivables of the Group was approximately HK$30.06 million.
The Directors are of the view that the amount can be fully recovered
notwithstanding a loss allowance of approximately HK$1,000 was made
against the trade receivables. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed
by senior management.

The Group is also dedicated to maintaining good relationship with suppliers
and contractors as long-term business partners to ensure stability of the
Group's business. In addition, the Group has established a strict supplier
management and evaluation system to control procurement risks and
costs.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases (which means the
amount of purchases included in the costs of sale but does not include
purchases of items which are of a capital nature) attributable to the
five largest suppliers represented approximately 51% of the Group's
total purchases. Purchases from the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 20% of the Group's total purchases. The five largest
suppliers came from the bulk commodity trade business and they have
established trading relationship with the Group for a period ranging from
1 to 2 years. As at 31 December 2021, trade payables of the Group was
approximately HK$1.30 million, which will be due within one year. The
Group has established a supplier evaluation system with standardised
tender and bidding procedures for the selection of suppliers. The Directors
consider that there is no significant risk associated with reliance on major
suppliers.

None of the Directors, their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) and any shareholders which to the best knowledge of the Directors
owned more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital had any
interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers during the Year.

Human Resources and Emolument Policy

The Group firmly believes that employees are important assets and
essential to its long-term success. The Group has therefore established
respective human resources systems and implemented people-oriented
personnel policies and created an ideal career platform for employees, in
order to attract more talents and build an outstanding team. The systems
cover policies which include, but are not limited to, recruitment, promotion,
dismissal, position adjustment, working hour, remuneration and staff
benefits, attendance, performance management and appraisal and code
of conduct. The Group encourages and has enhanced communication with
the employees through meetings, performance evaluation and intranet.
The Group is obliged to protect employees’ rights, to provide appropriate
staff development and training, and safe and healthy work environment so
to enhance the Group’s sustainable development.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 278 employees
(as at 31 December 2020: 288), of which 11 (as at 31 December 2020:
12) were based in Hong Kong and 267 (as at 31 December 2020: 276)
were based in the PRC. During the Year, the total staff costs of the Group
(including directors’ emoluments and provident funds) were approximately
HK70.06million. Employee’s remunerations are determined in accordance
with their experiences, competence, qualifications, nature of duties, and
current market trend. Apart from basic salary, discretionary bonus and
other incentives are offered to employees of the Group to reward their
performance and contributions. The emoluments of the Directors are
determined having regard to the Company’s corporate goals, the individual
performance of the Directors and their role and position (if any) in the
group members of CCHG, the ultimate holding company of the Company.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme"”) under which the Company may grant options to directors and
eligible employees of the Group to subscribe for shares of the Company.
The Company has also adopted a share award scheme (“Share Award
Scheme”), under which shares of the Company will be awarded, with
the approval of the Board, to selected employees and directors of the
Group to recognise their contribution and to give them incentives thereto
in order to retain them for the continual operation and development of the
Group, as well as to attract suitable personnel for the growth and further
development of the Group. Details of the Share Option Scheme and the
Share Award Scheme are set out in the section headed “Equity-linked
Agreements” in this directors’ report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and as at the date of this directors’ report
are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Bin (Chairman)

Mr. YANG Tianzhou (Managing Director)

Mr. WANG Tianlin (resigned on 3 December 2021)
Mr. LI Shufang (resigned on 9 September 2021)

The Board expresses its sincere gratitude to the resigned Directors for
their past participation in the Board.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor CHANG Qing
Mr. LEE Man Chun, Tony
Professor HE Jia

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 26 to 28 of this
annual report.

Detailed information of the Directors standing for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company will be set out in the circular in
relation to the forthcoming AGM to be despatched to the shareholders.
No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM has an
unexpired service contract which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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The Company has received from each of the existing independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant
to the Listing Rules and considers that each independent non-executive
Director is independent of the Company.

During the Year, the executive Directors (including resigned executive
Directors), namely Mr. Zhang Bin, Mr. Yang Tianzhou, Mr. Wang
Tianlin and Mr. Li Shufang have waived their directors’ emoluments of
approximately HK$180,000, HK$120,000, HK$120,000 and HK$120,000
respectively. For further details, please refer to note 11(a) to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the Year, the directors of the Company’s subsidiaries incorporated
in Hong Kong and British Virgin Islands included Zhang Bin, Yang Tianzhou,
Wang Tianlin, Li Shufang, Cui Lixia, Yu Xiongwei, Qi Hang, Yao Yanli,
Li Rui, Liu Wendong, Zhang Yongging and Chan Siu Kay. As at the date
of this directors’ report, the directors of the Company’s subsidiaries
incorporated in Hong Kong and British Virgin Islands included Yang
Tianzhou, Cui Lixia, Yu Xiongwei, Zhang Chuanyi, Ma Nan, Qi Hang, Yao
Yanli, Li Rui and Liu Wendong.

During the Year, the directors of the Company's PRC subsidiaries included
Zhang Bin, Yang Tianzhou, Wang Tianlin, Li Shufang, Yu Xiongwei, Zhang
Chuanyi, Li Rui, Yan Ling, Jiang Wenjie and Huang Maozhu. Save for Li
Shufang who has resigned from his directorship in all the PRC subsidiaries
after the end of the Year, all the above persons remained as the directors
of the Company's PRC subsidiaries as at the date of this directors’ report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every Director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities which he may sustain or incur in the execution of his duties or
otherwise in relation thereto pursuant to the articles of association of the
Company. Such provisions were in force during the course of the Year and
remained in force as of the date of this directors’ report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director (including any person who at any time
during the Year was a Director) or an entity connected with a Director had
material interest (whether directly or indirectly), was subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

COMPETING INTEREST

During the Year, none of the Directors and their respective close
associates had any business or interests in business which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or existed during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the Directors and chief executive of the
Company who had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code are as follows:

Long Position
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HEE BT
EEpE RERRGHAREZENER  ERdE 40 % B B4R [N
Zhang Bin The Company Beneficial owner Ordinary 314,642 0.01%
oK SE PA/NE] EREAA £
Apart from the foregoing, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors B FXFAHFEEN R -_—F+-A=+—

or the chief executive of the Company had any interest or short position
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
that was required to be recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons, other than a Director or
chief executive of the Company, had interests or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Long Position

FERREEROREERD 2 #ER

1589}

RZEZ—F+ZA=+—8  BEARTIK
REAS N EIENE36KENBFEZ FTERE
Tttt  WTAZ(RRRESHITHRAE
BN AN A B IR 10 Sk AR A B () P i B M s sk

El'
BR

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Number of capital of the

Name of shareholder Nature of interest Class of shares shares Company

BITRABDL

RERERE ERtE R 45 48 R45 B KAEERDT

World Gain Holdings Limited Beneficial owner (Note) Ordinary 3,169,656,217 53.14%
(“World Gain") EnB AMWT) =g il

CCHK Interest in controlled corporation  Ordinary 3,169,656,217 53.14%
MIRES (Note) Eim

R PEHEE R (Y 7T)

CCHG Interest in controlled corporation  Ordinary 3,169,656,217 53.14%

A P R (Note) EiE

SRR E R (A iE)

Note: The entire issued share capital of World Gain is beneficially owned by CCHK,
which is in turn wholly-owned by CCHG. Both CCHK and CCHG are deemed to be
interested in all the shares of the Company held by World Gain under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no other person,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, had any interest
or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the equity-linked agreements entered into by the Company
during the Year or subsisting at the end of the Year are set out below:

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the AGM of the Company held
on 27 June 2013, the Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme
which shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the date it was adopted and will end on 26 June 2023. The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives or rewards to participants
thereunder for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group
to recruit and retain high-caliber employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group and any invested entity.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include (a) any employee
(whether full time or part time, including any executive director but
excluding any non-executive director) of, or any individual for the time
being seconded to work for, the Company, any subsidiary or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested
Entity”) or any employee or officer of the controlling shareholder of the
Company; (b) any non-executive director (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any subsidiary of the Company or
any Invested Entity; (c) any suppliers of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity; (d) any customer of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to the Group or any Invested
Entity; (f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity or any holder of any securities issued or proposed to be issued
by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (g) any adviser
(professional or otherwise) or consultant to the Group relating to any area
of business or business development of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and (h) any joint venture or business partner of the Group
who have contributed or may contribute to the development and growth
of the Group.

Ordinary shares of the Company may be allotted and issued upon the
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme. The
total number of shares of the Company which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date on
which the Share Option Scheme was adopted, which was 484,073,477
ordinary shares, representing approximately 8.12% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this annual report. The maximum
number of shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group must not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of the Company (or
the subsidiaries) from time to time.
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The total number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group (including both exercised,
cancelled or outstanding options) to each participant in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company for
the time being. Any further grant of options in excess of such limit in any
12-month period up to and including the date of such further grant shall be
subject to shareholders’ approval in general meeting of the Company with
such participant and his/her associates abstaining from voting.

An offer of the grant of an option under the Share Option Scheme may be
accepted within 21 days from the date of grant together with a remittance
of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof. An option may
be exercised during such period as the Board may in its absolute discretion
determine, save that such period shall not be more than 10 years from the
date of grant.

Unless the Directors otherwise determine and state in the offer to a
grantee, a grantee is not required to hold an option for any minimum
period nor achieve any performance targets before any options granted
under the Share Option Scheme can be exercised.

The subscription price for the shares of the Company on the exercise of
the option shall be determined at the discretion of the Board which shall
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the Company's shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant; (ii) the average closing price of the Company's shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares®,

Please refer to the circular of the Company dated 28 May 2013 for more
details of the Share Option Scheme.

During the Year, no option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed
under the Share Option Scheme. There was no option outstanding at the
beginning and at the end of the Year.

Note: Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, which came into operation on 3 March
2014, the shares of the Company have ceased to have nominal value.

Share Award Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Award Scheme which became effective
on 1 July 2017, for a term of five years. The purpose of the Share Award
Scheme is to provide a means to (i) recognise the contributions by certain
full-time employees and directors (including executive directors, non-
executive directors and independent non-executive directors) of the
Group selected by the Board for participation in the Share Award Scheme
(collectively, the “Selected Employees”) and to give incentives to them
for the continual operation and development of the Group; and (i) attract
suitable personnel for the growth and further development of the Group.
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Pursuant to the Share Award Scheme, shares of the Company will be
awarded, with the approval of the Board, to Selected Employees based
on, inter alia, their work performance and such other matters that the
Board considers relevant. Shares awarded under the Share Award Scheme
will be offered to the Selected Employees for no consideration but subject
to certain conditions (including vesting conditions) to be decided by the
Board at the time of grant of the shares awarded under the Share Award
Scheme. A Selected Employee shall be entitled to receive the awarded
shares in accordance with the vesting schedule upon the Selected
Employee having satisfied all vesting conditions specified by the Board at
the time of making the award. Unless otherwise determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion, awarded shares and the related income (if any)
shall vest in the Selected Employee on the first anniversary date of the
date of award, provided that the Selected Employee remains at all times
after the date of award and on the vesting date a full-time employee or
director of the Group. Vesting of the shares will also be conditional on the
execution of the relevant documents by the Selected Employee to effect
the transfer of the shares from the trustee of the Share Award Scheme.

The Board shall not make any further award which will result in the total
number of shares awarded by the Board under the Share Award Scheme
representing in excess of 1% of the issued shares of the Company as at
1 July 2017 (being 58,087,347 shares, representing approximately 0.97%
of the issued shares of the Company as at the date of this annual report)
unless the Board otherwise decides.

During the Year, no share was purchased by the trustee for the purpose
of the Share Award Scheme and no award of share was granted under
the Share Award Scheme. As at 31 December 2021, the trustee held
11,750,000 shares for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme.

Please refer to note 34(b) to the financial statements for more details of
the Share Award Scheme.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the Year was the Company, or
any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transactions

(1) On 9 February 2021, MBS B/EREREFR QA (unofficial
English translation being Hainan Huandao Hotel and Travel
Investment Co., Limited) (“Huandao Hotel Investment”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a loan agreement
with SEESEXEREMR A A (unofficial English translation
being Hainan Huandao Industrial Development Limited) (“Huandao
Industrial”), pursuant to which Huandao Hotel Investment agreed
to provide a loan in the principal amount of RMB10,000,000 to
Huandao Industrial for a term of 18 months at an interest rate of
6% per annum (“Loan Arrangement |I”). Huandao Industrial is
a company established in the PRC and an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of CCHG, the ultimate holding company of the Company,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company and the Loan
Arrangement | constituted a connected transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules. Further details of the Loan Arrangement |
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 9 February
2021.

(2)  On 3 September 2020, Huandao Hotel Investment, as lender,
entered into a loan agreement with B % &% B AR A7) (unofficial
English translation being China Huandao Group Limited) (“China
Huandao Group”), as borrower, pursuant to which Huandao Hotel
Investment agreed to provide a loan in the principal amount of
RMB30,000,000 to China Huandao Group for a term of one year
from 3 September 2020 to 2 September 2021. On 3 September
2021, Huandao Hotel Investment and China Huandao Group entered
into a loan extension agreement to extend the term of the loan
for two years to 2 September 2023 (“Loan Arrangement I1").
The interest rate for the loan is 8% per annum. China Huandao
Group is a company established in the PRC and a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CCHG, the ultimate holding company of the Company,
and is therefore a connected person of the Company and the Loan
Arrangement |l constituted a connected transaction for the Company
under the Listing Rules. Further details of the Loan Arrangement
Il are set out in the announcements of the Company dated 3
September 2020 and 2 September 2021.

The Directors confirm that the related party transactions during the Year as
disclosed in notes 37(a) to the financial statements fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction” (as the
case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm
that the Company has, where applicable, complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The Directors confirm that the related party transactions during the Year
as disclosed in notes 37(b) and 37(c) to the financial statements do not fall
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above and in note 37(a) to the financial statements, (i)
no contract of significance was entered into by, and/or subsisted between
the Company or any of its subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (ii) no contract of significance
in relation to provision of services by the controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries to the Group was entered into and/or subsisted during the
Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report,
based on information that was publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirmed that the
Company had maintained sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the Group's results and its assets and liabilities for the Year

and the past four financial years is set out on pages 191 to 192 of this
annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the Year have
been audited by BDO Limited.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to

re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Zhang Bin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 4 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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25 Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
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www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA CHENGTONG DEVELOPMENT GROUP
LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Chengtong
Development Group Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 70 to 188, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
"Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code"), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

BTEHBERREBERARIVRRE
(REBAEME L HR A A])

=z
=

e EdTEHBEEREEARAR(TER
ADREKBAR (G EEEDEHINNETOR
E188AZFAMBHRE RERAVBHRERE
BR-BE-_—F1+-A=1T—HZHEAUBILR
%ﬁiai;zamﬁrzm.\um& mAEZEW

#7R GEEDZEPREGEAASRER AR
RAMBmRIME BRI HRMAE -

BMRA SRR BRREBEETESHNAE
((BRETMAF)RM cFEMBRELENE
EMAFHRR BEEER_ZE-_—F+-A=
T—RZEEUBRANREREZR IEFEZ
HEMBRAMIARERE WEEBREER
ARG Z AR R -

RRzER

BPBRBEEESAMAGEM I EBEEL
([EBFFERETRN - RAEZXFEAT
AENBEEEEAREZBMA B RAMT
BERAENETIHDPIEE—FM - REF
AEMAGEMIEXSMBRTRIST
B AEBBLR E%5E - XEETTH
Rz EMEREE - RIEE - RAMESZE
FAAREREAREEMARMACETEREHE
Ebk

BRETER

MRETFEERERMNERAE - BA/YHA
ARGV B RRNBARSERNTIR - L

FHERERMEABEBRAMBREAMHARR
FETTRIER - HMATSHELFRIEHEEN
BR -

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEIHEZREMERAT | 65




Independent Auditor’s Report
BWIAZHENERS

Impairment assessment of finance lease receivables and loans
receivable

Refer to note 22 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on note 4.9.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had gross finance lease receivables
and loans receivable of approximately HK$5,878,090,000 and impairment
loss allowance of approximately HK$12,984,000.

Management performed periodic assessment on the recoverability of
the finance lease receivables and loans receivable and the sufficiency of
impairment loss allowance based on information including credit profile
of the borrowers, historical settlement records, subsequent settlement
status, ageing of the finance lease receivables and loans receivable,
value of the collaterals and expected timing and amount of realisation
of outstanding balances. Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the ability of the borrowers to repay the
outstanding balances in order to estimate the expected credit losses for
the impairment assessment.

Due to the significance of finance lease receivables and loans receivable
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole and the use of
judgement and estimates by management in assessing the recoverability
of finance lease receivables and loans receivable, we considered this as a
key audit matter.

Our response

Our key procedures in relation to the management’'s impairment
assessment on finance lease receivables and loans receivable included:

= Obtaining an understanding of the Group's expected credit loss
policy and methodology for impairment assessment;

- Reviewing the reasonableness of management’s estimation in
expected timing of collection and the credit quality of individual
borrowers, including the background of the borrowers and their
credit worthiness, collection history and value of collaterals; and

- Checking the accuracy of the ageing classification of the finance
lease receivables and loans receivable balances on a sample basis.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the

other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

~
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Independent Auditor’s Report

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BWIAZHENERS

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

~
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Independent Auditor’s Report

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Wong Kwok Wai

Practising Certificate Number: P06047

Hong Kong, 4 March 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement

FalaX

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE2—Z-—F+_A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —T-FF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
HeE BT T BT T
Turnover —E 3 6 1,172,679 931,688
Costs of revenue ez B AR (900,373) (745,472)
Gross profit and net interest income EFNRANEWANEEA 272,306 186,216
Other income E bl A 7 29,088 70,038
Selling expenses HEER (15,943) (23,534)
Administrative expenses 1THER (107,622) (105,532)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME ARz s 36 - 50,229
Fair value loss on investment properties wEWHEZ AT E/BE 16 (1,656) (11,125)
Finance costs BB KR 8 (6,361) (8,212)
Profit before income tax ERFT 8B AR R 169,812 158,080
Income tax expense Frisfim 9 (64,120) (37,119)
Profit for the year FRIEF 10 105,692 120,961
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: (S ERZER(EE) :
Owners of the Company AKREHER A 104,222 121,372
Non-controlling interests FEIERR A2 1,470 411)
105,692 120,961
Earnings per share BRER 13
- Basic and diluted - HARREE HK1.78 cents #&fll  HK2.09 cents /1l
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FeEZEalax

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—B-—fF —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit for the year FREF 105,692 120,961
Other comprehensive income Hig 2wz
ltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to  HE K FAIEHHEEEFZ
profit or loss: HE
Net change in fair value of equity investments at & A F (B A H fth 2 H UK S A4
fair value through other comprehensive income HRENQNFEFEE 7,031 (71,811)
Revaluation surplus upon transfer of owner- BAMEEBIREMERHER
occupied properties to investment properties B 3,970 -
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to HETREEH P EEBREZIER ¢
profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translation to MERYEMEENIER 258
presentation currency 63,165 144,020
Exchange differences reclassified to profit or loss ~ HEMB AR ENDETIEZ
on disposal of subsidiaries RIME H Z 5 - 5,209
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKREEE 179,858 198,379
Total comprehensive income attributable to: EBh2ERRAE :
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIE ZEWN 178,388 198,801
Non-controlling interests FEIE I 1,470 (422)
179,858 198,379
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MERKALR

As af 31 December 2021 R —ZE-—F+_A=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
k=3 BETFTT BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets FREEE
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BERFZE 15 307,371 344,673
Investment properties LEME 16 99,255 89,143
Deposits paid BftiEE 18 1,015 700
Finance lease receivables and loans Bh & TH & pE MR R EILE SR
receivable 22 3,911,695 1,438,325
Other financial assets HtemEE 24 11,658 11,200
Loan to a related party By —R2B@BEHER 23 36,600 =
4,367,594 1,884,041
Current assets REBEE
Properties held for sale FELEDE 19 130,438 180,364
Properties under development BRIPME 19 143,793 90,325
Inventories FE 20 23,332 4,756
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H A pE 5k IE 21 79,888 101,775
Finance lease receivables and loans Bh & TH & FE WK R EILE SR
receivable 22 1,953,411 634,378
Loan to a related party BT —RBETER 23 12,200 36,404
Other financial assets Hih & REE 24 69,850 107,736
Taxation recoverable BEEEE 2,628 1,794
Pledged bank deposits BEAIRITER 25 4,413 5,556
Bank balances and cash RITHEGERRS 25 1,380,259 859,618
3,800,212 2,022,706
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 &k M ERNFRIE 26 373,265 349,524
Contract liabilities aREE 27 136,724 124,420
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 3,098 3,729
Taxation payable FERT R IR 35,622 31,318
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 1,374,675 338,420
Asset-backed securities BESRES 30 1,267,068 =
Unsecured other loan IR EMER 31 600 600
Loan from a related party KE—BEEFER 23 47,556 23,592
3,238,608 871,603
Net current assets RBEEFE 561,604 1,151,103
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABERE 4,929,198 3,035,144

E
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
REeEMBERAE

As at 31 December 2021 R - Z-—4%+_-H=+—H

2021 2020
—EB-—F —T-FTF
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
23 BT T BT T
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 67,100 =
Asset-backed securities BEXFHES 30 1,665,539 =
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 - 3,311
Deferred tax liabilities EERIRBE 32 54,857 46,564
1,787,496 49,875
Net assets EEFE 3,141,702 2,985,269
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of AATEBEABEZER
the Company
Share capital A& s 33 2,214,624 2,185,876
Reserves 1 919,979 793,764
3,134,603 2,979,640
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R 2 7,099 5,629
Total equity R 3,141,702 2,985,269

The consolidated financial statements on pages 70 to 188 were approved $702188B Z A MEHERER T -—_F =
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 4 March 2022 and AMMBMRESESIERRERT  THUATES

are signed on its behalf by: REESSHE -
Zhang Bin Yang Tianzhou
RIR = HEM
Director Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
RERKEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE
Equity attrbutable to owners of the Company
FAAER ARG R
Financial
assets at
fair value
Employee ~~ through
Shares held share- other
for share based  comprefiensive Non-
Share Capital -~ Statutory award compensaion ~ income Other ~ Exchange  Accumulated controlling
capital  reserve  reseve  scheme  resenve  reserve  TeSenve  Ieseve profits Total  interests Total
EATR
AR
BRhEE HRERE  2EkE
dHFE  MRE 28R
Be  EnbE  iRBR BB MEBR AERE  EMRB  EARR  ZfRA & ks ait
000 SO0 SO0 SO0 HKSORD HKSORD  HKSORD  HKSOD HKSOD HKSOOD HKSOO HKSOWD
BT B¥fr BT BEfr B¥n BETr B¥Tn BETn BT BRTn BT B
fnote36) oty fnote 35 fhote 39 fnote 35 fhote 39
Wz W) WEw () Wz W)
At 31 December 2019 HoE-1E
t2h=t-8 2,185,876 2814 88831 (6,494 0 6177 29 (196600 767231 2780839 133377 2914216
Profilloss) for the year FmEfl/(B8) - - = = = = = - M man W) 12091
Other comprehensive income: ERENE
Exchange differences arising on tensiafionto B 2% EEL 2
presentaton currency = - - - - - - -1 - 10 (1) 14400
Exchange diferences rechssfied toproftor £ EMBATEERA
loss on disposal of subsidiaies (rote 3§/ BEBR/ERER
(H3) - - - - - - - 59 - B - B9
Net change i farvalue of frencalassets st~ RATEHAR K2 E
fair value through other comprefensive Wa7eREE,
income ATEERS - - - - - Mt - - - - M)
Totol comprehensve ncome fortheyear ~ £A2EGEEE 00 - - - - ToomEm - UM I e WD) 19837
Disposal of subsidiaies 702 35 HERBAR %) - - (7% - - - (298] -1 -8 (1273
Appropriation to statutory reserve EATHERE - - = = = - - = = =
At 31 December 2020 3
t2h=t-8 2,185,876 281 913 (6,494 02 (133,568 - [740) 880517 2979640 5829 298569

\
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e EEHE

For the year ended 31 December 2021 &%=

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

——

=

Fr-A=T—HLFE

ARAERARLZER
Financial
assets at
fair value
Employee  through
Shares held share- other
for share based comprehensive Non-
Share  Capital ~ Statutory  award compensation  income Revaluation  Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital  reserve  reseve  scheme  reserve  reserve  reseve  reserve profits Total interests Total
RATE
AR
ARORE RfRR  2E4E
iHEE  KEE 28R
Bx  EAfE  EERE  <RD  MERE EEER EMRE  ENER  EiREA gt ERRER aif
HKS000  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSORD  HKSO00  HKSUOO  HKSOOD  HKSORD  HKSO00  HKSUOO  HKSOOD  HKSOMD
BT BETR BEFL BETR BEFL BETn BEFn BETn B BETn B8 YR
[note35]  [note35)  [note 35 [note 35) fnote 35 note 35)
Wi  WEsm  Em (WEs) Wiz (s
At 31 December 2020 .3
tZR=1-H 2,185,876 2814 91213 (6,494) 02 (133,568) - (74200 880517 2,979,640 5629 2,985,269
Prfitfor he year ERER - - - - - - - S M2 1A 1056
Other comprehensive income: Et2ENE
Exchange diffrences arising on tensiafion o~ B2 EEL
presentaton currency = - - - - - - - 63165 - 6365 - B3
Net change i far value of financialassets st~ RATEFARMAE
fairvalue through other comprehensive YasmEEs
income ATEEED - - = = - = = S ] -
Revaluation surplus upon transfer of owner- BB MIEEARENE
occupied properties o investment properties,  BEERRS - 1k
net of taxation W - - - - - - 3910 - - 3910 - 3910
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ER2ERELE 2 = = = S 390 63165 1422 178388 1410 179858
Dividend paid BRE = = = - 2 2 2 - B B - )
Share issued s serip dividends HRRERGRA
(notes 12 and 33) (Hit12m33) 2878 = = = = = = = - B - B
Appropriation to statutory reserve EATHERE = - M = = s = - (1309) = = =
At 31 December 2021 W-g--%
tZB=1-H 214,624 2814 110416 (6,494) 02 (126531) 3910 15,745 919363 3,134,603 7099 3141702
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEBeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & =

T F+A=t—HILEFE

2021 2020
—E——F —E-TF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
M BT BT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHEECHSRE
Profit before income tax bR TSR R F 169,812 158,080
Adjustments for: TEUATIE B H% -
Interest income FE WA 7 (15,431) (23,129)
Interest expense FMBERXZ 8 64,209 7.777
Interest on lease liabilities E SRR S 8 255 435
Depreciation of property, plant and e BERRESFE
equipment 10 42,938 23,605
Fair value loss on investment properties REWEZ N HERBE 16 1,656 11,125
Fair value gain on other financial assets BOFER ARSAEAM
measured at fair value through profit or SREE 2 A FEME
loss 7 (161) (669)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, LEWE  BEREEZ
plant and equipment &8, (W) 10 5 (3,351)
Gain on disposal of investment properties ﬁ%?ﬁﬁff%%zuﬁ(é 10 (360) =
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBA Rz W 36 - (50,229)
Impairment losses on property, S E Jﬂﬁ}%& S 2 A
plant and equipment BB 10 - 19,012
Impairment loss on financial assets CRMEERERRE 10 11,831 824
Operating profit before working capital Rt EEBESE AL LRT
changes 274,754 143,480
(Increase)/decrease in properties under R YEGEM), SR
development (48,098) 56,795
Decrease/(increase) in properties held for sale  #H{EHEWERF L (3 n) 52,554 (126,756)
Increase in inventories FEEM (18,468) (403)
Decrease in trade and other receivables %’%&Efﬁﬁuﬁlmlﬁ o 22,881 38,531
Increase in finance lease receivables and BhE FH S FE UG IE R B E K
loans receivable N (3,693,575) (821,871)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5 K E e FOEIE N 15,421 160,521
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities AHaEEM,/ CRd) 9,302 (18,508)
Cash used in operations MEEBA RS (3,385,229) (568,211)
Hong Kong profits tax paid EX Mz BETISH (2,783) -
PRC enterprise income tax paid EX (T2 RRREMSR (49,684) (31,512)
PRC land appreciation tax paid B 2 B I E R (1,974) (1,729)
Net cash used in operating activities REFEMAZBLSTFE (3,439,670) (601,452)
Cash flows from investing activities REZHEECEERE
Interest received B B 15,431 25,135
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of EEHBAT  MBLEY
Re 36 - 319,109
Purchase of other financial assets e ,H’riﬂj': BEE - (58,254)
Settlement of other financial assets BEH MO MAE 45,267 429,686
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME  WEMRE (4,223) (124,359)
Additions of investment property REREWE - (239)
Proceeds from disposal of property, ﬁ%%% BB R E BT
plant and equipment A 3 4,212
Proceeds from disposal of investment ﬁ Txﬁ%%ﬂ’]ﬁﬁ SR
properties 2,069 =
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, Hﬁl%%% BE REEEH
plant and equipment e (992) (700)
Loan to a related party ?ﬁ% %Eﬁkﬁ{“m (12,000) (33,600)
Settlement of loan to a related party HET—ELEETER 710 33,600
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits Eﬁ?ﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁm D,/ (38h0) 1,251 (810)
Net cash generated from investing activities REFZBHELZEESFHE 47,516 593,780
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FEBeRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

2021 2020
—E-_—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Cash flows from financing activities BRETHEECRESRE
Interest paid ENFE (57,641) (10,027)
New bank loans raised MEEZRITER 1,248,358 373,040
Repayment of bank loans EERTER (166,578) (323,516)
Capital element of lease rentals paid BENEE 2 ERIS (3,986) (4,011)
Interest element of lease rentals paid [EEREiE A8 (255) (435)
Loan from a related party ’KE—% Eﬁ;@?s’]‘ém 23,280 69,064
Repayment of loan from a related party F‘“ BRE—BBEETNER - (45,784)
Proceeds from issuance of asset-backed BOIBEYRBEAFNMENRIEA
securities 3,396,000 -
Repayment of asset-backed securities BREEEIFES (516,031) =
Dividends paid to the shareholders of BEAARQBRERE
the Company (23,425) -
Net cash generated from financing REFHELEZRLSTFE
activities 3,899,722 58,331
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents HE&RBESZEYEMNFR 507,568 50,659
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning RENZRERREEEY
of year 859,618 791,830
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HEERSEHTE 13,073 17,129
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year RERZRERREEEY 1,380,259 859,618
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents: RERFEELEEND
Bank balances and cash BITEFEERS 1,380,259 859,618
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ2—Z - —F+_-_F=+—HItFE

~
78
o

GENERAL

China Chengtong Development Group Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of its
registered office and its principal place of business is Suite 6406,
64/F., Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in investment holding, leasing, bulk commodity trading,
property development and investment, marine recreation services
and hotel.

The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). As at
31 December 2021, the Company's immediate holding company is
World Gain Holdings Limited, which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and the directors of the Company consider the Group's
ultimate holding company to be China Chengtong Holdings Group
Limited (“"CCHG"), a company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
Dollar (“HK$") and the functional currency of the Company is HK$.
The directors consider that HK$ is the appropriate presentation
currency since the Company is incorporated in Hong Kong with its
shares listed on the Stock Exchange.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

2.1 Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first time
the following new amendments (the “new HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), which are relevant to and effective for the
Group’s financial statements for the annual period beginning
on 1 January 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 16  COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phases 2

Amendments to HKAS 39,
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

The adoption of the new HKFRSs has no material impact on
the Group's financial statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. HMBBUMBHREEN(EEM
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued) B|EER D@

2.2 New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not 22 CEMEMNRERNET BB
yet effective BEAMEREER

THIERMERMRERZ R
EREAMBERERABAEE
MBHRRELENER  ERARBEARE
B R -

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to the
Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are not
yet effective and have not been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BEVBREENEI0R REFEHBENT
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its RABGHENESE:  HAELEZHEN
Associate or Joint Venture? BT BEHERTE
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual BEVBREENEN . HESER R
Framework? &7

Amendments to HKAS 1

Classification of Liabilities as

BEEIHERF IR 2B AEIEARDRG

Current or Non-current® e
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment: BB ENZ16R B UE  BERR
Proceeds before Intended RERBA G
Use? B2
Amendment to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of BEQHENEITR 2] HEAN-EBOAN
Fulfilling a Contract? LA
Amendments to HKFRS 1, Annual Improvements to BEVBREEAE R BEMEREED -
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16 and HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle? BAUMHRELEAEY T-\FEZ%C
HKAS 41 ¥ RAMBHREENE  TERHMzEEM
165 R BB GFEAS 2
INEwd H
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent EAMBAEEAE 6  HEMARERER
Concessions beyond LET SERM-Z=
30 June 2021" —ExA=1A
)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting BESHENE 1B  SHBRER
Policies®
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting BEQHENES R B gtz ER?
Estimates®
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets BEGHENF1 25265 HE-QHEECE
and Liabilities arising from a ERAGEEZE
Single Transaction® ERE
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial BERBER(CZ-2F) MERRER- &R
(2020) Statements — Classification ANHBHREKRE
by the Borrower of a Term BRFZEHER
Loan that Contains a N
Repayment on Demand
Clause®
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ2—Z - —F+_-_F=+—HItFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

2.2

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective (Continued)

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

a Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
e The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or

contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning on or
after a date to be determined.

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements will be
adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the first period
beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement. The
adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs have been issued
but are not yet effective are unlikely to have significant impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements in the period
of initial application.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

3.1

3.2

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the "HKFRS") issued by the HKICPA and the
provisions of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which
concern the preparation of financial statements. In addition,
the financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain properties and financial
instruments that are measured at fair value, as explained in
the accounting policies set out in note 4 below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Rt %5 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 - - —F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries. Inter-
company transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred, in which
case the loss is recognised in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated income statements from
the effective dates of acquisition or up to the effective dates
of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other members
of the Group.

The Group accounts for business combinations using the
acquisition method when the acquired set of activities and
assets meets the definition of a business and control is
transferred to the Group. In determining whether a particular
set of activities and assets is a business, the Group assesses
whether the set of assets and activities acquired includes, at
a minimum, an input and substantive processes and whether
the acquired set has the ability to produce outputs.

The cost of an acquisition is measured at the aggregate of
the acquisition-date fair value of assets transferred, liabilities
incurred and equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition-date fair
value. The Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss. The
Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, to
measure the non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at fair value or
at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other non-controlling interests are measured at
fair value unless another measurement basis is required by
HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ2—Z - —F+_-_F=+—HItFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.1

Business combination and basis of consolidation
(Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent
adjustments to consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new information
obtained within the measurement period (a maximum of
12 months from the acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests at
initial recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Non-controlling interests
are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity attributable to
owners of the Company. Profit or loss and each component
of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-controlling
interests even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interest
and the non-controlling interest are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling
interest is adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid
or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the gain or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i)
the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for on the
same basis as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Rt %5 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 - - —F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.2

4.3

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if all
three of the following elements are present: (i) power over the
investee, (i) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee, and (iii) the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if any.
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Foreign currencies translation

Transactions entered into by the consolidated entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end of
reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ2—Z - —F+_-_F=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.3

4.4

Foreign currencies translation (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the rates approximating to
those ruling when the transactions took place are used. All
assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the
rate ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as exchange reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate). Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate financial
statements on the translation of long-term monetary items
forming part of the Group’s net investment in the foreign
operation concerned are reclassified to other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the exchange reserve relating to that
operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit or
loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising are recognised in the exchange reserve.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation or for both, but not held for sale in the
ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. Investment
property is measured at cost on initial recognition and
subsequently at fair value with any change therein recognised
in profit or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property, calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 - - —F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised as expense in profit or loss during the year in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation on the following property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs
less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings 4%
Furniture and equipment 10% to 33%
Motor vehicles and vessels 6.67% to 33%
Marine travel facilities and equipment 6.67% to 20%

16.67%

Shorter of the assets’
useful life and the
lease term

Machineries and equipment
Right-of-use assets

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
reporting date.

The gain or loss arising from retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and is recognised in the profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ2—Z - —F+_-_F=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.5

4.6

4.7

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by an end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in revaluation reserve. On the
subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to accumulated
profits.

Properties held for sale and properties under development

Properties held for sale and properties under development
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises the leasehold land together with direct
costs attributable to the development of the properties and
borrowing costs capitalised during the period of development.

Properties held under development for future sale in the
ordinary course of business are included in current assets
and stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises the acquisition cost of land, aggregate cost of
development, materials and supplies, wages and other direct
expenses and an appropriate proportion of overheads. On
completion, the properties are transferred to properties held
for sale.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated costs of completion
and estimated selling expenses.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is determined using actual cost basis.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 - - —F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.8

4.9

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows
presentation, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, bank and cash balances comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, which are not restricted as
to use.

Financial instruments
(i)  Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without
a significant financing component) is initially measured
at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially
measured at the transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payment of principal and
interest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ2—Z - —F+_-_F=+—HItFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are two measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost. Financial assets at amortised cost
are subsequently measured using the effective interest
method. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

FVPL: Financial assets at FVPL include financial assets
held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at FVPL, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Financial assets with cash flows that are not solely
payments of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVPL, irrespective of the business model.
Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to
be classified at amortised cost, as described above,
debt instruments may be designated at FVPL on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & =

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not
held for trading, the Group could irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment'’s fair
value in other comprehensive income. This election is
made on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income are measured at fair value. Dividend income
are recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost
of the investments. Other net gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity instruments
are classified as FVPL, whereby changes in fair value,
dividends and interest income are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit loss (“ECL") on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. The ECL are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECL: these are the ECL
that result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECL:
these are ECL that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument. The
maximum period considered when estimating ECL is the
maximum contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’ original
effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ2—Z - —F+_-_F=+—HItFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group measured loss allowances for trade
receivables using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECL based on lifetime ECL.

For other debt financial assets, the ECL are based
on lifetime ECL except when there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition
and debt investment securities that are determined to
have low credit risk at the reporting date, in which case
the allowance will be based on the 12 months ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group's historical experience and informed
credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be in default
when the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit obligations
to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held); or the
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

E
Q0 | 2021 Annual Report FEHE

4,

FESHBE®)

49 ERTEWE)

(ii)

EREEREERE(E)

AEECDEREEMBREE
AIESRELEFER B REW
FIAME R G - Y ERIBR
RIEAEEEEAERAGE
B -

PREMEBEREEMNS @ &
HEEBRERREREES
BET - EREERR B VA
HEE 92 DA 2R 3 4 K 1R 2 0 Ko B
BIRER %##ﬁiaﬁﬁ%&f&m
REBEEERR - FULE)

T Hﬂ;ﬂzflﬂ%ﬁ,ﬁﬂﬁfﬂéﬂa
AHEEEE -

RETEREEEERRES
B ) 25 HE B IA SROA 8 4 o0 K% fiy
AHRBEEEER AREE
BETNERANKE NHFTIR
TEEHEBABNEEAEE
£ BRREAREBELR
REAMEEFGSHNEER
EUMERSIT - ARATELEE
£t e

AEBER -
AEEBI0R - B
&AW -

M—AEMEE
| EE SRR

REERTIBERTHESRE
ERBERN  EBATAREE
REBEMBRIER (WFH)
ETREERENBRATHA
SEBENHEERR : 3L
ZemEEBLBMA08 - K
FREBHEBEERAEER
BT —HEERBENENRER
AHiEAE R ©



Notes to the Financial Statements

Rt %5 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 - - —F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments,
the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual or a collective basis.
When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status and credit risk ratings.

The Group considers a financial asset to be credit-
impaired when:

° significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

° a breach of contract, such as a default or being
more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate;

o the restructuring of a loan or advance by the
Group on terms that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

° it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under
liguidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ2—Z - —F+_-_F=+—HItFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non credit-impaired financial assets, interest
income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at amortised costs are initially
measured at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including trade and
other payables, borrowings and asset-backed securities
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related interest expense
is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income or interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 & =

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with
the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group and not
designated as at FVPL is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contact at the higher of: (i) the
amount of the loss allowance, being the ECL provision
measured in accordance with the accounting policy set
out in note 4.9(ii); and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the principles of HKFRS
15.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation to
the financial asset expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets the criteria for
derecognition in accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expires.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ2—Z - —F+_-_F=+—HItFE

4,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Financial instruments (Continued)

(vii) Derecognition (Continued)

Where the Group issues its own equity instruments to
a creditor to settle a financial liability in whole or in part
as a result of renegotiating the terms of that liability,
the equity instruments issued are the consideration
paid and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the equity
instruments issued cannot be reliably measured, the
equity instruments are measured to reflect the fair value
of the financial liability extinguished. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability or
part thereof extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

4.10 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services,
excluding those amounts collected on behalf of third parties.
Revenue excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may be
transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the goods
or service is transferred over time if the Group's performance:

- provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

= creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls
as the Group performs; or

- does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. ETESTEER®

410 WHEERE)

4.10 Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time, revenue
is recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a
point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods
or service.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than
one year, revenue is measured at the present value of the
amounts receivable, discounted using the discount rate that
would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception. Where the
contract contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue recognised
under that contract includes the interest expense accreted
on the contract liability under the effective interest method.
For contracts where the period between the payment and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient
in HKFRS 15.

(i)  Sales of properties

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the
asset is transferred to the customer. Depending on
the terms of the contract and the laws that apply to
the contract, control of the asset may be transferred
over time or at a point in time. If properties have no
alternative use to the Group contractually and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment from the customers
for performance completed to date, the Group satisfies
the performance obligation over time and therefore,
recognises revenue over time in accordance with the
input method for measuring progress. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the completed property.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.10 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sales of properties (Continued)

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on the
Group's efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation, by reference to the contract
costs incurred up to the end of reporting period as a
percentage of total estimated costs for each contract.

For property development and sales contract for which
the control of the property is transferred at a point in
time, revenue is recognised when the customer obtains
the physical possession of the completed property.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effect of a
financing component if it is significant.

Sales of goods

Income from sales of goods is recognised at a point in
time when the goods are delivered to customers and
title has passed.

Service fees

Revenue from hotel operation, marine travelling
services fees and consultancy service income from
leasing arrangements are recognised when services are
rendered.

Rental

Rental income from operating leases of investment
properties and machineries and equipment is recognised
in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.10 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v) Interest

Interest income from loans receivable and other financial
assets measured at amortised cost is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset except for financial assets
that subsequently become credit-impaired. For credit-
impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset
(after deduction of the loss allowance).

(vi) Finance lease income

Finance lease income is recognised over the period
of lease. Revenue is recognised over the lease period
on a systematic and rational basis so as to produce a
constant periodic rate of return on the net investment in
the finance leases.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer that is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e.
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
services to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the customers retain
retention money to secure the due performance of the
contracts. Any amount previously recognised as a contract
asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which
it is invoiced to the customer. If the considerations (including
advances received from customers) exceeds the revenue
recognised to date under the output method then the Group
recognises a contract liability for the difference.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.10

4.12

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred to fulfil
a contract when those costs meet all of the following criteria:

(@) the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy)
performance obligations in the future; and

(c)  the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer
to the customer of the goods or services to which the cost
relate. The asset is subject to impairment review.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require a
substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Income
earned on temporary investments of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred
tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period. The amount of current tax payable
or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected
to be paid or received that reflects any uncertainty related to
income tax.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. ETESTEER®

4.12 FIEE(&)

4.12 Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts
used for tax purposes. Except for initial recognition of assets
and liabilities that are not part of the business combination
which affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised,
provided that the deductible temporary differences are not
arises from initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a
transaction other than in a business combination that affects
neither taxable profit nor the accounting profit. Deferred tax is
measured at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner
in which the carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised
or settled and that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period, and reflects any uncertainty
related to income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income tax levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle
its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

An exception to the general requirement in determining the
appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax amount
is when an investment property is carried at fair value under
HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless the presumption
is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts on these investment
properties are measured using the tax rates that would
apply on sale of these investment properties at their carrying
amounts at the reporting date. The presumption is rebutted
when the investment property is depreciable and is held within
a business model whose objective is to consume substantially
all of the economic benefits embodied in the property over
time, rather than through sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.12

4.13

Income taxes (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are also
recognised directly in equity.

Leasing
Accounting as a lessee

All leases are required to be capitalised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist for an entity to
choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases
and/or (ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of low-value.
The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for leases for which at the commencement
date have a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have been expensed
on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost and would
comprise: (i) the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability (see below for the accounting policy to account
for lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made at or before
the commencement date less any lease incentives received;
(ili) any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. Except for right-of-use
asset that meets the definition of an investment property, the
Group measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost model.
Under the cost model, the Group measures the right-to-use
assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liability. For right-of-use asset that meets the definition
of an investment property (see note 4.4), they are carried at
fair value.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Leasing (Continued)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset (Continued)

The Group accounts for leasehold land and buildings that are
held for rental or capital appreciation purpose under HKAS 40
and are carried at fair value. The Group accounts for leasehold
land and buildings which is held for own use under HKAS
16 and are carried at depreciated cost. Other than the above
right-of-use assets, the Group also has leased a number
of properties under tenancy agreements which the Group
exercises its judgement and determines that it is a separate
class of asset apart from the leasehold land and buildings
which is held for own use. As a result, the right-of-use asset
arising from the properties under tenancy agreements are
carried at depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-use the underlying
asset during the lease term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are considered to be
lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable; (ii) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable by
the lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise
price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group measures
the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying amount
to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii) reducing the
carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made; and (iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect any reassessment
or lease modifications, or to reflect revised in substance fixed
lease payments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13 Leasing (Continued)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term of any
lease (because, for example, it re-assesses the probability
of a lessee extension or termination option being exercised),
it adjusts the carrying amount of the lease liability to reflect
the payments to make over the revised term, which are
discounted using a revised discount rate. An equivalent
adjustment is made to the carrying value of the right-of-use
asset, with the revised carrying amount being amortised over
the remaining (revised) lease term. If the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset is adjusted to zero, any further reduction
is recognised in profit or loss.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual terms of a lease
with the lessor, if the renegotiation results in one or more
additional assets being leased for an amount commensurate
with the standalone price for the additional rights-of-use
obtained, the modification is accounted for as a separate
lease, in all other cases, where the renegotiated increases the
scope of the lease (whether that is an extension to the lease
term, or one or more additional assets being leased), the lease
liability is remeasured using the discount rate applicable on the
modification date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted
by the same amount. With the exception to which the practical
expedient for Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions applies,
if the renegotiation results in a decrease in the scope of the
lease, both the carrying amount of the lease liability and right-
of-use asset are reduced by the same proportion to reflect
the partial or full termination of the lease with any difference
recognised in profit or loss. The lease liability is then further
adjusted to ensure its carrying amount reflects the amount of
the renegotiated payments over the renegotiated term, with
the modified lease payments discounted at the rate applicable
on the modification date and the right- of-use asset is adjusted
by the same amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. ETESTEER®

4.13 Leasing (Continued) 413 HE(EB)

Accounting as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the leased assets to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The Group has leased out its investment properties and
machineries under property, plant and equipment to a number
of tenants. Rental income from operating leases is recognised
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount
of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on the
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded
as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment
in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on
the Group's net investment outstanding in respect of the
leases.

Any changes in the scope of the consideration of a lease that
was not part of the original terms and conditions of the lease
are accounted for as lease modifications.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to
the original lease as part of the lease payments for the new
lease.

The Group accounts for a change in the lease payments of a
finance lease as a lease modification, that is not accounted for
as a separate lease, in accordance with the requirements of
HKFRS 9. If the change represents a substantial modification,
the finance lease receivables of the original lease are
derecognised and a derecognition gain or loss calculated
using the revised lease payments discounted at the revised
discount rate is recognised in profit or loss on the date of the
modification. If the change does not represent a substantial
modification, the Group continues to recognise the finance
lease receivables in which such carrying amount will be
calculated at the present value of the modified contractual cash
flows discounted at the related receivables’ original discount
rate. Any adjustment to the carrying amount is recognised in
profit or loss at the effective date of modification.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.13

4.14

4.15

Leasing (Continued)
Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements of HKFRS 15 to assess
whether sale and leaseback transaction constitutes a sale by
the Group.

For a transfer of asset that does not satisfy the requirements
of HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale of asset, the Group
as a buyer-lessor does not recognise the transferred asset and
recognises a loan receivable equal to the transfer proceeds
within the scope of HKFRS 9.

For a transfer of asset that satisfies the requirements of
HKFRS 15 to be accounted for as a sale of asset, the Group as
a buyer-lessor accounts for the purchase of the asset applying
applicable standards, and for the lease applying the lessor
accounting requirements in accordance with HKFRS 16.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation
arising as a result of a past event, which will probably result
in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably
estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, the existence of which will only be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Employee benefits

Payments to the defined contribution retirement benefits
schemes are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 - - —F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.15

4.16

Employee benefits (Continued)
Retirement benefits (Continued)

The Group participates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(the "MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement benefit plan and contributions to the
scheme are made based on a percentage of the employees’
relevant income.

The employees of the Company'’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with
a corresponding increase in equity (the employee share-based
compensation reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
employee share-based compensation reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in employee share-based compensation reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised
at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in
the employee share-based compensation reserve will be
transferred to accumulated profits.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ2—Z - —F+_-_F=+—HItFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.16 Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

4.17

Share award scheme

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in the employee share-based
compensation reserves in equity, over the period in which
the granted conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting
date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The income statement expense or credit for a period
represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised
as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in
employee benefits expense.

When the share award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately.

Impairment losses of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment, deposits paid and interests in
subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing. At the end of
each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of these assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists or may
have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, to the extent that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows
expected to be derived from the asset, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset or cash generating unit.

N
1 06/I 2021 Annual Report FEHRE

4.

FESHBE®)

4.16

4.17

RGO BERZNRRS (B)
B 17 Rt &

BRBEERXHZHA - ERIARD
X E S B2 2 AR I #L A9
BUHSEIETHEANER - 2
BzrEERE B - SR ERE
EXGMERZ ReTERIIRRE
BHERZEERAEEHR &KL
EEzRET ABE I KEMRET -
HAkEXERARGFAZERIK
RZHO R RAER R EN
ZEPHRNETENEAANER

i B A7 S BY B - S E R A E R ER
JH B R - 357 B R AR R RE AR
ZAERER -

FEMEEREFE

ME - BEREE  ENREEN
B B B 2 4 19 A 1T RUE R
A REBESHR  AREERX
SEENERAESE  UBEEREHA
TR RBRZEEECSRTRE
EBRACAERNBEBERTERT
EHABEE R o

find & 2 2 AT U Bl 5 58 (BN LA & SR
HEXAEFREEREPT ZRS
B)EFHEREREE @ MIBEEZK
HEREEETEOSHE - RER
BRI HER AR

HWREBEREKRELD  BEZK
HEEMEELENRGHT 2T EE
TH MERMRZREETBEBZ
BENBEFENL BERRERFHE
IREETE < RMEE © RERBIER
Ol BN RIE R P RERR o

EREEDNREBMREEENDG
AARRBREEREBEE BHURRE
BEREE RTINS IENA RS
BEXRRSELBMBE T ZBA
FEIRRBEIREHIRE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Rt %5 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 - - —F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.17

4.18

Impairment losses of non-financial assets (Continued)

Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating
unit). A portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(for example, head office building) is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if the allocation can be done on a
reasonable and consistent basis, or to the smallest group
of cash-generating units if otherwise. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated
to the cash-generating unit (or group of units) and then, to
reduce the carrying amount of the other assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group's business
components and for their review of the performance of
those components. The business components in the internal
financial information reported to the executive directors are
determined following the Group's major products and service
lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable segments:

- Leasing — providing leasing services including finance
lease, sale and leaseback and operating lease services;

- Bulk commodity trade — trading of steel and chemical
products;

- Property development and investment — holding land for
property development projects, providing rental services
and holding investment properties for appreciation; and

- Marine recreation services and hotel — providing marine
recreation, hotel and travel agency services.

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the products and service lines requires different
resources as well as marketing approaches.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.18

4.19

Segment reporting (Continued)

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those used
in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs. Segment
results represent the results from each segment without
allocation of results generated by head office and the inactive
subsidiaries, directors’ emoluments, fair value changes of
investment properties and gain on disposal of subsidiaries.
This is the measure reported to the chief operating decision
maker for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Segment assets include all assets other than assets held
by head office and the inactive subsidiaries (mainly include
other financial assets and bank balances and cash) and
other unallocated assets that are not directly attributable to
reportable segments. Segment liabilities exclude borrowings
and other unallocated liabilities incurred by head office and
the inactive subsidiaries (mainly include other payables and
deferred tax liabilities) that are not directly attributable to
reportable segments.

Segment assets of property investment segment include
investment properties but segment results exclude the related
fair value changes for the years.

Segment results do not include income tax expense, while
segment liabilities include the current and deferred taxation
except for those recognised by the head office and the
inactive subsidiaries.

Save as the aforementioned, no asymmetrical allocations have
been applied to reportable segments.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable and are recognised as other
revenue, rather than reducing the related expense.

2021 Annual Report FE#HRE

4.

FESHBE®)

4.18

4.19

BB\ E ()

AEBRBER BT IKHRELE
BIER2H o %S \ZE'I'EBZ

REBEMERELENRRE 2 1

WMENRKBEMRR - DEHXELRR

J%s%ﬁ

/\/\

DERBENHERRTERNEA
AZRE EFEHE REWMEZ

RFEEHRHENB R R 2 KR
Al SN BZEF - WWHRAEEZ
BRREBSZFAETA - UES
FLEIRMFHARE

DREERRKANERERTIERE
MEARCEE(XFESHMERE

%&ﬁ?{ﬁ EERES) REMIETE

ROBEEERMEOADEEEING
ﬁﬁﬁéﬁ? DEEBETBREEEMN
LI 2o EEEERGENEANSE
BRENERMBARELENHEME
NERBE(EZSHMBENKERE
EFHBEER) -

MERBENBRZONREERRRE

W A5 REETRIEENAH
AFEED -
DEEETREMEHRAL - D

BRABRIERENBAMREERE A
M ER KT RBRE A RRER
BRN o

BEXPIRES  AEHE
KA EEREZ R -

wo M

BT R BY

BB~ THRBAEEN A ERE
REE R E T HM W R BB ES
BN o

IR 8 B T 1A 7S 5 1) % Jik i 5L 1O 4R
BRAER RN HARRRGE
HERBEHMER ©

EREELRX BB ZAEERR]
[F) 2N 5% [ e {1t B B B 765 S 4 (S 4 B
&AABEAA) W H BT FEBY - R
R UG IR AEC NI S R
I 3R A% oAl e 25 T FR R > AR RE A
% o



Notes to the Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.20 Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Company;

has significant influence over the Company; or

is a member of key management personnel of the
Company or the Company'’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Company or to the Company's
parent.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.20 Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i)~ children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
Such estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

5.1 Fair value of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have based on a method
of valuation which involves certain estimates of market
condition. In relying on the valuation report, the directors of
the Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied
that the assumptions used in the valuation are reflective of
the current market conditions. Changes to these assumptions
would result in changes in the fair values of the Group's
investment properties and the corresponding adjustments to
the amount of gain or loss reported in the consolidated income
statement.

R
110 | 2021 Annual Report FERE

4.

FESHBE®
420 BEAERS (B

AALOOBRREKERERER
REHGEHRAZEZALRRZZA
THENKKKE - B

()  BALOFIREBREEHF
fa

(i) BMALHEBXFAEFENHTF
2z R

(i) ZALHZALHEBLRE
HEEEEA -

FEENCEESE Jede -3 9

NERAEEY G ERES  EEAHE
AR A EN EERA 2 FEE
EATHIN - R R -

st RAARI B R R R TR - Hest
{5t 2 AT I RMEEHE AT AR (R AT 8 3
2 3% 5109 3% 5 8T HR 5k SR AR (s 2T
F ARG R AR R -

AEBRARKELEBE RBRR - ZF
AEt RERBRRDREEAELRIERR
Rz EMERMEL - BERHEFHAR]
RIEETEIF TRl ™ — @M BEFE
BEMABREEERBFEHARRAEZ
BERRER EE RER

51 REWEZATE

REWMETRBY XA EMEST
ZIEEARFEIIR - EEAF
B - BEMKEBEZGEEDESR
ETHMRZhE - EERBEER
28 ARRERCTREAE
A EREERBZERENRBR
BRMN - ZFBEAIEEEEH
AEBREMERIFEZLZE
WA BERANTEHR Was
KBRS BELAREAE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Rt %5 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 - - —F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

5.2

5.3

5.4

Estimated net realisable value on inventories of properties

In determining whether allowances should be made for
the Group's inventories of properties, the Group takes into
consideration the current market environment, the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated
costs to completion of the properties, the sales performance in
previous years and estimated market value of the properties,
i.e. the estimated selling price less estimated costs of selling.
An allowance is made if the estimated selling price is less
than the carrying amount. If the actual net realisable value on
inventories of properties is less than expected as a result of
change in market condition and/or significant variation in the
budgeted development cost, material allowance may result.

Impairment allowance on financial assets and finance
lease receivables

The measurement of impairment losses under HKFRS 9 across
all categories of financial assets and finance lease receivables
requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of the
amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values
when determining impairment losses and the assessment
of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are
driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in
different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures since
initial recognition by comparing the risk of default occurring
over the expected life between the reporting date and the
date of initial recognition. The Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative
and qualitative information and also, forward-looking analysis.

Valuation of financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

The fair value of financial assets designated as at fair value
through other comprehensive income that are not traded
in an active market is based on the valuation performed
by independent professional valuers. In determining the
fair value, the valuers have based on variety of methods
and makes assumptions that are mainly based on market
conditions existing at each reporting date. In relying on the
valuation report, the directors of the Company have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the assumptions used
in the valuation are reflective of the current market conditions.
Changes to these assumptions could affect the reported fair
values of these financial assets. Further details are contained
in note 40 to the financial statements.
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(Continued)

5.5

5.6

5.7

Estimated provision for inventories

In determining the amount of allowance required for obsolete
and slow-moving inventories, the Group would evaluate
ageing analysis of inventories and compare the carrying
value of inventories to their respective net realisable value. A
considerable amount of judgement is required in determining
such allowance. If conditions which have impact on the net
realisable value of inventories deteriorate, additional allowance
may be required.

Depreciation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and equipment in
accordance with the accounting policies stated in note 4.5.
The estimated useful lives reflect the directors’ estimates of
the periods that the Group intends to derive future economic
benefits from the use of these assets.

Estimated impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting date. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. For the purposes of impairment testing,
assets are allocated to its respective cash-generating units.
Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether the carrying
amount of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
or value in use; and (ii) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in preparing cash flow projections including
whether these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate.

N
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Rt %5 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 - - —F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
who are the chief operating decision makers for the purpose of
resources allocation and assessment of performance, is the financial
information of the Group as a whole as reported under HKFRSs.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the presentation of
reportable segments of the Group is revised as detailed below as
the Group’s chief operating decision makers believe the current
reportable segments could provide better summary to them in
reviewing the Group's operating performance and making decision
in resource allocation. Accordingly, the comparative segment
information has been re-presented to conform to current year's
presentation.

The Group's operations in relation to property development and
property investment which were presented as separate reportable
segments in the prior years are considered as a single operating
segment by the Group’s chief operating decision makers in the
current year. Accordingly, the information of these operations has
been aggregated into a single reportable segment which is reported
as "property development and investment” for segment reporting.

The Group's reportable segments for financial reporting purpose
have been re-presented as follows:

(1) Leasing — providing leasing services including finance lease,
sale and leaseback and operating lease services

(2)  Bulk commodity trade — trading of steel and chemical products
(3)  Property development and investment — holding land for
property development projects, providing rental services and

holding investment properties for appreciation

(4)  Marine recreation services and hotel — providing marine
recreation, hotel and travel agency services
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER®
Segment revenue and results PEWEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by INTARKBIERENBRE S 2 Wam R
reportable segment: BT
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-—E-—F+-F=+—HULEFE
Property Marine
Bulk development recreation
commaodity and services
Leasing trade  investment and hotel Total
NEBRR BLRERS
HE KXFBRES RRE B st

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BBTT BETT BBTT

Turnover as presented in GAERERENNZEEE

consolidated income statement 314,693 755,431 80,175 22,380 1,172,679
Results B4
Segment results (note (a)) PEEE W) 197,270 3,623 21,181 (22,717) 199,357
Fair value loss on investment BEMEZ A TERE

properties (note (b)) (W77 (b) (1,656)
Unallocated finance costs RABREKK (4,738)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBLERT (42,364)
Unallocated corporate income ADBEEERA 19,213
Profit before income tax BRETEEAT R A 169,812

N
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. ZEER®
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PTHEKREREE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued) BE-—E-_—F+-_F=+—HUHEFEEE)
Property Marine
Bulk development recreation
commodity and services
Leasing trade  investment and hotel  Unallocated Total
NEBE BLRBRY
HE AFBRES kK& NBE LS @t

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERTR ERTR ERTR ERTR ERTR ERTR

Notes: Wit -

{a) Amounts included in the measure () sF AN BEEHEC S8
of segment results

Interest income from depositsand ~~ ERREMEBEE L

other financial assets KA 6,364 1 381 2 5,793 12,563
Depreciation e (23,197) (13) (15) (13,670) (6,043) (42,938)
Interest expenses (included in B EH GrAKERA)

costs of revenue) (58,103) - - - - (58,103)
Finance costs BERK - (1,491) - (132) (4,738) (6,361)
Loss on disposal of property, LENE  BRRIRE

plant and equipment BB - - - (5) - (5)

(o) Amount regularly provided to the ~ (b) KERE B 2B RRER
chief operating decision makers HAz A BRRL
for the analysis of the segment's £
performance

Fair value loss on investment REMEC A TERE
properties - - (1,656) - - (1,656)

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Rt %5 3R &= B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

6. 7EER®

TERERFEEE)

BE_ZE_FEF+_A=+—HILEE

Property
development Marine
Bulk and recreation
commodity investment services
Leasing trade (Re-presented) and hotel Total
MEERER 8 LRERE
HE ATERES BEEE)) B o)
HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETFT BEFT JBETFT BT BETFT
Turnover as presented in BERERENN EEE
consolidated income statement 146,270 677,891 90,701 16,826 931,688
Results E4
Segment results (note (a)) DEEEM () 121,642 2,066 25,769 (45,927) 103,550
Fair value loss on investment REWMFE 2 AT EBE
properties (note (b)) (H77£(b) (11,125)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARZ WS 50,229
Unallocated finance costs RABBEKK (2,795)
Unallocated corporate expenses ROBELERT (43,945)
Unallocated corporate income AOEEERA 62,166
Profit before income tax BRAT1E T AR A

158,080

\
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 7EER®
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PTHEKREREE(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Continued) BE-—S_FTHFL+-_F=+—HULEFEEHE)
Property
development Marine
Bulk and recreation
commodity investment services
Leasing trade  (Re-presented) and hotel  Unallocated Total
NERER 8 LRERE
HE ATEARES REEE]) MERE RAE a3t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
AETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

Notes: Wit -

(a) Amounts included in the measure () st AN BEEHEC 8
of segment results

Interest income from depositsand ~~ ERREMEBEE L

other financial assets MEKA 1,264 9 326 27 19,174 20,800
Depreciation bk 2,088) 9 (26) (15,500) (5,982) 23,605)
Impairment losses on property, %k BERRECAE

plant and equipment B - - - (19,012) - (19,012)
Finance costs RERA (4517) (696) - (204) 2,795) (8.212)

Gain/lloss) on disposal of property,  LENE  BERREZ
plant and equipment it/ (B8 = = = 3,366 (15) 3,351

{b) Amount regularly provided tothe  (b) FEREELERRER
chief operating decision makers #ANzABRRL
for the analysis of the segment's k2

performance
Fair value loss on investment RENFE DT EEE

properties - - (11,125) - - (11,125)
Unallocated corporate income mainly comprised net exchange gain ROBEPEMAEZZBEET Ka
and interest income from deposits and related parties (2020: net FRKRBTFRREER 2 ER
exchange gain and interest income from deposits and other financial ANZEZZF - EHRZFER
assets) which are not directly attributable to the business activities REGFREEMEREE 2F B U
of any operating segment. A WTNEEBBNMEMKED R

HETERE o

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER®
Segment revenue and results (Continued) PTREKREREE(E)
Unallocated corporate expenses mainly comprised depreciation, APEECXFATTERRERE  A5EE
staff costs and legal and professional expenses of the Group's HHWEBTIRAAREZREREERSY - TR
headquarter which are not directly attributable to the business BEERBMIKE S ENEREY -

activities of any operating segment.

Segment assets and liabilities PTEEERAE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities by NTAREENEERBBRBEDEZ
reportable segment: DT
2021 2020
(Re-presented)
—E-—fF —ETF
(&E=75)
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k=3 BT T BT T
Segment assets DEEE
Leasing HE 7,152,014 2,474,732
Bulk commodity trade AREmES 78,269 59,479
Property development and MEZRRIEE
investment (a) 461,773 446,426
Marine recreation services and hotel /& _F ik IR A1AE I 183,486 186,292
Total segment assets NEEERE 7,875,542 3,166,929
Unallocated RAER
- other financial assets - HthSmEE 81,508 118,936
- bank balances and cash - IRITEF RS 120,670 530,064
- other unallocated assets - HihRDEEE 90,086 90,818
Consolidated assets REEE 8,167,806 3,906,747

R
11 8//I 2021 Annual Report FE#RE



Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

Rt %5 3R & B 5

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER @)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PTEEERABGEH)
2021 2020
(Re-presented)
—E-—-F —TETF
(#EE7)
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Segment liabilities NEEE
Leasing e 4,183,651 383,969
Bulk commodity trade AREmES 63,669 48,201
Property development and investment YR RIEE 237,644 248,313
Marine recreation services and hotel AR RS AR TS 42,950 42,622
Total segment liabilities NEEER 4,527,914 723,105
Bank borrowings RITEE 460,319 160,000
Other unallocated liabilities Bt ARDBLAE 37,871 38,373
Consolidated liabilities LeEaRE 5,026,104 921,478
Note: Htat -
(a) Segment assets of property development and investment segment include (@) %%%E &&ﬁ“* ZABRBERERE

investment properties but segment results exclude the related fair value
loss of HK$1,656,000 (2020: HK$11,125,000) for the year.

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating
resources between segments:

o all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
assets held by head office and the inactive subsidiaries; and

° all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
borrowings and liabilities incurred by head office and the
inactive subsidiaries.

ME BHYEEETOEFANEBERAFE
Es%a/%w 656,000TC (=T = F : B
11,125,0007T) °

REESBEXRBENDBEREIEER

s KRANBERTERNBEARFA
ZEES MBEEASEEZRE
/'\yl-g &

e KBEeNEEETEERMBAREL
ZIEERBEIN  FFEABHNK
EREDHE -

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. oEERM®
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) PTEEERBGEH)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE-—F-—F1-A=+—HALFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment assets: FFADHEESNEZ R ¢

Property Marine
Bulk development recreation
commodity and services
Leasing trade  investment and hotel  Unallocated Total
NERE BLRERY
HE AZBRES kK& NEE KB @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
VL VL VL VL V- VL

Additions to non-current assets REFRBEE
[other than financial assets) (SREERIN 2,642 12 39 2,202 28 4923
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE-—ZE-_FF+-HF=1+—HULEFE
Amounts included in the measure of segment assets: AADHEENECRE
Property
development Marine
Bulk and recreation
commodity investment services
Leasing trade  (Re-presented) and hotel  Unallocated Total
NEER
REE  BLRERE
g AFBmES (mE75) MAE RAR st

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BEFTL BEFTL BEFTL BEFTL BEFT BEFT

Additions to non-current assets REETRYELE
(other than financial assets) (SREERMN 123438 61 254 787 58 124,598

\
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. 7EER®
Other segment information Hittn@ER
Geographical information of revenue from external customers is RENBERE 2 Wz om &R TIIRER
based on the location of the customers and the geographical location FErEimE FERDEE (2RI AR
of the non-current assets (other than financial instruments) is based INZHBUEIRIEZEEECERUE
on the physical location of the assets. MiE °
Non-current assets
Revenue from (other than financial
external customers instruments)
REIFEEZ W= FRBEE(EBIERM)
2021 2020 2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF —E-—fF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Hong Kong BB 453,260 93,557 2,040 4,897
The PRC Fh 457,287 593,370 404,586 428,919
Others Hfth 262,132 244,761 - =
1,172,679 931,688 406,626 433,816

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing

RIEEFEEAREBLEEEI0%A LK

over 10% of the total turnover of the Group are as follows: EFEERBOBALT :
2021 2020
—E-—-F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Customer A EFEA n/a
366,587 i A
Customer B ®FB n/a
176,968 TiEA

For the year ended 31 December 2021, both customer A and B are
from bulk commodity trade business.

BE_ZT_—Ft+t-_A=+—HLFE-
EFAMBHOREAREME HE °

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

6.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s turnover from

major products and services:

—F -t A=t+-BLFE

=

TEER @

TXEINAREREEZEMERE 2 Z

KBZDHIRRM

2021 2020
—E-—-F —TETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Sales of properties HEWE 78,410 89,709
Consultancy service income from leasing HE L2 i RRBUA
arrangements 86,648 41,736
Bulk commodity trade AREmES 755,431 677,891
Marine recreation services and hotel & - AR 0E AR 7S AR T 22,380 16,826
Revenue from contract with customers REEREAN WS 942,869 826,162
Rental income from investment properties R EBREWEMNHES U A 1,765 992
Rental income under operating lease BB ERMN B ECEHER
in respect of owned machineries and THESWKA
equipment 34,980 4,606
Interest income from loans receivable FEURE T2 F B U 189,989 99,928
Finance lease income MEMESEWA 3,076 -
1,172,679 931,688
OTHER INCOME 7. HiWA
2021 2020
B T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest income from: REANUTEE ZFBHWA -
- deposits and other financial assets -EFRRkEMESREE 12,563 20,800
- related parties - &R 2,868 2,329
Fair value gain on other financial assets RATEF ARG EMESREE
measured at FVPL 2 N FEEWES 161 669
Government subsidies (note) iSRGz 503 1,252
Exchange gain, net B 5 a5 2 9,927 39,463
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREMEZ WS 360 =
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BB R&EZ K
equipment - 3,351
Others Eh 2,706 2,174
29,088 70,038

\
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Rt %5 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

OTHER INCOME (Continued) 7. HMBAwm
Note: Htat -
For the year ended 31 December 2021, HK$503,000 (2020: HK$423,000) are BE-_T-_—F+-_RA=+—RHILFEE A%
government grants obtained from Mainland local government supporting the 503,0007C(ZZE =T : B 15423,0007T) /I A
tourism business. The Group has complied with the requirements set out by the EHBATEE A F IR X BN BUNFEE) - NEER
local government for the year ended 31 December 2021. REBE-ZE-—F+-A=1+—RLEFEEREITE
BT HIE 2 RE °
For the year ended 31 December 2020, among the government subsidies, BE-Z-_ZTF+-_A=+—RALLTFE  BF@EH
HK$486,000 are government grants obtained from the Employment Support E‘:F'%’%486,00070,\%%%'fHE‘JﬁEﬁZEE{ﬁE’JVJr
Scheme (“ESS") under the Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the Government of B2 TRBEEFS(RBESEDREAERY
the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region supporting the payroll of the Group's HEEF SO - BERMEENE - AEEE X
employees. Under the ESS, the Group had to commit to spend these grants on HERZSAIEAFTSAY - WERTERFRAT
payroll expenses, and not to reduce employee head count below prescribed levels H—r@%f@/\%@ﬁ CERTENRFLAT o REBREZE
for a specified period of time. The Group has complied with the requirements set T_EF+-A=+T—HILFEEBITHEBRR
out in the ESS for the year ended 31 December 2020. %ﬁ'%z%ﬂm °
FINANCE COSTS 8. ®MEMRAK
2021 2020
—E-—% —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEZFE 23,916 10,210
Interest on asset-backed securities BEXHEESZNE 41,720 -
Interest on loan from related parties RKEBEFERZHE 1,113 1,098
Interest on lease liabilities HEAENE 255 435
67,004 11,743
Less: SRl
Amounts capitalised on properties under BRPVMECBIEENMEzZ 5
development (2,540) (3,531)
Amounts included in costs of revenue AR AR 2 &5
— Interest on bank borrowings - RITEEZFE (16,383) -
— Interest on asset-backed securities - BEXRBEIEFZNE (41,720) -
6,361 8,212

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of 2.14% (2020:
3.0%) per annum.

BEERRDIEFENE214%(ZE-TF :
3.0%) &AL ©

S
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

9.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided in accordance with two-
tiered profits tax rate regime, whereby the first HK$2,000,000 of
assessable profits of the qualifying corporation is taxed at 8.25%
and the assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 are taxed at 16.5%
for both years. The assessable profits of other subsidiaries in Hong
Kong are taxed at 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT"”) and
Implementation Regulation, the PRC subsidiaries are subject to a
tax rate of 25%. The current tax also comprised land appreciation
tax (“"LAT") which is estimated in accordance with the requirements
set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. LAT has been
provided at ranges of progressive rates of the appreciation value,
with certain allowable deductions.

FrEBiF

RREFEFR  HFEMNESHEBEANSG
FmREELHRE AERCEESY
2,000,0007T 2 & &3 5 i A1l 8 428.25 % 2 7
RetE - MiB@AE2,000,0007T 2 FERRL
i F A5 1R 16.5% 2 K E - HMHEA
AN BB Z ERTEFIR16.5% 2 B K&t

= o
AP

REFHECEMEHR(EEMRBHRIER
EEMSTOEBRIGD - - BB R EHR
T25% ° BVEABL A N B 15 1 3 3R (A
(T BER ) - THIBEHTIRIEEE
REIBOE R ARPIFTE < R b Et - LI
EVEREERCREVXEERE - B
BETHHRER -

2021 2020
—E-—-F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
The taxation charge comprises: HEZ HeHE
Current tax for the year: ARFEENERRIE ¢
Hong Kong Profits Tax BENEH 393 126
PRC EIT RIS 50,816 30,633
PRC LAT AR £ Hh IR (E R 5,919 5,930
57,128 36,689
Over-provision in prior years: BEFEEREES -
Hong Kong Profits Tax ERENET (10) -
57,118 36,689
Deferred tax (note 32) RIERIA (Y 732) 7,002 430
Income tax expense FriSfiB 2 64,120 37,119

N
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Reconciliation between income tax expense and accounting profit at

Notes to the Financial Statements
MERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

9. FEHAX®

BERBEAEZMERASRE S

applicable tax rates: ZHERWOT
2021 2020
—E-—-F —TETF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Profit before income tax B P45 B B s 169,812 158,080
Tax calculated at PRC EIT rate of 25% RHBE R EMEHE25%
(2020: 25%) (ZZEZTF : 25%)itE
A 42,453 39,520
Effect of different tax rates of group entities TEBR R BISNE Ath Bl A RE [
operating in jurisdictions other than the PRC B EBERE 2 TRBE
2 (536) (8,358)
PRC LAT FE t b IR E R 5,919 5,930
Tax effect on LAT THIRET 2 MG E (1,480) (1,483)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax MR AT IR S 2
purposes B e 8,768 5,217
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BERBA 2 BRI 72
purposes (588) (16,557)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERRIBEIB 2 S & 575 6,827
Tax effect of temporary difference not REREFEEE o RBTE
recognised (5) 3,317
Tax effect of tax losses utilised during the year FRACBERHIEEEZ
MGTE (146) (505)
Withholding tax from interest income M BUWA Z B 2,531 -
Withholding tax for undistributed profits of PRC BB A Az & H B F 2
subsidiaries B 6,639 3,211
Over-provision in prior years W FERERE (10) =
Income tax expense FrisfiA X 64,120 37,119

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. FRERF
2021 2020
—B-—-fF —EEF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Profit for the year is arrived at after charging/ FREFEMRRGEA)
(crediting):
Auditor’s remuneration ZE R BN &
- audit services - FFT R 1,250 1,070
- non-audit services - IEERT R 360 360
1,610 1,430
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #1% - BiE RRHEZITE 42,948 23,614
Less: Amounts capitalised on properties under & : EEFRYPEZ
development BIEERN bz &% (10) 9
42,938 23,605
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes — RAKAE 521
(including directors’ emoluments) (BRESH:) 12,011 6,902
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) BETIRA(RRESZMHE) 58,048 60,093
Total staff costs 8 TR AR 45T 70,059 66,995
Less: Amounts capitalised on properties under & @ EREFEZ
development BIEER Lz (1,821) (1,622)
68,238 65,373
Cost of inventories sold (included in costs of FEIHERA G AL A)
revenue) 815,061 725,344
Exchange gain, net P& 5 U0 a0 F 58 (9,927) (39,463)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and HEWME  BERREZ
equipment [ VACE) 5 (3,351)
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME 2 Was (360) -
Impairment losses on property, plant and M - BERREZREEBE
equipment - 19,012
Impairment losses on financial assets SREERBEEBE 11,831 824
Direct operating expenses arising from RIEEMEEEZ
investment properties BEELERX 264 119

™
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MERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S 11. EERESREEEHS
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEZM<
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section 383 RIBE B LG FE622F5F 1A wlEKH
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.622) and the F383MER BB ENIE622GE AT
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of (BRESMREMRIELE 2EE
Directors) Regulation (Cap.622G) (the Regulation) are as MEETLT
follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BE—FE-—F+-H=1+—HI
FE
Lee Man
Zhang Wang Li Yang Chang Chun,

Bin  Tianlin Shufang Tianzhou Qing Tony He Jia Total
®E OIXRR O EHR BEN F  ZE2 i At
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BETFT BETT EETr BT BETT BEFn BETT BETn
(note (a)) (note (b))
(Wit(a) (HizE(b))

Fees we - - - - 360 360 360 1,080
Salaries e - - 732 - - - - 732
Contribution to retirement  R(RIBFIEH 2
benefits schemes R - - 12 - - - - 12
Total emoluments BHe - - 744 - 360 360 360 1,824
For the year ended 31 December 2020 BHE—_ZE-_TF1+-HA=+—HI
FE
Lee Man
Zhang Wang Li Yang Chang Chun,

Bin Tianlin ~ Shufang  Tianzhou Qing Tony He Jia Total
®E - ERR FEER BEMN ®E  FER e At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
BETT BEFT BETr BEFrT BT BETrT BEFr BRI

Fees e - - - - 360 360 360 1,080
Salaries E = = 1,036 = = = = 1,036
Contribution to retirement  RKEFIHE

benefits schemes (e = = 18 = = = = 18
Total emoluments ape = = 1,054 = 360 360 360 2,134

—
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MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S 11
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes:

(a) Mr. Wang Tianlin has resigned as an executive director with effect
from 3 December 2021.

(b) Mr. Li Shufang has resigned as an executive director with effect
from 9 September 2021.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, four executive
directors of the Company, namely Mr. Zhang Bin, Mr.
Wang Tianlin, Mr. Li Shufang and Mr. Yang Tianzhou,
had waived their directors’ fees of HK$180,000 (2020:
HK$360,000), HK$120,000 (2020: HK$240,000), HK$120,000
(2020: HK$240,000) and HK$120,000 (2020: HK$240,000)
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, an executive
director of the Company, Mr. Zhang Bin, had waived his salary
of approximately HK$400,000.

(b) Five highest paid individuals

No (2020: one) director of the Company was included in the
five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021. The emoluments of the five (2020: four)
highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 December 2021
were as follows:

. EEREREERN=®

(a)

(b)

EEHE (B

(a) FRREEEHEINTESHS 8
T —F+-_A=R4EK -

b) FHFRELEHRERNTESERS 8
—E-—FAANARER -

BE-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—8H1t
FE - ARBOMAITEFRE %L
ECITRHFREE  ZTHEHREER
BHMNLIEEREREZBVE D
Bl 475 1#180,000 (ZE T4 ¢
75 #360,0007T) * ¥ 120,0007T
(ZZT T4 : B¥240,0007T) °
BEE120,000L(ZE T F  BK
240,0007T) K& %120,00070 (ZZE =
T4 : B¥240,0000T) °

HE_ZT-_ZTF+_-_A=+—H1t
FE ARR—UATESTREL
4 B IREE TS #)78%400,0007T ©

EEREFMAL

BE-_ZTZ-_—F+-A=+—H"
MECZTZEF : —R)ARAES
AL EBREERHAL - &
E-_E-_—#+-A=+—H" &
Z(CEZTF - mRBR)EEFHMAL
ZHEmT

2021 2020

—E-—-F —TETF

HK$000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Salaries and other benefits e kHEMmEF 3,616 3,122

Performance-based bonus ER R 3,362 640
Contributions to retirement benefits R FIFHEI B3R

schemes 986 72

7,964 3,834

R
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Rt %5 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

11. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b)
The emoluments of five (2020: four) highest paid individuals

who are not directors of the Company were within the
following bands:

11. EERERE

EEME@®

TEBREFMAL(E)

a2 G
EEr R
EEVINE

T_TF R WIEAR
=SHMA L ZEE N ?T’J‘U

Number of individuals

ABHA
2021 2020
—E-—F s
Nil to HK$1,000,000 B Z T 28 %1,000,0007T - 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 E
7B1,500,0007T 2 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 F
78%2,000,0007T 2 =
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 752,000,001 7T E
7B #£2,500,0007C 1 =
5 4

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
remunerations were paid by the Group to the directors or the
five (2020: four) highest paid employees as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office.

(c) Senior management’s emolument (c)
The remuneration paid to the senior management (other than

the directors as disclosed in note 11(a) above) for the years fell
within the following band:

REE-Z-—FR-_ZT_TF+
“AZt+-—BLEE ALETE
MEENAR(CE-TF  I2)&H
SHHMEELNITMNBME - 1EAH
BEMAAEBERHREMAREER
B 7 85E) - sKIEAH B > fiE o

S

HTJB

HEEME

:Inl

77

EAEP\] CAISREIERE (B XX
Ta)EMESIN NS N T
—|—§U AR

Number of individuals

ABHAH
2021 2020
—B-—fF —ETF
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 751,000,001 T E
75 1,500,0007T 1 1
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MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

12. DIVIDENDS 12. RE
2021 2020
—B--F —ETF
HK$'000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Dividends proposed: BEEIRRE :
Proposed final dividend of HK0.54 cent FEIRF R E @054/
(2020: HK0.9 cent) per ordinary share (ZZEZZF : 09812
REIRR B 32,209 52,279
Dividends paid: ERRE
Final dividend of HK0.9 cent per ordinary share FiEiZE —ZT - ZT4F
in respect of financial year ended 31 +ZA=t+—HIEZHEREE
December 2020 TIRER I BAR0.9B 12
RNEANR B 52,173 =

The final dividend of HKO0.54 cent per ordinary share proposed after
the reporting date for the year ended 31 December 2021 were not
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting date. In addition,
the final dividend is subject to the shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

In August 2021, a final dividend of HK0.9 cent per ordinary share,
which included scrip dividend alternatives offered to shareholders,
was paid to shareholders as the final dividend in respect of the
financial year ended 31 December 2020.

RBERMRERERBE_T_—F+
TAZETHALEFEZRBREERER
BR0.648 Ml - RNImERMRIBEZRRA
& o tbsh - REIRBAFRR R EERER
BERGHER - HAMEE -

RZZEZ—FN\A BERARRELEZZ
T_EF+ A=+ HUEMREEZRX
HARS B BRI @AY 0. 978l - I MR R IR
AR E ZigiE -

The breakdown of the final dividend paid is as follows: B RERE ZBHENT :
2021 2020
—E-—-F —T=FTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BEFT BT T

Dividends: E -

Cash Re 23,425 =
Share alternative (note 33) LARGAR B3 12 (f/7£33) 28,748 =
52,173 -

\
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Rt %5 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 - - —F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
earnings for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
HK$104,222,000 (2020: HK$121,372,000) and on the weighted
average number of 5,857,209,000 (2020: 5,796,985,000) ordinary
shares in issue during the year excluding ordinary shares purchased
by the Company for share award scheme.

There were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during
both years and hence the diluted earnings per share is the same as
basic earnings per share.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group participates in various defined contribution retirement
benefits schemes. The Group participates in the MPF Scheme
established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in funds under the control of trustees. Subject to a
capped amount, the Group contributes 5% of the relevant income
for each employee to the MPF Scheme, the amount of which is
matched with that contributed by employees. Contributions to the
MPF Scheme vest immediately.

The employees of the Company's subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated
by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are required to contribute
10% to 20% (2020: 10% to 20%) of payroll costs, subject to a
capped amount for each employee to the retirement benefits
scheme. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the specified contributions.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, contributions totalling of
HK$12,011,000 (2020: HK$6,902,000) were charged to the profit or
loss for the year.

13.

14.

BREFN

ERERBNDIEFRRNR B ES AEMN
BF|B%104,222,000L(ZE-ZTF : B
#121,372,00000) R F AN B 3172 L@
(FEEAR Tﬁhmﬁmﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂzi
IR Hn#E - 15 215,857,200, oooﬁﬁ(; = —
T4 : 5,796,985,0000%) A et £ o

RWEFEEHBERTENZBEREL R
B A & N R AR R & F R
[7]

RKER TS

AEB2NZIAFERHRFRKBMG S -

AEERAERSEBRRSFEZEES
HERBR B AR S BIRGIRL 2818
ZFt 8l - BREEFEZEEDHITEAE
HleESRE  VEAREZEENH -
REBIRBBURAZL% (B LR) REALE
Brsetas st BlI{EHHR - MES A
AR 2 K o RS E & AT 8 4F th Y 5K
BB R R o

AREIREANBARIZEEA—BFEK
mf@z&zﬁwsfuﬁiuzmzs o Ki /B
NEBBRIERANZ10%E20% (=T =
TF 10%220%) (B LR) AEAEES M
RIKEFFEIME R - REBRRIKBEFIGT
Blz—EEREHETE 2R -

RBEE-_TE-_—F+-_A=+—HIt&F
g AHE12,011,000(ZFE =T :
75 16,902,0007T) 2 A B R FEBEEE
Bk -

—
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ —ZE=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

15. Y% - MENKE

Marine  Land and
travel other
Furniture Motor  facilities properties Machineries
and vehicles and leased for and
Buildings equipment and vessels equipment ownused equipment Total
BEaRAZ
BRR BLRE THREM
BT HOARE SERMK RERRE UEEE BHRSE &t
HK$°000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$000
BEFT BETT EETn EMFn  BEFT  BEFT  BETR
Cost BA
At 1 January 2020 RZZ-TF
—H—H 160,233 18,968 77,338 6,951 69,136 - 332,626
Currency realignment ELEER 11,648 1,132 5,119 501 3,096 7,706 29,102
Additions NE - 1,060 - - - 123,299 124,359
Disposals ik - (253)  (10,088) - - - (10,321)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AT
(note 36) (hi£36) - (430) (775) - - - (1,205)
Written off ke - - - - (1,354) - (1,354)
At 31 December 2020 \ZZ-EE
+-A=1+—-H 171,781 20,477 71,614 7,452 70,878 131,005 473,207
Currency realignment BEHEE 4,140 434 1,926 188 1,113 3,303 11,104
Additions NE - 524 2,087 - 2,312 - 4,923
Disposals e = (176) = - - = (176)
Transfer to investment BREELEME
properties (note 16) (st 16) (11,424) - - - - - (11,424)
At 31 December 2021 %
ﬂ' ﬂ +—A 164,497 21,259 75,627 7,640 74,303 134,308 477,634
Accumulated depreciation ~ EiHTIEREE
and impairment
At 1 January 2020 N_Z-TF
—H—H 29,83 8,904 26,533 5,181 20,343 - 90,792
Currency realignment BEHEE 2,600 328 3,223 392 340 124 7,007
Provided for the year FREE 7,197 2,065 5,617 425 6,322 1,988 23,614
Eliminated on disposals B 8 - (241) (9,219) - - - (9,460)
Eliminated on disposal of HE B A Rl
subsidiaries (note 36) 85 (5236 - (370) (707) - - - (1,077)
Eliminated on written off bkiclisg g - - - - (1,354) - (1,354)
Impairment (note (a)) BEH ) = = 19,012 = = = 19,012
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZFF
ﬂ‘:ﬂ =t+—H 39,628 10,686 44,459 5,998 25,651 2,112 128,534
Currency realignment R B 1,054 166 1,327 153 134 409 3,243
Provided for the year FRRE 7,572 2,370 3,687 294 7,668 21,357 42,948
Eliminated on disposals HEREE - (168) - - - - (168)
Eliminated on transfer to BESRENER
investment properties K5 (Hrit16)
(note 16) (4,294) - - - - - (4,294)
At 31 December 2021 RZZE=—F
I 43,960 13,054 49,473 6,445 33,453 23,878 170,263
Carrying amounts BREE
At 31 December 2021 RWZE-—F
+-A=+—8H 120,537 8,205 26,154 1,195 40,850 110,430 307,371
At 31 December 2020 RZZE-ZFF
+-A=+—-H 132,153 9,791 27,155 1,454 45,227 128,893 344,673
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Rt %5 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

During the year ended 31 December 2020, certain vessels used in the
marine recreation services and hotel business have not been approved for
launching operation in the sea area of Hainan, the PRC. These vessels were
subject to further modification before using in the marine recreation services
and hotel business. The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of these
vessels and as a result the carrying amount of these vessels was written
down to their recoverable amount of approximately HK$15,663,000. As
such, impairment losses of approximately HK$19,012,000 was recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

The recoverable amounts of these vessels are determined based on the
higher of fair values less costs of disposal and value in use calculation.

As at 31 December 2020, the recoverable amounts of these vessels have
been determined based on fair value less costs of disposal, which is arrived
at on the basis of valuation carried out by an independent professional
valuer. The fair value less costs of disposal of these vessels is level 3
recurring fair value measurement. The key assumptions to determine the
fair value less costs of disposal under income approach using present value
technique are discount rates and projected future revenue. The pre-tax
discount rate used is 13.05%.

As at 31 December 2021, these vessels were not yet in service. The Group
assessed the recoverable amounts of these vessels, which were higher
than the carrying amounts of these vessels and no further impairment was
made.

15. M5 - BERRE®

Bt

(a)

HE_ZT_ZTE+_A=+—HIEFE &
AR RIS TG I B E A E TR SR
BEEEDBERGE TKEE - ZEMM
FERANE LIRERBFBE X AR EE
THE—FEE - REETEZSEMMA AT
OS5 Rtz EMANEIERREELR
Yl & #E 497 % 15,663,0007T © E Ut - A
B1849E%19,012,000T (ZE—NF : )
BERGE R ERER °

ZEMMO AR ESFEDERATERDE
KRALREREENRSEEE

R-ZB-ZE+-A=1+—H  ZEMHED
AR EERERE A FER S ERA(ER

— BB EEGEMETOGEMEBRE
TE o R EBAEMHAMEHERAB = AL
BEAFEFE - REBEURAEEARER
MEERFERBEXANEIERR AR
RERBEARRRE - RAOHABRRES
13.05% -

KRB —F+-A=+—H ZEMHERH
REAER - AEEFEZEMMAR R RE
SRNDERZEMMAOEEE - AYREY
#—FRME

Right-of-use assets (b) FEREEE
The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of RIAREERERNE S EREEENKREF
underlying asset is as follows: BT :
2021 2020
—B-—fF —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T B FIT
Ownership interests in leasehold land held for ~ #{EE BAE T h 2 FTAEEZ - NFER
own use, carried at depreciated cost in the BRITERATER - REAFRL
PRC, with medium-term leases. 36,996 38,186
Other properties leased for own use, carried at A EEE A 2 W3 @ RITEKR AT
depreciated cost 3,854 7,041

—
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MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HiE —Z —

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

—Ft+-A=+—HIFE

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit or

loss is as follows:

(b)

15. M1% - BERRE®)

i -

(&
EREAEGE

RIERPERAEHEHENFRXEB ZHH N
T

2021 2020
—EC-—F —TCEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets by REEEEFEE S NERAEEED

class of underlying asset: TEXL :

Ownership interests in leasehold land HMELH AR 2,117 1,976
Other properties leased for own use HEEERAZ MY 5,551 4,346
7,668 6,322
Interest on lease liabilities (note 8) HEBBEZNEHZFS) 255 435
Expenses relating to short-term leases EHRBEE MY 1,255 790

During the year ended 31 December 2021, additions to right-of-use assets

were HK$2,312,000 (2020: nil).

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 December 2021 was

HK$7,808,000 (2020: HK$4,446,000).

Details of the maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set out in note 28.

Machineries and equipment

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group leases out all the machineries
and equipment under operating leases to generate rental income.

\
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REFEAEEEEK2312,0000 (= =%
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16.

Notes to the

Financial Statements
B 5 =M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. IREWHE
2021 2020
—B--F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At fair value BAFE
At 1 January R—H—H 89,143 93,939
Currency realignment MEHEE 2,377 6,090
Changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss REzEPER 2 A FEE (1,656) (11,125)
Additions NE - 239
Disposals HE (1,709) =
Transfer from property, plant and equipment AV - HERZE
(note 15) (Ft5t15) 11,100 =
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—AR 99,255 89,143

The carrying amount of investment properties shown above
represents properties situated in the PRC held under medium-term
leases.

All of the Group’s property interests held to earn rentals under
operating leases or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as
investment properties.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, buildings with carrying
amount of HK$7,130,000 included in property, plant and equipment
(note 15) were transferred to investment properties and revaluation
gain of approximately HK$3,970,000 was credited to revaluation
reserve as operating lease agreements were entered with a third
party for these buildings during the year to generate rental income.

The fair values of the Group's investment properties at 31 December
2021 and 2020 have been arrived at on the basis of a valuation
carried out on that date by Jones Lang Lasalle Corporate Appraisal
and Advisory Limited, the independent qualified professional valuer.
Jones Lang Lasalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and possesses
appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the valuation
similar properties in the relevant locations.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

EXFARZEBEEYMEZREERRES S
BORPBRFAEZYIE -

A5 BT S TR 058 LU © o
{EAARERR RS IFAATE
B R - LHRBIERANE -

BE-_E-_—S+_-_A=+—HILEE -
ETAME - BE RERE(FEE15) 2 BREE
A #7,130,000c 2 IEFEBEEHREY
¥ MmEHKRELEEES,970,000TE A
BEREE - THRNRFRNE—RE=F5
ZERFIUKEHEREUNELHS K
)\o

AEERZEZ—FR=ZZT_FTF+=A
=+ —BZREMEZAFEUABIE?
BREEGEMPERITOETHRENANE
FRABIR % BFTERA 2 [ EEEAR o ff
ERTEEGRERNBRARAESAE
MmEees  HEAEER  HHITEHE
Bt BRI 2 (HELR -

REFTMEZAFER  EENEZES
REERZASEEANAE -

—
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MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16. REWE @)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's investment
properties measured at the end of the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the valuation
technigue as follows:

DFEER

TREIRBEMRIZEEEEEFERN
AEEREVENLTE BEAEEM
BRELRNEIBRAFEAEEZN =R
RFEER - 2FEAERRENERLS
ZEEDETEANBASIBNTBEL
REEUBENAT

Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2021 categorised into

R=B=-F+-A=t-AK

AYEHEREAR
Fair value
asat
31 December
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
3
T-A=t-AK
- R =8 NTE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETR BETR BETR BETT
Recurring fair value BERATEE
measurement
Investment properties: RENE
Property units - the PRC MEBf - H - 11,322 87,933 99,255
Fair value measurement as at
31 December 2020 categorised into
RZZZZBET-A=+-HH
AHEHEREAR
Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
3
+ZA=+-BH
— it = ATE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
BEFT BEFT BETT BEFTL
Recurring fair value EEMATERE
measurement
Investment properties: RENE:
Property units — the PRC MEEN - - 11,044 78,099 89,143

\
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no transfers
between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of Level 3
(2020: except for the tenancy agreement of an investment property
of HK$11,044,000 was expired and the property unit was vacant and
was transferred from Level 3 to Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers
into or out of Level 3). The Group's policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

For the fair value of investment properties is a Level 3 recurring fair
value measurement, a reconciliation of the opening and closing fair
value balance is provided below.

16. REWE®)

DFEERE

HE-_T - —F+ZA=+—HLEFE "
BE—RE R BNER RN = fneE
AREBE(ZE_ZF - REEMESY
11,044,000 ERZEE Em - BZY
¥ENTBVEATESRN=-REAZ
WMo WE—RE—FENEBEIR=
WA A H) o REBERECK S TR
MBERRBLENAFESERPEER 2
FE?EI‘JE;}% °

HREBREVMRZ AFEBE=REEEQF
BffE - FONRFRRFEKEZHED
T o

2021 2020

—E-—-F —TTF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Opening balance (Level 3 recurring fair value) FURB CREELERFE) 78,099 93,939
Currency realignment fE R EE 2,099 5,051
Fair value change NEEEE (1,656) (4,427)
Additions NE - 239
Disposals k= (1,709) =

Transfer from property, plant and equipment EEWE - RERERE

(note 15) (HiaE15) 11,100 =
Transfer out of level 3 = AREE T - (16,703)
Closing balance (Level 3 recurring fair value) ERBE(CEHREEHEAFE) 87,933 78,099

—
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ —ZE=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 16.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurement — Property
units in the PRC

Fair value is determined by applying the income approach for

the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 and based on the
following significant unobservable inputs.

Significant unobservable inputs Range

BREWE®

FR=RAPEFEZEN -RAEHY
RE

\;%:;?_—E&_ T _TF+_A=+
—BIFE 2FEDEBREBIRAER
BRIBATERNT BN ABEET °

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

ERRAEREABIE gE FABERMABBREATEZBR

Term yield 3.0% — 4.0% per annum The higher the term yield, expected
(2020: 3.0% —4.0% per annum) vacancy rate and reversionary yield, the

lower the fair value

FHRE FF3.0% -4.0% FHERE HHREEXRRIEFRHRE
(ZZ=ZF : §F3.0% - 4.0%) s A TERE

Expected vacancy rate 0% —7.0% (2020: 0% — 7.0%)

TAEAZE B % 0% ~7.0%(ZZ=F% : 0% ~7.0%)

Reversionary yield 3.5% —4.5% per annum
(2020: 3.5% —4.5% per annum)

EEE R HF3.5% - 4.5%
(ZZE=ZF : §435% ~4.5%)

Daily rent RMBO0.3 = RMB8.1 per square meter The higher the daily rent, the higher the
(2020: RMBO0.3 — RMB4.0 per square fair value
meter)

BHME® %?7‘5%/\&#}(0 3T - ARS8 BREeAS  AIRTERS
(ZZ2=ZF : GFHRKARBO3T -
AE#4.070)

Information about Level 2 fair value measurement — Property BBE-RAFHEFTEZERN - RFEANY

unit in the PRC E3:-)

For the investment property of which the tenancy agreement has HREERHZRD ERURFEE RN EENR

expired and which was held for capital appreciation, it was valued
by applying direct comparison approach without any significant
adjustment being made to the market observable data. The fair value
measurement was classified as Level 2.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RB AR 2=
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FEMBARFBRT :

Particulars of

Place of paid-up capital/ Equity interest
incorporation/ issued share owned by
Company operations capital the Company Principal activities
ML CRRER AT
A =31 ERITRAFE BEE EEZ TEER
%
Directly held:
HERF:
Galactic Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 Investment holding
FIREBR QA B B2 REER
Indirectly held:
BEEE
Chengtong Trading (International) Hong Kong HK$429 100  Finance leasing
Limited
WBE H(BR)BRAA B VS 4297T MEME
Chengtong World Trade Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 51  Bulk commodity trade
Bttt R QA BB 75%10,000,0007T RREmE S
Zhucheng Phoenix Landmark Company The PRC RMB50,000,000 100  Property development
Limited™ and investment
EWERE R AT # AR #50,000,0007T MEERREE
Chengtong Financial Leasing Company The PRC RMB2,000,000,000 100 Finance leasing and
Limited™ operating leasing
HARNEHERRAR* # AR MEHERELEHE
2,000,000,0007T
Chengtong Development Trading The PRC RMB100,000,000 100  Bulk commodity trade
Company Limited™
HBEREHERAF I AR #100,000,0007T AREEmE S
Hainan Yalong Bay Underwater World ~ The PRC RMB96,000,000 100  Provision of marine
Travel Company Limited™ recreation services
BETREEERERREARA R # AR #96,000,0007T RS FIRER
Hainan Huandao Underwater World The PRC RMB8,000,000 100 Hotel business
Hotel Company Limited™
BEEBEREHTBEFRAF # AR#8,000,0007T R
* A limited liability company established in the PRC * —RRFERL AR AT

The English names are for identification only

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ —ZE=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 17. RHB AR 2 fEz= @)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the assets and
liabilities of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 or at any time during the respective year.

The following table lists out the information relating to Chengtong
World Trade Limited, the subsidiary of the Company which has
non-controlling interests (“NCI”) in the respective years. The

ERIHARRIEERRERREAEKHE
FRAEGEHIVRAEBRBHIEEREE
ZARRMBRAE - ARREEEZRER
TERATIR - D E B A E 2

I o

R_B_—FR_FT_FF+_A=+—
BSRR & FAERER - WENEQFE
B EAERE?

TRINMEBEARRNBARBEESRS
RARIN S FEFAFFERES ((FER
BN ER - UT2HBERRE

RARFHER R R RHEHAT 2 B8R -

summarised financial information presented below represents the
amounts before any inter-company elimination.

Chengtong World Trade Limited

BBt AR AR
2021 2020
—E-—-F —T=TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
As at 31 December R+=A=+—H
NCI percentage FEPERR R A 49% 49%
Current assets MENBE 78,217 59,439
Non-current assets EmBEE 52 53
Current liabilities nRBBE (63,783) (48,003)
Non-current liabilities JEmBAE - -
Net assets BESFE 14,486 11,489
Carrying amount of NCI JEERERREE 7,099 5,629
For the year ended 31 December BE+t-A=1+—HLEE
Turnover EEE 755,431 440,667
Profit for the year F W@ F 3,000 1,453
Total comprehensive income 2HKELRTE 3,000 1,453
Profit allocated to NCI DAL E FIEERRAE R 2 i A 1,470 712
Dividend paid to NCI EANE I S ¥ - -
For the year ended 31 December BE+t-A=1t—BHLEE
Cash flows from operating activities KEEHEEZIRERE (29,192) (9,736)
Cash flows from investing activities KEEHEAZRSRE 1,251 (1,332)
Cash flows from financing activities RETHEAZRESRE 22,474 23,020
Net cash (outflows)/inflows BeCReE),/RAFE (5,467) 11,952

R
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

DEPOSITS PAID 18. E1F#&&
2021 2020
—B--F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Deposits paid for purchase of property, plant BEWE  BENMEE
and equipment Bfize 1,015 700
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE/PROPERTIES 19. BEHEYME BEDYE
UNDER DEVELOPMENT
Properties held under development comprise leasehold land and ERTEBEREEERAETHHELIR
certain construction costs in the PRC under medium-term lease for FTEAZRABENVRTRFENHEE LM
commercial use and long lease for residential use. The amount is RETEEXR - ZRBEFHEREAEE
expected to be recovered within the Group's operating cycle, thus, it EEBNKE - FEiY BREEE ©
is classified as current assets.
Upon completion of construction works, completed properties under BERIEEI®%R  TIMBRTVERE
development will be transferred to properties held for sale. AFHELEME -
INVENTORIES 20. F&
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Bulk commodities VNG 19,001 380
Merchandises and consumables o MR 4,331 4,376
23,332 4,756
TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. ESZREMEWFIE
2021 2020
s T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade and bills receivables (note (a)) H 2 I GRIE & e W iR
(Ff 5% (a)) 30,062 37,165
Prepayments to suppliers A FE R TR A 3B 15,132 1,521
Other prepayments and deposits HAbTaSRIE Rz e 4,921 4,698
Other receivables (note (b)) E i JEUGRIE (A 77 (D) 29,773 58,391
Total trade and other receivables B 5 R H A EWRGRIAERE 79,888 101,775
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MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21.

Notes:

(a) As at 31 December 2021, the amounts mainly represented trade and bills
receivables of HK$27,422,000 (2020: HK$34,277,000) from bulk commodity
trade business and HK$2,145,000 (2020: HK$1,680,000) from leasing
out owned machineries and equipment under operating lease business.
Credit period of 0 to 30 days was granted to customers for trade and bills
receivables as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The Group normally grants credit terms to its customers according to
industry practice together with consideration of their credibility and
repayment history. The Group maintains strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by senior
management.

As at 31 December 2021, loss allowance of HK$1,000 (2020: HK$5,000)

was made against the gross amount of trade and bills receivables.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

ESREMERIIE®

sz -

(a)

RZZE-_—&F+-A=+—0 %ZLET
ZEREAATHADESELNE FEMKFKIE
RN E g S 27,422,000 C(Z T4 :
75 #34,277,0007T) KRR B ML & E X
E T2 B BHWEEE2,145,000L (=%
—ZTF : #%1,680,0000T) c R-TE=—4F
R—T-TE+-_F=1+—H0 #HEHEK
HERERZEMS - RFEEKT0E30A
BRARER -

AEBBEREXARRLEEEZFHNER
REREELDE  AREROBRESR - A%
B 5 LR UK (0] 7 B M R T A 5 R AR D )
BEESGE S REIRE T RS -

R-ZZE-_—F+-A=+—8 OHE5E
Wk TE K B W AR SR IR B B R BB
1,000 (ZZ =FF : ##¥5,0007T) °

RBERRZBERAHE2RZEHRKKEA
REWREZ BRI DM

2021 2020
—E-—F —ECTE

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BEFT

Within 90 days 90K A 30,062 37,165

The ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables presented that are not
considered to be credit-impaired is as follows:

AR BEEREZE S RKHIE R ERE
BZREBROWIAT

2021 2020

—EB-—fF T TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BMTFT B FT

Not yet past due # R 80 HR 30,041 36,893
Less than one month past due AR R —1{E A 21 272
30,062 37,165

(b) As at 31 December 2021, loss allowance of HK$185,000 (2020:
HK$185,000) were made against the gross amount of other receivables.

\
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

22. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES AND LOANS 22 MEAERRRERERER
RECEIVABLE
2021 2020
B T T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT BT T
Finance lease receivables AT & R IE 141,214 =
Loans receivable FEWE X 5,723,892 2,072,703
5,865,106 2,072,703
Analysed for reporting purposes as: DITE2|MAR ¢
Current assets MENEE 1,953,411 634,378
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,911,695 1,438,325
5,865,106 2,072,703
The Group engaged in finance lease business and sale and leaseback AEBENEMEHEEBARERBIMHEZE
business. % e
For finance lease business, the ownership of the leased assets PREHEXEBME TR SHEHEER
will be transferred to the lessees at a purchase option price upon HETzREHEREBFIERS LETF
settlement of the principal of finance lease receivables and the BiEE®% MEEECFARSIKEEH
interest accrued under the finance lease arrangements. BEEBEAEA -
The finance lease receivables are due as follows: FEHERKFENIIBERNT
2021 2020
—E—— —E T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT BT T
Not later than one year THBB—F 31,440 -
Later than one year and not later than BE—FRETHBEMRF
two years 35,198 -
Later than two years and not later than BEMFETBEE=F
three years 30,515 -
Later than three years and not later than B = F AT EBEPF
four years 29,516 -
Later than four years and not later than BRNFETEBRF
five years 14,686 -
141,355 -
Less: loss allowance W R (141) -
141,214 -

S
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ —ZE=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

22. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES AND LOANS 22 BEHEERRERERER
RECEIVABLE (Continued) (&)
Loans receivable arose from the sale and leaseback arrangements. ZEEROBETHEERKER - BIEZ
Under these arrangements, customers (i.e. lessees) disposed of S REAIAAANBAEBHER
their equipment and facilities to the Group and leased back the *“1%& M - I EIFEB ARG LR o It
equipment and facilities. In addition, the ownership of the leased Hh - FEREETHE TN ZERERETS
assets will be transferred back to the lessees at a purchase option &Féﬁuﬂcﬂ BRE®% HEEEZFAREG
price upon settlement of the principal of the loans receivable and RESHEEELEAMEA - BRZSE
the interest accrued under the sale and leaseback arrangements. AR UERLBBELZHZAIRZERE
The lessees retain control of the equipment and facilities before and RERE TG WEBLHER ST
after entering into the sale and leaseback arrangements, which do BEEMmMSETEKEE - gt - €% EHE
not therefore constitute a lease for accounting purposes. As such, ZHARBEERER  UREBEEBYS
the sale and leaseback arrangements have been accounted for as a HEAFIRSF T AMER ©
secured loan and recognised in accordance with HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments.
As at 31 December 2021, effective interest rates of finance lease RZEBEZ—F+ZA=+—H mEHEE
receivables and loans receivable ranged from approximately 4.03% FERRIEBERERER Z BERFMENTFH
10 8.77% (2020: 4.90% to 8.77%) per annum. 4.03%%E8.77%(ZF=FF : 490% %
8.77%) °
The finance lease receivables and loans receivable are secured by mﬂﬁfﬁhruﬁl KIB & FEW E A & 3%
the leased equipment and facilities, land from the related party of Fitec AMAZBEER 2T FEET
the lessee, unlisted equity interest and account receivables from the Hﬁﬁé J«/{ ReoAdE A REME A 2 BE 2 EUER
lessees and the related parties of the lessees (2020: secured by the ,TM’EF%?EEWDD(_ T T PHERER
leased equipment and facilities and land from the related party of A RAMAZBER 2 T HERER
the lessee), of which HK$4,464,212,000 (2020: HK$1,817,836,000) ) ERBE4,464,212,000 (2 =&
are guaranteed by the related parties of the lessees. The lessees are F : 7¥1,817,836,0007T) AT A 28
obliged to settle the amounts according to the terms set out in the ERHER - ABEABEBKRERBAE LT
relevant contracts. BIEHEERERIE -
Also, certain finance lease receivables and loans receivable were gEoh - BT EVE M & EUGRIE R FE R E K
secured by deposits received from customers of HK$226,588,000 L/{ELBZ%JE'T 7B #5226,588,000T (==
(2020: HK$149,289,000) (note 26(b)). ZZF 1 #E1149,289,0007T) I (T 7
26(b)) °
The ageing analysis of finance lease receivables and loans RESEMEA  RFEEHRHERE
receivable, based on their respective due dates, at the end of the FEWRIE R ERE R Z RRDTAT ¢
reporting period is as follows:
2021 2020
s T T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETFT B FT
Not yet past due & R 180 HA 5,844,713 2,050,574
Past due but not credit impaired BE@iEREERE
Within 1 year R—FR 5,033 22,129
More than 1 year but less than 2 years —FLAFERENAA 15,360 =
5,865,106 2,072,703

N
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Rt %5 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 - - —F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

22. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES AND LOANS
RECEIVABLE (Continued)

23.

As at 31 December 2021, loss allowance of HK$12,984,000 (2020:
HK$931,000) was made against the gross amount of finance lease
receivables and loans receivable.

LOANS TO/FROM RELATED PARTIES

(a)

(b)

Loans to related parties

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of HK$36,600,000
(2020: HK$36,404,000) represented the outstanding loan
principal from FEBIESSEHR A F (unofficial English
translation being China Huandao Group Limited), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of CCHG. The loan bears interest at 8%
(2020: 6%) per annum. During the year ended 31 December
2021, the repayment date of the loan was further extended to
2 September 2023 (2020: the repayment date of the loan was
2 September 2021). The Group has the right to request the
related party to provide a security by pledging certain office
premises held by the related party at any time before the full
repayment of the loan.

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of HK$12,200,000 (2020:
nil) represented the outstanding loan principal from /8 &5
HEE R AR A A (unofficial English translation being Hainan
Huandao Industrial Development Limited), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CCHG. The loan bears interest at 6% (2020: nil)
per annum and will be repayable on 8 August 2022. The Group
has the right to request the related party to provide a security
by pledging the land held by the related party at any time
before the full repayment of the loan.

Loan from a related party

The balance of HK$47,556,000 (2020: HK$23,592,000)
represented the outstanding loan principal and interest payable
to China Chengtong Investment Company Limited, a subsidiary
of the intermediate holding company of the Company. The
loan is unsecured, bears interest at 3.65% (2020: 3.65%)
per annum and will be repayable on 18 February 2022 (2020:
repayable on 18 February 2021).

22.

23.

BEHERRRERERER

(&)

R_E-_—F+-_A=+—8  p@Efd
ERRFBRERERBEIREIERE
BE#12,984,000C (ZE_FF : B
931,0007T) °

FEW e BRE T TR
(a) BT BESEK

RZTFE-_—F+=-A=+—8 " &
85 1#£36,600,0007T (- B - F4F ¢
75 136,404,0007T) 5 ER P EIE S
%*ﬁfsﬁ Bl (BBERZ2EWE

DNANZREBERAE - BEFRIRF
FE8% (ZE_FF : 6%)5TE - &
BT F+-_A=+—HL*F
B BERvERBHE—HS$ERE
TEC=FNAR(CE-_ZTF:
BERvERBHA_T_—Fh A
—H) AEBEEERERETEE
BZAARBEREREEFBBR
HHABAFEZETHAMERE
IR -

R-ZTE=-_—F+=-A=+—H8 " &
B75%12,200,000 0 (ZE=-ZF
IR EESEEERERA
Al(HBERZ2EHBAR) ZKE
BERAS - BERIRFH X% (=ZZF
—ETF 4H);HrE WBER-T -
i/\ﬂ)\EH c AEBMBAENE

x,_%f%f}az;au{fﬂﬁﬁ'ﬁxiﬁ%
$H@Fj%ﬂﬁﬁfﬁ EHER 2 LR

HER -
(b) XRE—BHEFTEXK

tREEB 47 556,000 (—FE-F
£ B #023,592,0007T) #5 & {~ H1 B
%m@&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ A (AR R RN
RAIZHBRAR) ZRKEBEEERA S
EFB - ERTVEEET - RFF X
365%(_7_?¢ 3.65%):T &
WEAR-_E-__F_A+/\BEE
(_7_7¢ R-T-_—F_-A+
J\NBEE) -

—
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

24. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

24, Hth&@MEE

2021 2020
—B-—-F T -FE
Note HK$’000 HK$000
Kz BEFT BT T
Non-current: FERE
Financial assets measured at fair value #EQFEFAEMMZE
through other comprehensive income Wi ([ A FEF A
(“FVOCI”) Hth2mEmkE 2z
SREE
- Equity investments - ERKRE 11,658 11,200
Current: E
Financial assets measured at FVOCI BATFEFAEMEE
KEzeRmEE
Equity investments A
— Shares listed in Hong Kong - REB ETRRRD 69,850 62,992
Financial assets measured at FVPL BRAFEFABREZ
ERMEE
- Shares listed in Hong Kong - REB ETHRRM - 1,639
- Unlisted investments - ELEMIRE (a) - 35,775
Financial assets at amortised cost DU SRR AR A BR Y
SHMEE
— Structured bank deposits with interest = 5% 50.8% &K &
rate of 0.8% per annum EHBMIRITIER - 7,330
69,850 107,736
Note: HiaE -
(a) The balances represented the trust products and wealth management (a) ZERBATRZRITRSMBEMERY

products managed by PRC banks and financial institutions which invested in
underlying assets without open or active quotations.

N
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Rt %5 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND PLEDGED
BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

(a) Bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits

25. $R1T

mERASUREIEMART

EFREAEMEREEREER

(a)

BRITEFRREEURCERRTE
=

2021 2020
—E-—F T T4
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Bank balances and cash RITEEFERES
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFEA S 1,380,259 859,618
Pledged bank deposits 2IEHRITER
Deposits pledged against banking facilities #t#% iz A Z R1TRE
granted to mortgagors i i c 4,284 4,169
Other secured deposits H A TR 129 1,387
4,413 5,556
(i)  For the year ended 31 December 2021, bank balances ) BEZEZ—F+ZA=+—HL
deposited in Hong Kong banks carry interest ranged FE  REBRTZBIOTEFENE
from 0.01% to 1.05% (2020: from 0.01% to 2.85%) per FENT0.01%E1.06%(ZT=F
annum. F o NTF0.01%=22.85%) °

(ii)

(i)

Bank balances deposited in PRC banks carry interest at
benchmark rate offered by The People's Bank of China.

Bank balances and cash and pledged bank deposits held
by the Company’s PRC subsidiaries and deposited with
banks in the PRC amounting to HK$1,276,238,000 (2020:
HK$410,020,000) were denominated in RMB, which
are not a freely convertible currency in the international
market. The RMB exchange rate is determined by the
Government of the PRC and the remittance of these
funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the Government of the PRC.

As required by the PRC State-Owned Land and
Resource Bureau, the property development company
of the Group is required to place in designated bank
accounts the pre-sale proceeds of properties to finance
the construction of the related properties. The deposits
can only be used for purchases of construction materials
and payments of construction fees of the relevant
property projects when approval from the PRC State-
Owned Land and Resources Bureau is obtained. The
directors considered these bank deposits form part of
the Group's normal operating fund, which was included
in “bank balances and cash”, and was presented as part
of cash and cash equivalents.

The cash deposited in the designated bank accounts for
the aforesaid specific usage as at 31 December 2021
amounted to HK$10,309,000 (2020: HK$16,844,000).

(i)

(iif)

KRB RITZRITEFRBPEA
RITRMA 2 BEF KGR o

ARARIZHENBRARFFCES
B 1,276,238,0007T (ZE - F :
75 #410,020,0007T) Z $R1T4EF IR
@tA&E?&?ﬁﬂﬁEﬁﬁ?ﬂAAEﬁw
B TERRPBEZERT AR
MT\ﬂﬁélmmiﬁ@mmﬁ AR
MZEXAPEBTETE  mMES
HELEBEESASTRRNEG
2 INEE H AR ©

REPEBELERMBORE @ AK
EYRERARAREERITEO
ﬁk%%ﬁ%% BFRIR - ER R
EEBMENES - ZFRETA
EBEEEMHA RN TEBELER
L ERBYMERE R NEEE
A-BF2RG  ZFRITEHRBEK
AEE-REEESW D I
EAMRTEFRRE I RIERRE
RE2EBWHO—BOIIRR -

ik

RZF-_—F+-_A=+—H &
EERITFATFTRIELFER S
ziiﬁﬁ/%ﬁ%msomoom_?_
T4E ¢ B#16,844,0007T) ©
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MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND PLEDGED 25. RITEERBESURCEBEIT
BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW FREREMESREER @
INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Other cash flow information (b) EHiBEESREER
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: BMETHEENBELEE

Loan from a Lease Bank Asset-backed

related party liabilities borrowings securities
RE—FA

BESHNER HEAE IRITIEE EEIEFES
(note 23) (note 28) (note 29) (note 30)
(Btat23) (Btat28) (Btat29) (BtzE30)
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000

BEFT BEFT BT BEFT

At 1 January 2021 RIT—%F
—A—H 23,592 7,040 338,420 -

Changes from financing KERERS

cash flows: MEREE) :
Proceeds from new loans  ¥TERATERIE 23,280 - 1,248,358 -
Proceeds from issuance of Z1TEEX

asset-backed securities BH TS RIA - - - 3,396,000
Repayment of loans BEER - - (166,578) -
Repayment of asset-backed (HiEEETIFES

securities - - - (516,031)
Interest paid ERFE (429) - (19,930) (37,282)
Capital element of lease BEfHE2

rentals paid BRI - (3,986) - -
Interest element of lease BENfEeZ

rentals paid F B EH - (255) - -
Total changes from REBERS

financing cash flows MEREB)ARE 22,851 (4,241) 1,061,850 2,842,687
Exchange adjustments P& 5 - 44 17,589 48,200
Other changes: Ees) -
Interest expenses FERMZ 1,113 255 21,376 41,720
Capitalised borrowing costs & b & E RN - - 2,540 -
Total other changes HEEghiass 1,113 255 23,916 41,720
At 31 December 2021 RZE——F

+=—A=+—8H 47,556 3,098 1,441,775 2,932,607

b
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

25. BANK BALANCES AND CASH AND PLEDGED

(b)

25. $R1T

EERASUREEMART

BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW FREHMREREER @)
INFORMATION (Continued)
Other cash flow information (Continued) (b) HMBESHKEERE)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: BMETHELENBELR - (8B)
(Continued)
Loan from Lease Bank
a related party liabilities borrowings
RE—H
FAETNER HEAE RITIEE
(note 23) (note 28) (note 29)
(Bt7£23) (H1z£28) (H1&£29)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T
At 1 January 2020 R-ZE-_ZTF—H—H = 10,881 277,700
Changes from financing cash RERMERESREN
flows: HE) .
Proceeds from new loans FTERMERE 69,064 = 373,040
Repayment of loans EEER (45,784) - (323,516)
Interest paid =N (786) - (9,241)
Capital element of lease rentals Bt & 2 &AL S
paid - (4,011) -
Interest element of lease rentals Z & 27 8 E5H
paid - (435) -
Total changes from financing RERERESTEN
cash flows bl Eak 22,494 (4,446) 40,283
Exchange adjustments b H % = 170 10,227
Other changes: HAin &) -
Interest expenses FERE 1,098 435 6,679
Capitalised borrowing costs AR EERA - - 3,531
Total other changes Hih & Eh1aza 1,098 435 10,210
At 31 December 2020 R-ZZE-ZTF
+=ZA=+—H 23,592 7,040 338,420

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. EZ R HMENSFIE
2021 2020
—B--F —ETF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade and bills payables (note (a)) E SN FRIERENEE
(K17t (a) 1,296 19,887
Other payables and accruals L fth FE A< KO8 K JE BT SRIE 51,361 89,507
Deposits received (note (b)) Bz (it m) 242,548 149,289
Accrual of construction costs EETTIZEA 78,060 90,841
373,265 349,524
Notes: Mt
(a) As at 31 December 2021, bills payables were secured by pledged bank (a) R-TE-_—F+-_A=+—H " BRHEE
deposits of HK$17,000 (2020: HK$1,280,000). AEEBERITERAEE17,000L(Z2=F
F @ 7¥51,280,0007T) fEIEH ©
The ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables presented based on the RRERRIZEEAHZHRNE HEMNKIE
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows: FMEMERZRESTAT
2021 2020
—EB-_—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within one year —FRA 1,296 19,887
(b) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, among the balance of deposits (b) REZBZ—FRZZFZTFF+_A=+—
received, HK$226,588,000 (2020: HK$149,289,000) represented the H - BlUkiz£#5%226,5688,000L(ZE=F
deposits received from customers under finance lease arrangements and F 1 B%149,289,000 T)MHBEBIERE
the sale and leaseback arrangements (note 22) as security deposits. The HERERERBALH(HE22)BTHE
deposits will be returned to the customers upon the settlement of the WEFPIReSEARER - REKBNEPER
principal of finance lease receivables and loans receivable and the interest AN TzRmERERKRERERERAS
accrued by the customers under the contracts. BERIEFISBRBEETER o

\
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 27. aHNERE
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract AEBEEHR TS HEBEOEE :
liabilities:
2021 2020
—E-—fF —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Contract liabilities related to property sales EEMEHEENENEE 121,484 120,311
Contract liabilities related to bulk commodity FRAAFTEREZINENEAR
trade 15,240 4,109
136,724 124,420
The following table shows the revenue recognised for the year relate TRBINFNERNELEENEERS
to carried-forward contract liabilities: RS -
2021 2020
—E-—fF T T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result ABHABERFNERREY]
of recognising revenue during the year that FFAGB K EEZ WEmE D
was included in the contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year (66,205) (87,255)

As at 31 December 2021, the amount of HK$136,724,000 (2020:
HK$124,420,000) represented unsatisfied performance obligations
arising from property sales and bulk commodity trade, of which
HK$31,484,000 (2020: HK$37,011,000) was expected to be

recognised as income after more than one year. B #31,484,0007T(

R—ZE-_—F+=-_A=+—8 " %
#136,724,000c(ZE = F : B
124,420,000C) B EHEERARH
MEBESELENREXNBHEME  HF
—E-FTF B

37,011,0007T) TR B 18 — S {2 R A I

A o
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Rt %5 3R &= B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

28. LEASE LIABILITIES

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of

the Group's lease liabilities at the end of the years:

28. HEAE

TREIAKEEERR

HEEER -

RERWBTE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —TTF
Present value Present value
of minimum Minimum of minimum Minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BRIEHEE ®EHEE
Rz 3Rz
REMR BREHEEMNK REMR SERAENR
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JBEF T BEFT BT T BT T
Within one year —FA 3,098 3,159 3,729 3,983
After one year but within —FERERREA
two years - - 3,311 3,372
3,098 3,159 7,040 7,355
Less: total future interest B RRFER X
expenses ek (61) (315)
Present value of lease HEAaERE
liabilities 3,098 7,040
Analysed for reporting DEEWAR
purposes as:
Current liabilities nEaE 3,098 3,729
Non-current liabilities FERBEE - 3,311
3,098 7,040

E
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

29. BANK BORROWINGS 29. RITEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Bank borrowings IRITRE
Unsecured Fiigaid 460,319 160,000
Secured B 981,456 178,420
1,441,775 338,420
Carrying amount repayable: ERATHIRERE 2 BREE
Within one year or on demand —FLARSIRERK 1,374,675 338,420
More than one year, but not exceeding —F A BT BBEME
two years 48,800 -
More than two years, but not exceeding ML FBTBBRF
five years 18,300 -
1,441,775 338,420
Less: amounts shown under current liabilities & : JIEREI BEZZIB (1,374,675) (338,420)
67,100 -
As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank borrowings with carrying RZEBE-Z—F+=A=+—8  A&EK
amount of approximately HK$337,329,000 (2020: HK$178,420,000) M{E#)78%337,329,000L(ZE -2 4
were secured by charges over loans receivable of the Group with V5 #5178,420,0007T) K $R 1T & B i 18 K 47
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$374,422,000 E B BRE AR B A% 374,422,00070 (=
(2020: HK$199,993,000) and was guaranteed by the Company. Such T T F : B%199,993,0000) WEKE
bank borrowings were used for the expansion of the Group's leasing SRIEER - WHAARTER - ZFRITE
business. EEREBRRASB 2 HEER -

S

China Chengtong Development Group Limited R EIFERREBER AR I,\'l 53




Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ2—Z - —F+_-_F=+—HItFE

29.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank borrowings with carrying
amount of approximately HK$604,781,000 (2020: nil) were secured
by charges over loans receivable of the Group with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$864,105,000 (2020: nil). Such
bank borrowings were used for the expansion of the Group's leasing
business.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's bank borrowings with carrying
amount of approximately HK$39,346,000 (2020: nil) were secured
by charges over finance lease receivables of the Group with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$36,849,000 (2020:
nil). Such bank borrowings were used for the expansion of the
Group's leasing business.

As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowings of HK$620,674,000
(2020: HK$178,420,000) contained repayable on demand clause and
therefore have been classified as current liabilities. Bank borrowings
of HK$754,001,000 (2020: HK$160,000,000) will be repayable within
one year as per the loan agreements and therefore have also been
classified as current liabilities.

The effective interest rates of the bank loans ranged from 1.99% to
4.90% per annum at 31 December 2021 (2020: 2.11% to 4.50%).

Certain of the Group's bank loan agreements are subjected to
covenant clauses, whereby the Group is required to meet certain
key financial ratios. As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not
fulfil a financial ratio as required in two bank loan agreements
respectively and therefore the banks are contractually entitled to
request for immediate repayment of the outstanding loan amount
of HK$460,319,000 (2020: nil). These bank loan agreements also
contained repayable on demand clause. The outstanding balances
are presented as repayable on demand under current liabilities as at
31 December 2021.

For the relevant outstanding loan amount of HK$460,319,000, in
March 2022, the Group repaid HK$160,319,000 and obtained a
waiver from relevant bank for the breach with outstanding amount
of HK$300,000,000.

~
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29.

BITEE®

RZZE-Z—F+=-A=+—8 " $Elﬁ%
T {E4)76#604,781,000C(ZE - T4 ¢

E)MRITEEBRRERASEREARELY
/%??%‘864 105,0007C(ZE =2 F : E|)WE
WERIEER - ZSROTEEC AERRE
NEBMZAEERS -

RZE-_—F+-A=+—8 K£EEK
T (B %75 139,346,000 T (= - T4 -
E)MIRITIEERBIKIF AL ERAAEY
836,849,000 (ZE-FF : E)WFL
BEHERWFIBERER - 25 BITEER
REREASEZHEREK -

RZZTE=-Z—F+=-_A=+—8 ' 817
EEB%620,674,000C (=T T4 :
75 #178,420,0000T) B 2R ERKEE K
= I&taﬁ%iﬁﬁm@ﬁ{; - IRITIEE
#&1754,001,000c(ZE 5 4F : B
160,000,0007T) IR EBEEF HER —F R
18 FIIMESEARYAE -

RNZZEZ—F+=-_A=+—8  %ZFRT
BERNEBRFMNENT1.99%%4.90% (=
T_TF :211%24.50%) °

AEENETRITERDBELETROGE
B AEBREFAAETEENHLL
R -RZTEZ—F+=ZA=+—0" ' K&
BEWAFAMDIRITERBRAERZH
R - FPLRITARIES X8 B BNES
B8 8%460,319,000 LM R EEEREHE

(_i TF | c RERITERBZEMN
BREREBIER - E’\_?:*i‘f‘:
)E] +—H KEEREHERDHARBET

I RRE(E R FOA o

TAEBERNREEER S B%460,319,000
THE  RZE-—&E=H  A&EHES
7#%160,319,0007T * WHAKEESTEAS
#£300,000,0007T 7 E £ EHEVS ARARTT
ZEAR o



30. ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES

Notes to the Financial Statements

Rt %5 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

30. EEXKRES

2021 2020
—E-—fF ZETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Analysed for reporting purposes as: DIE2MAR ¢
Current liabilities mEEE 1,267,068 -
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 1,665,539 =
2,932,607 -

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group publicly
launched two asset-backed securities schemes on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange. The purpose of launching the asset-backed
securities schemes is to securitise certain loans receivable and trade
receivables under operating lease business of the Group and to fund
the expansion of the leasing business of the Group. Details are as

follows:

On 21 May 2021, the Group publicly launched an asset-backed
securities scheme known as “Chengfeng Set Sail — Guojun Asset
Management — Chengtong Leasing Phase | Asset-backed Securities
Scheme”. The total issuance of the scheme was RMB1,490,000,000
(equivalent to HK$1,788,000,000) and the asset-backed securities are
divided into (i) priority class with total principal of RMB1,420,000,000
(equivalent to HK$1,704,000,000) which are listed and traded on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange with expected maturity date ranging
from 26 March 2022 to 26 March 2025 and with coupon rate ranging
from 3.80% to 4.30% per annum. The principal and interest of
the priority class asset-backed securities shall be repaid quarterly
in 15 instalments in 4 years; and (ii) subordinated class with total
principal of RMB70,000,000 (equivalent to HK$84,000,000) with no
coupon rate and with expected maturity date on 26 March 2026.
The subordinated class asset-backed securities is not listed. As at
31 December 2021, the Group held all the subordinated class asset-

backed securities.

Eki_;_*iJr A=+—HBLFE "
REER EBBAFR G ARBELMIEER
EXFHEIEE - T’Eﬁé{??{?iilﬁpﬁriu
ZEMAERAEE 2 ETREER
KEHEXBIET 2 EFRIKFIE 7%%)%
BRAEEHEEXBRHEED - FBW
T

R-ZE-_—FRA=-+—08  x&H
AHEL—ERAEIFBRRM - BEE
E - BREE—HEELXHERE
B2EEXHFEE - ZstEl@%
THREAARK1,490,000,0007T (48
BN B H1,788,000,0007T) @ MEE
TRERBEEIRNWVEEBEREAES A
AER#1,420,000,0007T (HE N B
1,704,000,00070) WA EBEHFR ST £
MhEE  EBEHPIHAE T _—F=
A-Z+R"BE-_ZE-_RAF=A=+<HF
L FEEENTEF3.80%=E4. 30% fﬁ
EEREESHELFZ A RHE
FADTRBPEFTEEE & H)M&i&
RS A ARE70,000,0007T FBEREE
84,000,0007T) @ EZEE R HIEER|H A
BZEZNF=ZAZ+/NH KEERE
EXHEETELHm R _—F+=
A=+—8 XEERBBMBALRERE
EX#HFES -

—
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MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ2—Z - —F+_-_F=+—HItFE

30.

31.

ASSET-BACKED SECURITIES (Continued)

On 24 November 2021, the Group publicly launched the second
asset-backed securities scheme known as “CITIC Securities —
Chengtong Financial Leasing Stated-owned Enterprise Green Asset-
backed Securities Scheme”. The total issuance of the scheme
was RMB1,480,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,776,000,000) and the
asset-backed securities are divided into (i) priority class with total
principal of RMB1,410,000,000 (equivalent to HK$1,692,000,000)
which are listed and traded on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with
expected maturity date ranging from 26 July 2022 to 26 January
2026 and with coupon rate ranging from 3.40% to 3.70% per
annum. The principal and interest of the priority class asset-backed
securities shall be repaid quarterly in 16 instalments in 4 years; and (ii)
subordinated class with total principal of RMB70,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$84,000,000) with no coupon rate and with expected maturity
date on 26 October 2026. The subordinated class asset-backed
securities is not listed. As at 31 December 2021, the Group held all
the subordinated class asset-backed securities.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's asset-backed securities with
carrying amount of approximately HK$2,932,607,000 (2020: nil) were
collateralised by the loans receivable of the Group with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$2,632,215,000 (2020: nil)
(note 22) and trade receivables under operating lease business with
carrying amount of approximately HK$2,145,000 (2020: nil) (note 21)
and priority class asset-backed securities with carrying amount of
HK$1,826,535,000 were guaranteed by CCHG, the ultimate holding
company of the Company.

UNSECURED OTHER LOAN

Unsecured other loan from third parties is unsecured, repayable on
demand and interest-free.

N
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30.

31.

BEXFEZ®

R-E-_—F+—A=-+mWAH ' X&E
EAMKELEE_—_BEZAIRELIEF - #
BRHEACHKEEEYHEFZE;E
ZEEYH IR - A e
THREAARK1,480,000,0007T (48
BNAEE1,776,000,0007T) @ MEE
TEBEEIRNWVEEBREAS A
AER#1,410,000,0007C (HE N B
1,692,000,00070) WA E/BFEHFRF AT E
MEEE  EEHIPEH_ZT-_—F+
A+ XBE-ZZE=-XE—A=+/<BAF
S ZEEENTHFE3.40%=E3.70% ° &
EEREESHESFZAERAESHI
FERAD T NPRFTEEE RV BEBR
RS B ARE70,000,0007T FBEREE
84,000,0007T) * EEB R K HIERIRIAFR
BT RFTA-+/H KEERE
EXEEAFATE LT R —F+—
A=+—8 XEEBBMBARELRE
EX#HFES -

R—ZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—H K&
EEEIREF:EEENARBE
2,932,607,0007C(ZZE T4 : ) ARE
[ BE 42 B 407815 2,632,215,0007T (&
—EF B 2 ERER (K22 RERAEE
A)7EH2,145,000C (B -FF - B) 2K
EHEXBBE TN Z2E S RWEIEE21)
{EIRR - MBRMEE &S % 1,826,535,0007C
ZEEEREAESHEFAANRRZ &
IRV N B RIE ISR IR o

EEREMER

F- T RHEZEEMEMERT REE
- EREBREERRE -



Notes to the Financial Statements

Rt %5 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

32. DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax liabilities

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities and movement
thereon during the current and prior year:

32. EEFIE

FEEHEARE

RAERERNEFREELZEXRELERE
BELEZBHIIWT

Revaluation  Undistributed
of investment  profits of PRC
properties subsidiaries * Total
FEF A A
REMEER R4 B IR * st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JEBET T BETFIT BT T
At 31 December 2019 R=ZB-NF
+=A=+—H 34,417 8,636 43,053
(Credit)/charge to profit or loss REEF GTA) 0k
(note 9) (H17%9) (2,781) 3,211 430
Release upon disposal of a & —EH B AR &R
subsidiary - (45) (45)
Exchange differences ME =5 2,309 817 3,126
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-FF
+=A=+—H 33,945 12,619 46,564
Charge to profit or loss (note 9) RIBE 0k (B7729) 363 6,639 7,002
Exchange differences P& =58 862 429 1,291
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB=—F
+=A=+—H 35,170 19,687 54,857
& Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed on dividends e BREPECERETE BT NF—A

declared in respect of profits earned by PRC entities to a non-PRC holding
company from 1 January 2008 onwards.

— H 2 e B X Ak P 2 U ) ) I o B AR
RAE RS ERTEMH -

—
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 32.

Deferred tax assets

The Group has estimated unused tax losses not recognised in the
consolidated financial statements as follows:

IEFER IE ()
EEBEEE

REEARNG A B RE BB 3
HRBEGEHIINT :

2021 2020

—E-—% —E-TF

HK$000 HK$000

BT T BT T

Estimated unused tax losses HEABARIEEE 135,484 131,562

No deferred tax asset in respect of the abovementioned estimated
unused tax losses have been recognised due to unpredictability
of future profit streams. Included in the unrecognised estimated
unused tax losses are losses of approximately HK$60,149,000 (2020:
HK$58,670,000) that will expire on various dates within five years
from the reporting dates. Other estimated unused tax losses may be
carried forward indefinitely.

e RE AR BB BERRETEA A%
B W ER FlE R R B AR B E R
RIELEFHIBEE - RIERMGFREAHE
EEPBEEABE60,149,000 (= FE =
T4 B HE58,670,0007T) SR & B HAHE
STREFERTRABERHZEE - Hibfhst
RENATRIE B A] R B AE S o

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. A&
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY
AEERAEAAT
2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
Number of Number of
shares shares
REE BEgrr-4=
‘000 HK$°000 ‘000 HK$'000
Fhi BT FA BT T
Issued and fully paid: BEETEREHR
At 1 January Kn—HA—H 5,808,735 2,185,876 5,808,735 2,185,876
Issue of shares as aresult of  FE AR BiMEITH
scrip dividend (note 12) R&An (Hfat12) 155,900 28,748 = =
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H 5,964,635 2,214,624 5,808,735 2,185,876

b
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 - - —F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD
SCHEME

(a)

Share option scheme

The Company has adopted the share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) on 27 June 2013. The purpose of the Scheme is
to provide incentives or rewards to participants thereunder for
their contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-caliber employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the Group and any invested
entity.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include (a) any employee
(whether full-time or part-time, including any executive director
but excluding any non-executive director of the Company) of,
or any individual for the time being seconded to work for the
Company, any subsidiary or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds any equity interest (“Invested Entity")
or any employee or officer of the controlling shareholder
of the Company; (b) any non-executive director (including
independent non-executive directors) of the Company, any
subsidiary or any Invested Entity; (c) any suppliers of goods
or services to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (d) any customer of the Group or any Invested Entity;
(e) any person or entity that provides research development
or other technological support to the Group or any Invested
Entity; (f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities issued or
proposed to be issued by any member of the Group or any
invested entity; (g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or
consultant to the Group relating to any area of business or
business development of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; and (h) any joint venture or business partner
of the Group who have contributed or may contribute to the
development and growth of the Group. For the proposes of
the Scheme, the offer may be made to any company wholly
owned by one or more eligible participants. The Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing on
the date it was adopted and will end on 26 June 2023.

China Chengtong Development Group Limited BB REBER L 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #iZ2—Z - —F+_-_F=+—HItFE

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD
SCHEME (Continued)

(a)

Share option scheme (Continued)

An offer of the grant of an option under the Scheme (the
"Option”) may be accepted within 21 days from the date
of grant together with a remittance of HK$1.00 by way
of consideration for the grant thereof. An Option may be
exercised during such period as the board of directors may
in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period
shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant. The
maximum number of shares which may be allotted and issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Scheme and any other share option
schemes adopted by the Group shall not exceed 30% of the
share capital of the Company in issue from time to time.

The subscription price for the shares on the exercise of the
Option shall be determined at the discretion of the board of
directors which shall not be less than the higher of (i) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the Company'’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares (note). Holding period
will be determined by directors upon granting.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
Option was granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the
Scheme. There was no Option outstanding as at 31 December
2021 and 2020.

Note: Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance, which came into operation
on 3 March 2014, the shares of the Company have ceased to have
nominal value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 - - —F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

BRESTERRORBTE @

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD
SCHEME (Continued)

(b)

Share award scheme

To provide a means to (i) recognise the contributions by
any full-time employees and directors (including executive
directors, non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors) of the Group selected by the board
of directors (collectively, the “Selected Employees”) and
to give incentives to them for the continual operation and
development of the Group; and (ii) attract suitable personnel
for the growth and further development of the Group, the
Company has adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme"”) which became effective on 1 July 2017
(the "Effective Date”). Subject to any early termination as
may be determined by the board of directors, the Share Award
Scheme remains valid and effective for 5 years commencing
from the Effective Date.

The board of directors or the trustee shall not make any
further award of shares to the Selected Employees which will
result in the total number of shares awarded by the board of
directors under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 1% of
the total ordinary shares in the share capital of the Company
as at the Effective Date.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
ordinary share of the Company was purchased by the trustee
for the purpose of the Share Award Scheme and no award of
share was granted to the Selected Employees under the Share
Award Scheme.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the trustee held
11,750,000 shares of the Company for the purpose of the
Share Award Scheme.

(b)

Bt R B &

REBRHMIDENRBESSEEN
AEEETAZBERMNES(BEH
TEE FRTEZRBILIFNT
ER) (I EEESTAEH/N
AR YRAKENSELERE
EEBETL : Rl AKREERK
E—TERRSIGEAE - ARA]
Eiﬁkﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁ
B RZT—tFtA-BTER
H%DE& Bt R ET &I B AR B
HERRAFRAERBER  HEES
GRADRELRAT T IAMLE

EZERRAATERKTEST
RO ZERG - AHEH%
%%A?FETFH%ﬁﬁﬁbéJriUFﬁFﬁE’]
B @BHEBRN AR A BAL
BT R EBRAAEN1% °

REBEEZZ-_—FR_TZFF+
“A=T—HLEFE ZRALE
HROEBAEEERALF LR
i - BBLEAR R AR R EE 8l M &
HE B TR EERD -

R FR-_ZT-_FTF+=A
=+—8  ®iRHERTEmE
SEAFEAEAKRRE11,750,0000% %

,T/'\ ®

—

China Chengtong Development Group Limited R EIFERREBER AR I,\'l 61




Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

35.

RESERVES
THE GROUP

Details of changes in reserves accounts of the Group are set out in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 74 and
75.

Notes:

Capital reserve

It represents the difference between the consideration paid for and the fair value
of net assets acquired by a former subsidiary of the Group from a company
beneficially owned by a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Statutory reserve

It represents the Group's share of statutory reserves of the subsidiaries in the PRC,
which is based on 10% profit for the year of these subsidiaries. Such statutory
reserve is non-distributable and shall be used to (i) make up prior years' losses or (i)
expand production operations.

Shares held for share award scheme

Shares held for share award scheme is comprised of the consideration paid for the
shares held for the share award scheme.

Employee share-based compensation reserve

It represents the cumulative expenses recognised on the granting of share-based
compensation to the employees over the vesting period.

Revaluation reserve

It represents the revaluation surplus upon transfer of owner-occupied properties to
investment properties.

Other reserve

It represents the difference between the consideration and the carrying amount of
the net assets attributable to the additional interests in subsidiaries being acquired
from non-controlling equity holders.

Exchange reserve

It comprises all foreign exchange differences arising on translation foreign
operation to presentation currency.

| 2021 Annual Report FERE

R
162
4

35. f#fE

FEM

AR D EDHERNET4RTSE
IHEARBEDE -

Kt -

B

BARNREEAEE —FAMBARKRBARE—
AEBRRESHEAN—HARNFEENRTE
2R ZEE -

JEIEH
BAEERENTEZHBAR O EERENHR -
TEREEHREBARZEREMNZ10%1E 1%
VR TE R BN AT £ 0 Uk B PR 49 (i) PR 6 12 4F B 1R Bk (i)
EAREERLE -

IR 2R B H 2 R

R SR EAT BIFE 2 B0 R A O SR A 81
FA 2B ERIE

KB 7 X A i 1 B BN 1o 15

BREEHRAIESRTURNO NS ERN
BB -

ERy ]

EERMEXERRENE R ZEGLRR -

H

BREREIFFERERTE AKBEHE R BRI
EEEBRNFEERAECHMNER -

S 1

BEZNERINEFTEREENAAINEZHE



Notes to the Financial Statements
MERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE
35. RESERVES (Continued) 35. @&
THE COMPANY ARAF
Employee
Shares held share-based
for share  compensation Exchange  Accumulated
award scheme reserve reserve profits Total
ARG ERTE  UARGIAH
HEzkRD EEMEHE 5 R @t
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFTT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFTT
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NF
+ZR=+-H (6,494) 702 (104,701) 66,430 (44,083)
Profit for the year and total FRENRFEA
comprehensive income for EEL et
the year - - - 112,161 112,161
At 31 December 2020 R-Z=%%
+ZR=+-H (6,494) 702 (104,701) 178,591 68,098
Dividend paid EARE - - - (52,173) (52,173)
Profit for the year and total FREMNREA
comprehensive income for FENEEE
the year - - - 45,960 45,960
At 31 December 2021 RZE--%
+=A=1+-H (6,494) 702 (104,701) 172,378 61,885

36.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2020

(a)

On 23 December 2019, an ordinary resolution was passed in
an extraordinary general meeting of the Company to approve
the disposal of 41% of the equity interest of FBELRERA
FR 2 7] (unofficial English translation being Chengtong Energy
Guangdong Company Limited) (“Chengtong Energy”) at
cash consideration of approximately HK$27,377,000. The
purchaser is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of CCHG, the
ultimate holding company of the Company. The disposal
was completed on 28 February 2020 and Chengtong Energy
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. The Group
recognised a gain on disposal of a subsidiary of approximately
HK$7,477,000. Upon completion of the disposal, the Group
retained 10% equity interest in Chengtong Energy and
accounted for as financial assets measured at FVOCI.

36. LENEAQF

BE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLEFE

(a)

RZE—-—hhF+=ZAR=+=8"
ARABRBERBFIAGEBL A
RERILEUNREREBEOLAEBE
27,377,000 ERBERERE
RARI([HBRERDAII%EE - B
REBRBIERNEZEREWNBEA
A MBBIERARA RN REE
ARG e HEFEER-_ZTE_ZTF—
A+ NBxKkBFBERETE
BAARKNKMBAG - AEEER
HE—EHBARZ RSN BB
7,477,000 ° A E BIETMIZ -
AEBRBRBIEEETRT10% A -
YAEAFEFAEMCEZEKEZ
SRMEETER -
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Continued)

36. HEMB QR ®@)

BE-Z-_ZF+-A=+—HLEFE

()
(a)  (Continued) @@ (&)
Chengtong Energy was principally engaged in the domestic AR EFEEFREARERNRE M
trading of coal business under the reportable segment of bulk BOBREDETHRARKE HE
commodity trading in the PRC. The details of this transaction % ZRHGHABHNRARARBAHR
have been set out in the circular of the Company dated 6 “E-NFF+_ARBZEH-
December 2019.
The net assets of Chengtong Energy as at the date of disposal BEEERENEEAH EEFED
were as follows: T
2020
—ETF
HK$'000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment YIE -~ BB RS 1,326
Trade and other receivables Z 5 R HEMERFIE 33,411
Bank balances and cash RITHEGERR® 47,813
Trade and other payables B 5 K KA pER 5RIE (32,674)
Deferred tax liabilities BB IEAE (45)
Lease liabilities HEAE (710)
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE 49,121
Total consideration — satisfied by cash BARME - AR 27,377
Gain on disposal of Chengtong Energy HEBBER 2 W&
Consideration RE 27,377
Non-controlling interests eI =S 23,795
Net assets disposed of BHEBEFE (49,121)
Fair value of equity interest retained in R IRIRE 2 Em A TFE
Chengtong Energy 6,312
Amounts paid to the purchaser in respect of the LA SR B PR IR E B S| Sk B 18
loss incurred during the transition period borne BERZHRE
by the Group (1,499)
Release of exchange reserve R BR IE 5 613
Gain on disposal & BT s 7,477

N
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Continued)

(a)

36. HEMB QT ®@

BE-Z-_ZF+-A=+—HLEFE

(&)
(Continued) @@ (&)
2020
—EEF
HK$'000
BEFT
Net cash outflow arising on disposal of HEFBEREERNIRES T F58 ¢
Chengtong Energy:
Cash consideration RERE 27,377
Deposits received Blike (2,738)
Bank balances and cash disposed of BRERTEFREAES (47,813)
Amounts paid to the purchaser in respect of the LSS [ A A 1R E BRI S| BV s 18
loss incurred during the transition period borne B E R 2 HRIE
by the Group (1,499)
(24,673)

Note:

(i) Partial cash consideration of HK$2,738,000 was received during the
year ended 31 December 2019 and included in other payables as at
31 December 2019. The remaining consideration of HK$24,639,000
was received during the year ended 31 December 2020.

On 26 June 2020, an ordinary resolution was passed in the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company to approve
the disposal of 100% of the equity interest of Chengtong
Investment Group Limited (“Chengtong Investment”)
at cash consideration of approximately HK$267,716,000.
The purchaser is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CCHG, the
ultimate holding company of the Company. The disposal
was completed on 24 July 2020 and Chengtong Investment
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company. The Group
recognised a gain on disposal of a subsidiary of approximately
HK$42,752,000.

Chengtong Investment and its subsidiaries (“Chengtong
Investment Group”) were principally engaged in property
development in the PRC under the reportable segment of
property development and investment. The details of this
transaction have been set out in the circular of the Company
dated 10 June 2020.

Hiat -

(i) OB REB2,738,000T A E
EZT-AF+-A=1+—BLEE
AWE - MAR-ZZE—HE+—A=
+—BHEMEMNRER - R TRES
#24,639,000 TN EE_T T F+
Z—A=t+—RHILFERIKE -

b) R-ZZE-_FTFEA-_+"H AR
ARBREREIASRATBAEE
D ERERBIRESEB AR AT
(HBREN100%E - BELRE
4 5B ¥267,716,0007T - BXR AR
BIEROE2EHRANBRR - MH
BIERARNRBNZRER AT -
HEEBER T _TF LA -+K@©
Bk BHBRERNFAARAK
MEAR - AEBERLE M
BRrlzWELAB42,752,000

JG ©

WEBRERHENBAR(HBRES
B EBZNTERENEERIIE
BEDHRBETHYERR - AEX
FHBENRARBABEH/A-_T_F
FRATHZEEK -
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MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. HEHEQ @
For the year ended 31 December 2020 (Continued) BE-—E-_EF+-A=+—HLEE
(#8)
(b)  (Continued) ) &

The net assets of Chengtong Investment as at the date of
disposal were as follows:

WBRENLERHCEEFAEN
T~

2020
—E-FF
HK$'000
BT T
Property, plant and equipment Y~ BB R&E 128
Properties held for sale FEREmE 78,914
Properties under development BRAME 56,459
Properties held for development FIEZERMZE 260,661
Trade and other receivables Z 5 & H e IE 198
Pledged bank deposits DR ITIER 37
Bank balances and cash RITHEFERAS 358
Trade and other payables B 5 & H A 5E (83,049)
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE 313,706
Total consideration — satisfied by cash BRE - LRSI 267,716
Gain on disposal of Chengtong Investment HERBREZ WS
Consideration RE 267,716
Non-controlling interests SRR 103,531
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE (313,706)
Release of exchange reserve BRBRIE (5,822)
Directly attributable cost HEEAEKAR (6,322)
Amounts paid to the purchaser in respect of the LS B B iR HA R S| B & 18
loss incurred during the transition period borne ENERZFIA
by the Group (2,645)
Gain on disposal S B 42,752

™
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

36. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. HEHEQ @
(b)  (Continued) ) (&)
2020
—EEF
Note HK$'000
s BT
Net cash inflow arising on disposal of HENBREEENRESRAFRE
Chengtong Investment:
Cash consideration received BUERENRE 267,716
Amounts received from the purchaser in MBI EEBRER A EESTE
respect of the amounts owed by BWE R ZFHIB
Chengtong Investment Group to the
Group (i) 79,069
Bank balances and cash disposed of BERERTEFREAES (358)
Amounts paid to the purchaser in respect LA SR B PR 8% BRI 5 B
of the loss incurred during the EEENERZHIE
transition period borne by the Group (2,645)
343,782

Note: HiaF -

(i) Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement dated 5 May 2020 (i) BEARREERRLERRIEE
entered into between the Company and the purchaser in respect of 100%BET UM AP AT -2 F
disposal of 100% of the equity interest of Chengtong Investment, AARBRREERGZ  ERB4E
the purchaser would settle all outstanding loans and interests BRBALEARABEARARGE
accrued thereon owing by @A LGB EBR A A (unofficial KRENKMBAR) ZBEHESTHETK
English translation being Chengtong Dafeng Harbour Development RIERARR—HMBARNAAE R
Limited), a subsidiary of Chengtong Investment, to a subsidiary of EREERREEFFE -

the Company immediately before completion of the disposal.

—
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BEARS
(a) Transactions and balances with related parties (a) EHBEAZXRZR&EH
Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, MR EREMEIBAFAEEEIN
during the year, the Group had also entered into the following FR - ANEEITE T BEERETT
significant transactions with the following related parties: INTERRZS :
Nature of
Name of related parties transactions/balances 2021 2020
BELER R/ EumE —E-—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT
The wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
ultimate holding company:
BRAERAGZZEMB AT :
China Huandao Group Limited" Interest income 2,261 2,329
HFERESSBEARAR FLEMA
Other receivables 417 355
HAth fE R IE
Hainan Huandao Industrial Development Interest income 607 -
Limited" BN
HHESEEEERRAA
China Chengtong Finance Corporation Ltd.  Interest income - 2
B EREEAF] MEMA
China Chengtong Hong Kong Company Interest expense - 461
Limited MERX
HFEHETEARAA
Chengtong International Limited Interest expense - 38
HBEEEZER AR AR
Management expense 672 429
EERBETH
China Chengtong Investment Company Interest expense 1,113 599

Limited
A B iR & B RR A

B

R
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 - - —F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

37. BEARZ®

Transactions and balances with related parties (Continued) (a) EHBEAZRIREHRE)
Nature of
Name of related parties transactions/balances 2021 2020
BES LR R/ HEHHE —EB--F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
The wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
ultimate holding company: (Continued)
BRERATZZEMBLAT @ (&)
Chengtong Mixed Reform Private Fund Rental income 194 -
Management Co., Ltd." HEWA
PBRNALEESEEAR AR
Received in advance 158 -
T U R IE
Associate of the ultimate holding
company of the Company:
AATBRARERDNRZHE QT :
Ningxia MCC Meili Cloud New Energy Loans receivable 32,366 39,869
Co., Ltd." R E
BFEHIRENEFERERAA Interest income from loans 2,519 2,176
receivable
FERE 2 F B A
A The English names are for identification only

Save as disclosed above, other balances and transactions with
related parties at the end of the respective reporting dates
or during the respective years are set out in the consolidated
statement of financial position and notes 23 and 36.

Transactions and balances with other government-related
entities

The Group itself is part of a larger group of companies
controlled by CCHG (CCHG and its subsidiaries are referred to
as the "CCHG Group”) which is a stated-owned enterprise
under the direct supervision of the State Council of the PRC.
The management consider that the Company is ultimately
controlled by the government of the PRC and the Group
operates in an economic environment currently dominated by
entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced
by the PRC government (“government-related entities”).

Apart from transactions with CCHG Group, the Group
has transactions including but not limited to the leasing
arrangements and bulk commodity trade with other relevant
government-related entities.

(b)

BREXFEEEN  REREAH
Xﬁ%*ﬁfﬂifméﬁﬁﬁ%HZﬁﬁ@
BHRRXZEN A MR A
KB 5E23 %36 °

HEHMBRNBEER 2R RER

AEEBSATEHBEBREKES
Z BA b m R (R Hx&ﬁ
MEARAEHEZEREEDET
—EXRBRBEER &5 - BRE
BRR  ARBAXPBERMARRE
w - AR E B B & E AR K
REXPEBTES - BAEHI=%

El=]

FEAREZER((RNRERR))
sElc
RERBEREEZZH - K&

BiEEEMARBRNEEERETT
X5 BREEFSRREERHERK
FEMmES -
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MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #EZ —ZE=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 37. BEFRS @)
(b) Transactions and balances with other government-related HHEMBTBREER RS RER
entities (Continued) (&)
Details of the transactions with relevant government-related AR EER IR 2 FH1E
entities are set out below: HIWAT
2021 2020
:g: - ﬂi = ?
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Transactions with other relevant HHEMMEBERNEEER >
government-related entities: x5
Interest income from loans receivable B2 F2WA 180,606 96,921
Consultancy service income from leasing MEZBE 2 ARBHA
arrangements 76,132 41,736
Rental income under operating lease in EHEB AR R ERE LS
respect of owned machineries and HEETHSKA
equipment 34,980 4,606
Revenue from bulk commodity trade AFREmE S 2 WA 192,430 104,669
Purchase for bulk commodity trade ARAmB S 2 RKiE 143,655 195,871

o
170 |
-

In addition, the Group has entered into various transactions,
including other purchases and operating expenses with
other government-related entities. In the opinion of the
management, except for the transactions disclosed above,
other transactions are considered as individually and collectively
insignificant to the operation of the Group for both years.

The Group also has bank deposits, loans receivable,
financial assets investments, trade and other receivables,
trade and other payables, lease liabilities and other general
financing facilities with certain entities and banks which are
government-related entities in its ordinary course of business.
The management are of the opinion that those government-
related entities do not have the power to govern or participate
in the financial and operating policies of the Group and
the transactions with these entities are conducted in the
ordinary course of the Group's business. The Group believes
that it has provided, at the best of its knowledge, adequate
and appropriate disclosure of related party transactions as
summarised above.

2021 Annual Report EE#RE
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 37. BEFRS @)
(c) The remunerations of key management personnel, which (c) FARAFEEBAB(NEERSRE
are the directors and senior management, during the year, BEE)2HMOT :
were as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—-F —T=TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BEFT
Short-term employee benefits HHEEE 3,044 3,425
Post-employment benefits BEER 12 12T 27 36
3,071 3,461
38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. EXEBRERE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior year.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total debt to total
assets ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total
assets. Total debt is calculated as loan from a related party, bank
borrowings, asset-backed securities and unsecured other loan
disclosed in notes 23, 29, 30 and 31 respectively.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a continuous basis. As part of this review, the directors of the
Company consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors
of the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-
backs as well as the issue of new debt.

AEBNARE RS ERRAEEANE
BT REEE - AR EBE(EERR
AR BREEIBABR - B L
£ ARE ERBRESTE -

AREEFAESABEEEEE 2 L RER
HEER - W RZBEBABGRIABEE
FE - ERBES B AMEE23 29 30K
JINWEMRE —ZBEEFHER - RI1TE
B EEIRBLFRERAEGER -

ARRESERBELENEARBET
B BMATHEZ MO DARBESY
BARARSBEERNNBERRETE
& RBEARREZNHEEEE  A5H
RBEBNRE - BITHER - BEBRD I
RBETHES EBREARBREIF
-
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HHE—-Z ——

39.

38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 38. EXEREE®)
The total debt to total assets ratio at the end of reporting period was RIRERARNESEREBEE 2 LED
as follows: T
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TF
HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Bank borrowings HRITEE 1,441,775 338,420
Asset-backed securities BEXFFES 2,932,607 =
Unsecured other loans EIEMEMER 600 600
Loan from a related party RE—BBEEFTNER 47,556 23,592
Total debt BI5HREE 4,422,538 362,612
Total assets B E 8,167,806 3,906,747
Total debt to total assets ratio BB EEEEE LR 54.1% 9.3%
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. MKEKRER
Categories of financial instruments SRTIAEDE
2021 2020
—E-—-F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$000
BT T BT T
Financial assets SREE
Other financial assets measured at FVPL BAFEFABEN
Hiv &Rt & E - 37,414
Other financial assets measured at FVOCI BAFEFAREMEEKER
Hit &Rt & E 81,508 74,192
Measured at amortised costs: LB EK AR E -
Other financial assets HEfemEE - 7,330
Finance lease receivables and loans fEREEEE R ERER
receivables 5,865,106 2,072,703
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E Mt EWRIA 60,894 96,817
Loans to related parties BT@ELTER 48,800 36,404
Pledged bank deposits EIEMIRITIF K 4,413 5,556
Bank balances and cash RITEGFRIAES 1,380,259 859,618
7,359,472 3,078,428
Financial liabilities eMBE
At amortised costs: WA -
Trade and other payables B 5 N HAth FE I 5RIR 373,265 349,524
Bank borrowings RITEE 1,441,775 338,420
Asset-backed securities BEXHES \ 2,932,607 =
Loan from a related party KB —BRAETHNER 47,556 23,592
Unsecured other loan IR E M E R 600 600
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,098 7,040
4,798,901 719,176

F+-A=+—HLFE
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39. BIKRABEE®

Financial risk management objectives and policies MHEEREEBEREE

Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective CRMTEFBERSMEHESE - HZESR
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments include TEEHENEREE f”ﬁ@(ﬂ - (BER
currency risk, price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. & FMERR - EERBREEBESRA
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The i o ﬁ%@ ZZM—JBHEEEA:FL 2 Y IBUER 51
management of the Group manages and monitors these exposures cAEEEEEEEREREZER
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and % J«Mﬁf%&ﬁqﬁxﬁli‘ﬂ%mma HHE

effective manner.

Currency risk BExmEE
As at 31 December 2021, except for the following, the Group do not RZZEZ—F+=—A=+—8 " BRUTF
have significant financial assets or financial liabilities denominated MESN - RNEERIRE ARG EAEI 6
in currencies other than their functional currencies at the end of the BRI BB EREREES S
reporting period. BERE -
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and liabilities R —FR_FTTF+_A=1+—
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of A AEBNUSEEQRNEEBIUIINE
the respective group companies as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 KEitEzeRmEERBEZRABSHSIN
are as follows: S
2021 2020
s T T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Assets BE
RMB AR 147 173,972
United States Dollar (“USD") EI(E A 223,090 331,815
Liabilities Bf&E
usD ET 58,707 54,073
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy AEB BRI WEINE SRR - BEREE
but the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will SERIMNERK WEREVERZEY
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the FREARIME RS o
need arise.

—
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B 7 B B S B (1)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

BHEBEERREREEGE)

Currency risk (Continued) BHmpE (&)
Sensitivity analysis BURZ T

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, financial assets denominated
in USD and RMB belongs to the group companies of which their
functional currency is HKS$. As HKS is pegged to USD, the Group
considers that the currency risk arising from transactions in USD is
not significant.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in RMB against HK$. 5% is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’'s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in the exchange rate between RMB
and HKS$. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding RMB
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
reporting date for a 5% change in exchange rates. The analysis
illustrates the impact for a 5% strengthening of RMB against the
HKD and a positive number below indicates an increase in profit for
the year. For a 5% weakening of RMB against HKD, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the profit for the year.

RZEZ—FRZZFFF+HA=1T—
H UETRARBHEZEREETB
REBRQTF - MEEEEAEE - AR
R T RN - AEBRA - AETT#E
TIRGMEEEBRBILTERK -

TERALAEEAREEBEAERRZE
BU%HIBURE - 5% mAEZEEAEANL
ERINEERESTANSRELE - T
EEEHARERER ZHWEXNSIER
RREFHML - REINERRIDAS
MANAREHENERIER - ANRER
HERIE R HIR5 % BB E T LA -
ZOMMBR T AR L BT ES %N
& M NREEBRFERENAIEINER
AR BEEZES% » AIFRENE S
NEERRNTE

2021 2020

—E-—F —EEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Impact to the profit for the year HBFE RN RN ZE 7 8,699

Price risk

Certain of the Group’s other financial assets are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting date with reference to the quoted
prices. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity price risk and the
management of the Group will monitor the price movements and
take appropriate actions when is required.

Sensitivity analysis is performed by management to assess
the exposure of the Group’'s financial results to price risks of
listed other financial assets at the end of each of the reporting
period. If the prices of the respective instruments held by the
Group had been 5% (2020: 5%) higher/lower as at 31 December
2021, the other comprehensive income would have been
approximately HK$3,493,000 (2020: the profit for the year and other
comprehensive income would have been approximately HK$82,000
and HK$3,150,000 respectively) higher/lower respectively.

N
1 74/I 2021 Annual Report FEERE

E%m B

AEEETHHNESREEN2RRE I
REREARARZAFETNE - Bt - K
SEHEREERRR  MAEEERE
REZEBREBIRFTERRIESE
i

ERBETEREDMATER S RE H
AAEBYSEENAR L EMSR
EENEXRRAR HR_Z-_—F+_A
=+—H WAKEFENSEIAN
BRIEM, L5 %(ZE-_TF : 5%) -
Bl E 2 m AR zs o Bl A0, A 40 7 i
3,493,000 L(ZE-ZF : FRHEMNRH
2T U 2 5 Bl N, Rk > 497 #582,000
JC K & #3,150,0007T) ©
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to the Group's bank
balances, finance lease receivables, loans receivable, other financial
assets and bank borrowings. The fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to the Group’s loans to/(from) the related parties, lease
liabilities and asset-backed securities. The Group currently does not
have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the management of
the Group monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The Group has exposure to cash flow interest rate risk due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates after considering the impact of the interest
expenses being capitalised as properties under development at the
end of the reporting period. A 50 basis points (2020: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease is used which represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

As at 31 December 2021, if interest rates on the interest bearing
instruments with maturity over 1 year had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all of other variables were held constant, the post-
tax profit would increase/decrease by approximately HK$2,209,000
(2020: HK$2,109,000).

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables, finance lease receivables, loans receivable, other
financial assets, loans to related parties and bank balances. In
order to monitor the credit risk, the management of the Group
has reviewed the recoverable amount of each aforesaid individual
assets at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEliE R E

39.

B 7 B S B (4
BEEREERERBEGE)
FII R 7 B

AEeRENEERETZENEBERITH
7 BMEHEREFIA  BEER - Bt
EMEERRITEERM - ATFENXRE
BT ERAEEXT (RB)HEEHFZE
R HEABREEXHKIESAHR - A%
BB EMNEERBER - AT - AREE
BEESESEMNERAR YRR ELEREE
BEREAN AR °

FRTHEHEED - AEEEERSR
SRR -

BT

T%?’IJ@ﬁ(WF SIWEE- 3ol iyl
@ WEEEBBERRNEXHERER
BRPYMEZZE - RAZ L TFE50
BEREZE(ZZE-TF : s0AER)RKRER
BRI AT BL B B 2 FF o

N-ZE-—F+-_A=+—8 " HEHA
BB — Tt BT A ZFIR T 2500
B2 mAeTEEtEERETE - QIR
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Impairment and provision policies

The Group's policy requires the review of individual outstanding
amounts at least monthly or more regularly depending on individual
circumstances or market condition.

The Group's impairment requirements are based on an expected
credit loss model. The Group applies simplified approach to measure
ECL on trade and bills receivables and finance lease receivables; and
general approach to measure ECL on deposits and other receivables,
loans receivable, other financial assets at amortised cost, loans from
related parties and bank balances. Under the simplified approach, the
Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL. Under the general approach, financial assets migrate through
the following three stages based on the change in credit risk since
initial recognition: Stage 1: 12-month ECL, Stage 2: Lifetime ECL —
not credit-impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired.

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of default occurring on the financial instrument assessed
at the reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group considers that
a default event occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its
credit obligations to the Group in full; or (i) the financial asset is 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion
is more appropriate. The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Information such as failure to make
payments of principal or interest on their contractually due dates, an
actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results
of the debtor and an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating (if any) will be
taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 2 - - —F+_-_A=+—HILtFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment and provision policies (Continued)

For other receivables and loans receivable, the number of days past
due ("DPD") and loan-to-collateral value (“LTV") will be used to
determine significant increase in credit risk.

Based on DPD, LTV and internally derived credit ratings, deposits
and other receivables, loans receivable, other financial assets
measured at amortised cost, loans to related parties and bank
balances are classified into 3 stages.

When estimating the ECL on loan and advances to customers,
the Group has incorporated forward-looking economic information
through the use of industry trend and experienced credit judgement
to reflect the qualitative factors.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, other than those financial assets
whose carrying amounts best represent the maximum exposure
to credit risk, the Group’'s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group arising from the amount of
financial guarantees provided by the Group is disclosed in note 41.

The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
to cover its credit risks associated with its financial assets, except
that the credit risks associated with finance lease receivables and
loans receivable as disclosed in note 22. The Group considers that
the credit risk arising from the finance lease receivables and loans
receivable is significantly mitigated by the leased equipment and
facilities, land from the related party of the lessee, unlisted equity
interest and account receivables from the lessees and the related
parties of the lessees and deposits received from customers held as
collaterals, with reference to the estimated value of the collaterals at
the end of each reporting period.

Financial assets with credit risk exposure

Trade and bills receivables and finance lease receivables

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer rather than the industry
or country in which the customers operate and therefore significant
concentrations of credit risk primarily arise when the Group has
significant exposure to individual customers.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

b
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Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

Loans receivable

Before accepting any new lessee under leasing arrangement, the
Group assesses the credit quality of each potential lessee and
defined limits for each lessee. The Group also demands certain
lessees to provide corporate guarantees from their respective
shareholders or related parties or other assets as collateral to
the Group at the time the leasing arrangement is entered into. In
addition, the Group has reviewed the repayment history of leasing
payments from each lessee to determine the recoverability of the
loans receivable. Also, the Group takes into account information
specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operate. As at 31 December
2021, except for the balances of HK$61,830,000 from two debtors
(2020: HK$22,129,000 from one debtor) were considered as an
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but not
credit-impaired and the loss allowance of which is measured at
lifetime ECL, the loss allowance for all other loans receivables are
measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Bank balances and other financial assets at amortised cost

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group has bank balances,
deposits and other financial assets in certain corporations and
banks in the PRC and Hong Kong. The credit risk on these deposits
and other financial assets is insignificant as the counterparties are
financial institutions with high credit-rating or with good reputation.

Loans to related parties

For the loans to related parties, the management considered the
related parties do not have significant credit risk due to the past
payment history and also taking into account of the sound financial
performance and position of its holding company to meet contractual
cash flow obligation. No impairment had been provided under
12-month ECL assessment.
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Financial assets with credit risk exposure (Continued)

The average expected loss rate applied is approximately 0.22%

39.

B 75 L B i ()
HEAREEIERIE®E)
EEmR (E)

EIEG (S B 4% f A E ()

PRAE A IEEF I EIRE BK0.22% (= F

(2020: 0.05%). Movement in the loss allowance account during the ZEF 1 0.05%) c FAREEBRER+TD
year is as follows: Ehn T
2021 2020
—B-—-fF —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At 1 January n—HA—H 1,121 250
Impairment losses provided during the year: RERFHRZRERRE
— Trade receivables - B ZEUGRIE (4) 5
- Other receivables - HAb EUGRIE - 9
- Finance lease receivables and loans mﬂﬁﬁ%ﬁgﬂﬂl KIE &
receivable FEIE R 11,835 810
Exchange difference IE =5 218 47
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—AH 13,170 1,121

As at 31 December 2021, credit risk of the Group is concentrated on
(a) three customers from bulk commodities trading, with aggregated
amount of trade and bills receivables of HK$27,422,000; (b) loans to
related parties of HK$48,800,000; and (c) 54 lessees from 62 leasing
arrangements, with aggregated amount of finance lease receivables
and loans receivable of HK$5,865,106,000.

As at 31 December 2020, credit risk of the Group is concentrated on
(a) two customers from bulk commodities trading, with aggregated
amount of trade and bills receivables of HK$34,277,000; (b) loan
to a related party of HK$36,404,000; and (c) 24 lessees from 29
leasing arrangements, with aggregated amount of loans receivable
of HK$2,072,703,000.

To monitor the credit risk exposure, the management of the Group
has reviewed the recoverability of each debtor periodically. As at 31
December 2021, except for two debtors from loans receivable with
balances of HK$61,830,000 (2020: a debtor from loans receivable
with balance of HK$22,129,000) were considered as significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit-
impaired, there was no significant increase in credit risk among
these financial assets.

R-ZFZ—F+-A=+—0 AKEZ
EERRETREQE=FZREFZARA®
B5  BHRUGEREREEAEAS
#27,422,0007T ; (b)) T EEER BEREE
48,800,0007T : K (c)Ei54% & A 2 6218
HEZH  REAMSRKGIERERER
458 BB ¥5,865,106,0007T °

75@7777¢+ A=+—H &&H
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u%féi% B SRERRIERENERAE
A 7E#34,277,0007T 5 (b)IRTEERER
75 #536,404,0007T ¢ M (c)#124% A
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

39. BIEKRERE®)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management of the Group to finance the Group's operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
of the Group monitors the utilisation of bank loans and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

Liquidity table

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be demanded for repayment. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.

At 31 December 2021

BHEBEERREREEGE)
MBI TR

AABDETRRERENES  AEEUES
ERAGEEBMETERREREAKESR
BESRRENSAEELERHES R
MIER S RER B HRTZENKF - K
SEEREEERBRITERNER  BERM
BERELY -

TRAAFINAEENFETESHEER
BREEFHANBRTEOH - TRIIRE
AEERAREREENZTEAANSE
BEAMAERTRERE - ZRBENB

R-ZE-_—%+Z-A=t+—H

Weighted
average Within After 1year  After 2 years Total
interest rate 1 year or but within but within  undiscounted Carrying
per annum on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
MEFH -ERY -4 RER RERRE
il RER BRRER BREER TEB REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BEFT BETT BETx BEFT
Trade and other payables B REMEMNE - 373,265 - - 373,265 373,265
Bank borrowings RTfEE 3.61% 1,424,245 52,383 20,352 1,496,980 1,441,775
Asset-backed securities BEYHES 3.60% 1,312,680 1,021,659 793,522 3,127,861 2,932,607
Unsecured other loan BERELBER - 600 - - 600 600
Loan from a related party RE—LHELN
B 3.65% 49,292 - - 49,292 47,556
Lease liabilities HEARE 1.97% 3,159 - - 3,159 3,098
3,163,241 1,074,042 813,874 5,051,157 4,798,901
Financial guarantee issued BLEZHMEER
Maximum amount guaranteed ~ EERESEE 224,455 - - 224,455 -

R
1 80//I 2021 Annual Report FE#RE



For the year ended 31 December 2021 &%=
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity table (Continued)

At 31 December 2020

——

=

39. MiIKEBREE®)

BREBEEREREEE)
e B ()
TBE R F (&)

R-B-®F+-A=+—8

Rt %5 3R & B 5

F+_A=+—HLEFE

Weighted
average Within After 1 year After 2 years Total
interest rate 1 year or but within but within undiscounted Carrying
per annum on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
T —ERFH —5% EEX KRR
EFE REX BRAER ERAER mEE KA
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BETT BET BETT BETT BETT
Trade and other payables B 5 RAMERNFIE - 349,524 = = 349,524 349,524
Bank borrowings RITEE 3.10% 348,901 = = 348,901 338420
Unsecured other loan BERAMER = 600 = = 600 600
Loan from a related party RE—ZHELN
B 3.65% 24,453 = = 24,453 23,592
Lease liabilities RERRE 4.47% 3,983 33712 - 7,355 7,040
727,461 3372 - 730,833 719,176
Financial guarantee issued B A2 BER
Maximum amount guaranteed ~ BERESEE 212,924 = = 212,924 =

—
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 39. MBEKREEE
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) HHEEMREEEEREEGE)
Liquidity risk (Continued) T B B (%)
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the directors of KREBRAEBENMBMNR - KRRAGESR
the Company considered it is unlikely that the banks will exercise RBITPIRAIGEEITEERIE %;&Jiiﬁﬂ
its discretion to demand immediate repayment. The directors of the B ARAEERE - RITERBRIE
Company considered that the bank loans will be repaid in accordance ,\W\Tﬁ EFTE ZETEIEEH Hﬂtai& NN
with the scheduled payment dates set out in the loan agreement F Bt
which are summarised in the table below:
At 31 December 2021 R=ZB=-—-f+=A=+—H
Weighted
average Within After 1year  After 2 years Total
interest rate 1 year or but within but within  undiscounted Carrying
per annum on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
MEFY —ERg —-F GEX: AERRE
Rl REXR BRMER BREER RELT REE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
BEFT BETT BETT BEETT BEETT
Bank borrowings RAEE 3.61% 944,374 311,373 262,623 1,518,370 1,441,775
At 31 December 2020 R-Z2-Z2F+=-A=+—H
Weighted
average Within After 1 year After 2 years Total
interest rate 1 year or but within but within undiscounted Carrying
per annum on demand 2 years 5 years cash flows amount
MEFS —FR% —ik mER AERES
FHE REX BREER BREER mEEst REE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
BT BT  BETT  BETT BB TT
Bank borrowings RITHE 3.10% 210,723 47,184 98,226 356,133 338,420
Transfer of financial assets BECREE

b
182 |
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At 31 December 2021, the Group publicly launched two asset-
backed securities schemes (note 30) and entered into asset transfer
agreements to transfer the loans receivable with carrying amount of
HK$2,632,215,000 (2020: nil) and trade receivables under operating
lease business with carrying amount of HK$2,145,000 (2020: nil)
to the managers of the schemes. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the Group has retained the substantial risks and
rewards, which include default risks relating to these receivables,
and accordingly, it continued to recognise the full carrying amounts
of these receivables.
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AHREEHMEBEEEZFEEGE (M3
30)  WRIVEEERBZKEEBERS
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Notes to the Financial Statements

Rt %5 3R & B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

40. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a) Financial assets measured at fair value

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group's
financial instruments measured at the end of the
reporting period on a recurring basis, categorised into
the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair
value measurement is classified is determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Quoted prices in active markets
for identical items (unadjusted);

Level 2 valuations: Inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices);

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

40. €I EZAFE

(a)

UAREARNEREE
(i) RFEER

TREJNHERRREREN
EEABNAKEERTAN
RFE  BREABTEMBRE
ERFE 13RI A FEFEIESR
M=MAFEER - A FEF
ERBNERAR2E/REN A
AR ABRN AT BRI

REEUEFAT

—#&FHE - HREERERT
152 wE(CREH
)

TGRS - BRET AR IRE
Z5 - BESAE
BB 5% (BB %) 3k
M (A EEDT
ERR)TERS
N ¢

=Pl EREATARE
BABEIHEAA
F1E -

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021

RZEB--F+-A=+-HBWATEHE

Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2021
R-B=-%
+=A
=t—-B#H
- —& =R AYVE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BYETTT BETT BYETTT
Recurring fair value measurement REMATETE
Financial assets: SREE:
Other financial assets: HitomesE
Financial assets measured at FVOCI: BRATEFAZMZE
Wmz SREE -
- unlisted equity investments - ETRERE - - 11,658 11,658
- shares listed in Hong Kong - REB EMMRK 69,850 - - 69,850

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MRERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

40. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 40. €T EZAFE®)
(Continued)
(a) Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued) (a) HUAFEARNESBEEE)
(i) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) (i) RFEZERGE

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020
R-ZE-ZF+-A=+-BNLTEFE

Fair value
as at
31 December
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
RZZZZE
+=AR
=+t—Al
—#& & =& NFHE
HK$°00 HK$'000 HK$°00 HK$'000
BB BETT BETT BB

Recurring fair value measurement REMATLEHE
Financial assets: SREE:
Other financial assets: HitemesE
Financial assets measured at FVOCI: BATEALMZE
Wmz SREE -
- unlisted equity investments - FEMRERE = = 11,200 11,200
- shares listed in Hong Kong -REBLEMHRR 62,992 = = 62,992
Financial assets measured at FVPL: BATEFABRLZ
- shares listed in Hong Kong -REBLEMORR 1,639 = = 1,639
- unlisted investment - FEWRE - = 35,775 35,775
There were no transfers amongst Level 1, Level 2 and PREEERNRAFESRN—
Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy during both years. HZHBR=FH 2 EREE

%o

\
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

40. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 40. €T EZAFE®)
(Continued)
(a) Financial assets measured at fair value (Continued) (a) HUAFEARNESBEEE)
(ii)  Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 3 fair (i) =RAFEFEEHHEES
value measurements ERA B
Significant

Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range
HELZE EXFUBERAHE &E

Financial assets:

CREE
Other financial assets:
HitemEE :
- financial assets measured at FVOCI:  Discounted cash flow Discount rate and Discount rate: 16.55% —
unlisted equity investments discount for lack of 17.75% (2020: 16.57% —
marketability 19.70%);
Discount for lack of
marketability: 10% —
20% (2020: 10% = 20%)
-BATEMARBZEREZ MIRBRERE BYIRE R Z 15 BEIRE : 16.65% — 17.75%
TREE TRENEBEIR (ZEZTF
FEmRERE 16.57% —19.70%)

BRZmHREIERLE ¢
10%-20%
bt
10%—20%)

- financial assets measured at FVPL: Discounted cash flow Expected yield and N/A (2020: Expected yield:

unlisted investments discount rate 9.49%; Discount rate:
9.49%)
- BAFEHABR SHEE - MRRERE TEH B3R & B IR K THACEZEF
FELETRE TEHAEIR : 9.49% :

BEIRE 1 9.49%)

(b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at (b) BAFEUMIENEREERE
other than fair value BN ALE
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying $ T§$m BCRZEZ—FR
amounts of the Group's financial instruments not measured at —ECTF = )El +—BAEH
fair value are stated approximately to their fair values as at 31 jl:ﬁH”" ~NFEEF= E’Jé Bt T AR
December 2021 and 2020. HESEEAFEES

—
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 HE T -—F+-_A=+—HILFE

41.

42,

statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 41. IAREE
As at 31 December 2021, the Group had contingent liabilities in RZEZ—F+=-A=+—H  X&&
relation to guarantees of approximately HK$224,455,000 (2020: BEEREREBONXABEND
HK$212,924,000) given to banks in respect of mortgage loans 224,455,000 (=T F : K
granted to purchasers of certain property units. 212,924,0007T) * ERERRITRETY
¥BNERETRBERMEHR -
Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, upon default in mortgage BRERER  EZZERBRRIEBN
payments by these purchasers, the Group is responsible for repaying o AEKEEETRARITEEENERK
the outstanding mortgage principals together with any accrued BEMNZRBAE - ERERETF S
interest and penalty owed by the defaulted purchasers to the banks, & MASBEBEEERBEMENETEE
and the Group is entitled to take over the legal title and possession eNETARE -
of the related properties.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the financial impact ARBEZRE  RELAVBERESE
arising from providing the above financial guarantees is insignificant BB EBM T RE MR EZSNB
and accordingly, they were not accounted for in these financial WERPARR -
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group was not involved in RZEZ—FRZT_FFF+A=1+—
any litigation or arbitration of material importance and there was no A AEEBEP REMEARFLRM
litigation or claim of material importance known to the directors of o ARREEFHTANBEEMMEKRT 4
the Company to be pending or threatened against the Group. A EAEEMRBEHMNERFLAR
COMMITMENTS 42. EE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BERFEE
2021 2020
B —T T
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T B FT
Contracted but not provided for: EHENEE ST
Purchase of property, plant and equipment EEE Y% - BE Li&kiE 526 1,633

™
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Notes to the Financial Statements
MERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2 —FT=-_—F+_A=+—HILFE

42. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b)

42. EEE)

Operating lease commitments as lessor (b) ERHBEAZLERNRIE
The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future AEEEHBEFETA - RR&EE
minimum lease receivables: gL mT -
2021 2020
—B-—fF —EEF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T B FT
Within one year —FR 467 1,566
Later than one year and not later than —FREMERN
two years 305 1,413
Later than two years and not later than MERBRE=FA
three years 305 1,202
Later than three years and not later than ~ =F{&{EMNER
four years 305 751
Later than four years and not later than MERBRFAN
five years - 296
1,382 5,228

Leases are negotiated for terms ranging from three to ten
years (2020: one to ten years).

BOBHELBENF=FE+E (=
FoTE: —FEHE)

—

China Chengtong Development Group Limited FEIFERREBERAT | ]

87




Notes to the Financial Statements

Rt %5 3R &= B 5

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # =

= —

=

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

F+-A=+—HLFE

43. D E] B AR R 3

COMPANY
2021 2020
—B--F —TE-FTE
Notes HK$000 HK$000
it BT T BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y~ BB REE 1,974 4,828
Interests in subsidiaries NI ENGIPA 23 - =
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR T /B 1 R FRIE 1,074,456 177,229
1,076,430 182,057
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables, prepayments and Hb U GRIE - AR FRIE R
deposits bl 2,524 2,488
Amounts due from subsidiaries i NI B 1,878,483 2,221,813
Bank balances and cash RITHETFRIRS 7,061 229,506
1,888,068 2,453,807
Current liabilities i =R
Other payables H M pER 58 8,234 8,014
Lease liabilities HEAE 1,706 2,599
Bank borrowings RITEE 460,319 160,000
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHY B A R FUAR 217,730 209,323
687,989 379,936
Net current assets mBEERE 1,200,079 2,073,871
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE - 1,954
Net assets BAEFE 2,276,509 2,253,974
EQUITY =
Share capital %N 33 2,214,624 2,185,876
Reserves 1 35 61,885 68,098
Total equity B 2,276,509 2,253,974
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 4 HESEER_E-__F=AMBERK

March 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

Zhang Bin
RIR
Director

EZE

R
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Yang Tianzhou
HEM
Director
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Principal Properties
EFEME

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES A. REWE
Group's Approximate
effective ~ Approximate gross

Location bk interest site area floorarea  Usage Category of lease

rREZ B4 BHaER
BER: WEEE AE AR RHER

(sq. m.) (sg.m)

(FHR) (FHH)

Phase |, Chengtong Xiang Xie Li, RRILRARERD 100% Note () 4,646 Commercial Medium-term lease
No. 1 Mizhou West Road, Zhucheng City, BMFER % izt [ HERL
Shandong Province, the PRC HBEHEE

Phase Ill, Chengtong Xiang Xie Li, RENRERERT 100% Note () 2,716 Commercial Medium-term lease
No. 1 Mizhou West Road, Zhucheng City, EMNEE % fizt(e) G FERA
Shandong Province, the PRC HBRHEE =

Hainan Building No.5 Guoxing Avenue, PEBEEEOM 100% 27,590 1339 Commercial Medium-term lease
Haikou City, Hainan Province, the PRC BEAESSHAR B bk

Block 2 Wan Liu Yi Cheng Building, PRI RTERR 100% 18,000 231 Commercial Medium-term lease
Haidian District, Beijing City, the PRC BURHAEFE [ZE hERL

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT B. #RHPYE

Group's Approximate
effective Approximate  gross floor Category of Stage of Expected
Location 1 interest site area area  Usage lease completion completion date
rRE2 a4 a4
BERER wEER LBEER A2 BAOEH  THRER B TRAS
(sq. m.) (sq. m.)
(FHR) (FHx)

Aparcel of land designated  HEIILRE EH T 100% 21,109 66,284  Residential Longlease  The construction  Section 3 of Phase Ill
as No. 01213003 and BB R A e RERL of Phase |l is expected to be
located on the —BLi is dividedinto 3 completed in
northern side of (&S sections, among  year 2024
Mizhou West Road £01213003%) which sections = HI= 2R AR
Eastern Section, 1and 2 have T RERHK
Zhucheng City, been completed
Shandong Province, and section 3 is
the PRC in progress.

“HIBNA=E
B-HER-RZ
ERERN =
BRIEFEST
o
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Principal Properties
EEME

C. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE C. BHiEHEW=

Group's Approximate
effective  Approximate gross
Location 1t 2 interest site area floorarea Usage Category of lease
rEEZ B4 BHEgE
BERR HEEE & Az BLHER
(sq. m.) (sq. m.)
(FrH) (7K
A parcel of land RRILEE R T 100% Note (a) 26,581  Residentialand ~ Commercial —
designated BN PR R ERL 2 Hizta) commercial Medium-term lease
as No. 01213003 and —fELi FEREE Residential —
located on the (R ES Long lease
northern side of £01213003%%) e Rlilliika
Mizhou West Road A% - READ
Eastern Section,
Zhucheng City,
Shandong Province,
the PRC
Note (a): Part of a parcel of land designated as No. 01213003 and located on the Hiet(a) - BB R A 2 N Fa B SR ER AL

northern side of Mizhou West Road Eastern Section, Zhucheng City,
Shandong Province, the PRC, with a total site area of 146,006 sq.m.

\
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A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the last four financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and reclassified
as appropriate, is set out below. This summary does not form part of the

audited financial statements.

Financial Summary
BEEE

UTAAEEEE-_T-—F+-_A=+—H1t
FERBENEMBFREZETIEFEREER
BEZHE  DREEZSFEELMBHRRALD
FHEEZEH DR - WHBES THERZEER
R BHRERZ — 7D o

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—B--F ZZZZTF ZZT-NF ZE-N\F ZT—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETFT BT BT BT EEFor
RESULTS ES
Turnover BER 1,172,679 931,688 1,110,598 1,020,892 1,353,119
Profit attributable to owners of AREVER AEG ST
the Company 104,222 121,372 47,539 113,440 23,363
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERAE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BER&E 307,371 344,673 241,834 187,803 202,715
Prepaid land lease payments BT HEENR - = = 38,5692 196,781
Investment properties BEME 99,255 89,143 93,939 101,528 63,316
Deposits paid BffEe 1,015 700 = = 4,966
Finance lease receivables and MEMREREKFIER
loans receivable W E K 3,911,695 1,438,325 684,689 245,700 383,902
Other financial assets Hth & @& E 11,658 11,200 4,267 4,984 =
Available-for-sale financial asset tEHESHEE - - - - 5,246
Loan to a related party BY—%@ERER 36,600 = = = =
Current assets REBEE
Properties held for sale RIELEME 130,438 180,364 128,655 202,005 251,688
Properties held for development FEERME - = 260,661 281,386 296,196
Properties under development BEAYE 143,793 90,325 205,688 152,233 109,824
Inventories FE 23,332 4,756 4,036 15,970 4,281
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H A0 U RIE 79,888 101,775 136,054 186,706 129,040
Finance lease receivables and BMEMREREKFIER
loans receivable FEUE R 1,953,411 634,378 442,135 421,236 358,359
Prepaid land lease payments BT HEERK - - - 2,011 5,665
Other financial assets HitepEE 69,850 107,736 544,816 840,612 =
Available-for-sale financial assets AREESHEE - - = = 700,231
Held-for-trading securities BEEEES - = = = 1,173
Taxation recoverable QENEEE 2,628 1,794 1,846 2,119 3,004
Pledged bank deposits BHEARRITER 4,413 5,556 4,462 3,815 4,006
Deposits in other financial institution FE {4 B 17 7 - - 2,157 112,338 86,200
Bank balances and cash RITEFRES 1,380,259 859,618 732,356 791,265 749,708
Amount due from a non-controlling  FE4X — REIFT B2 &)
shareholder of a subsidiary — B IR R FIR - - = = 18,000
Loan to a related party BY—2BERER 12,200 36,404 34,431 = =
Assets classified as held for sale DEARIELEZEE - = 78,635 = =
Total assets BEE 8,167,806 3,906,747 3,600,661 3,590,303 3,574,801

—
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Financial Summary

MEBE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
B ZEZTF ZT-NF ZT-N\F ZZT—tF
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFT BIEF T BT BT T BT T
Current liabilities nEAE
Trade and other payables B 5 RAMENTIE (373,265) (349,524) (173,648) (120,726) (156,869)
Contract liabilities EHEE (136,724) (124,420) (134,637 (207,096) -
Deposits received from sale of HEME 2 Bz
properties - - - - (128,921)
Taxation payable FER TR (35,622) (31,318) (25,877) (38,843) (5,929)
Lease liabilities HEAE (3,098) (3,729) (3,528) - -
Bank borrowings RITHE (1,374,675) (338,420) (277,700) (274,100) (214,400
Asset-backed securities BEXIFES (1,267,068) = = = =
Unsecured other loan EEREMER (600) (600) (600) (600) (600)
Loan from a related party RE—BBEEFNER (47,556) (23,592) - - -
Liabilities associated with assets DEARBIENEEEERE L
classified as held for sale BE - = (20,049) - -
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Asset-backed securities BEYIFES (1,665,539) = = = =
Bank borrowings BITEE (67,100) = = = =
Lease liabilities HEARE - (3,311) (7,353) - -
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEAE (54,857) (46,564) (43,053) (51,794) (81,635)
Total liabilities BERE (5,026,104) (921,478 (686,445) (693,159) (588,354)

E
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